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Dearest Shareholders,

Embracing our heritage and forging a path to the future
Risun stands tall with pride as we approach our 30th Anniversary

On behalf of the Board of Directors of China Risun Group Limited (“Risun”
or the “Company”), it is my privilege to present the annual report for the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for
the year ended on December 31, 2023 (the “Year” or “Reporting Period”).

As Risun approaches its 30th anniversary in 2025, we seize this
momentous occasion to reflect on the Company’s core strengths,
methodologies, ethos, and guiding principles that seamlessly connect
our rich past to a dynamic future. Risun has proudly held the position of
the world’s largest independent coke producer and supplier for over a
decade. Building upon this foundation, we have recently ascended to
the position of the world’s second-largest producer of caprolactam and
have become the largest producer of high-purity hydrogen in the Beijing-
Tianjin-Hebei region of China. These milestones are a testament to Risun’s
ability to draw from its historical foundations to forge ahead, continually
seeking improvement and surpassing previous benchmarks. Our
strategic development has been marked by a substantial increase in the
annual production capacity of our products and an expansion into a more
diverse portfolio, transitioning from traditional commodities to innovative
and advanced products. This progression sustains the strategic intent
highlighted in the previous year’'s Chairman’s Statement and signifies
our transformation from a singular focus on coke to establishing refined
chemicals as the second pillar business segment.

REVIEW

During the Reporting Period, the world experienced a year of recovery
and resurgence, with societies globally returning to normalcy. The Group
capitalized on this momentum by bolstering both internal capabilities and
external partnerships to enhance the business scope and production
volumes of our products. We focused on managing the price spread of
our offerings and solidifying the operations and growth of our four existing
business segments. In the realm of market share for coke and materials,
as well as the Sulawesi Production Base and our operation management
business segment, the Group has accomplished the following in 2023
and up to the date of this report:

° market share in coke in 2023 accounted for 1.8% (2022: 1.6%) in
the world while it accounted for 2.5% (2022: 2.2%) for China’s total
output;

° market share in high purified hydrogen (by production capacity) in
2023 accounted for 8.3% (2022: 5.7%) in Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei area
of China;
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° the Group successfully secured four new operation management
service contracts, further broadening our business footprint
in the coke and coking chemicals industries. This expansion
encompasses sectors such as aniline and benzene hydrogenation
refined chemicals and extends our reach into key provinces
including Shanxi, Shandong, and Jilin in China; and

° in addition to our eight production bases situated across China,
including those in Hebei, Inner Mongolia, and Shandong Provinces,
we have expanded our global footprint with the inauguration of our
first overseas production base in Sulawesi, Indonesia, with three
coke facilities (2022: one coke facility) commenced in operation.

EQUITY CAPITAL MARKET

During the Reporting Period, the Company repurchased 12,591,000
shares at an average price of HK$3.24, which is approximately
0.28% (2022: approximately 0.36%) of its total issued share capital of
4,424,126,000 shares as of January 1, 2023.

In November 2023, the Company was included in the MSCI Global
Small Cap Indexes — China, following the inclusion to the Hang Seng
Composite Index (Mid Cap stocks) and the Hang Seng Large-Mid Cap
(investable) Index in February 2022. The Group believes that the inclusion
in these prestigious indexes is a testament to the equity capital market’s
confidence in the Group’s business performance and future prospects.
The Board is of the opinion that these developments could optimize the
Company’s investor base, enhance its stature, improve the liquidity of its
shares, attract a more diverse and global investor pool, and ultimately,
realize the Company’s investment value.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AND SAFETY

Since its inception, the Group’s cumulative investment in environmental
protection has reached approximately RMB8.9 billion as of December
31, 2023 (as of December 31, 2022: RMB6.5 billion). Our technicians and
the environmental protection research institute have implemented over a
hundred key environmental protection measures and projects. The Group
boasts six national green factories and one provincial green factory.

The management has also made significant efforts to ensure that safety
practices are firmly in place, aiming to standardize safe operations,
mitigate risks and hazards, and monitor occupational health and safety.
The Group’s commitment to environmental protection and safety is not
only highly acknowledged by the management and all employees but is
also an area where continuous improvement is anticipated year after year.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

DIGITALIZATION

Furthermore, since its inception, Risun has invested approximately
RMB1,060 million (as at December 31, 2022: RMB970 million) in the
completion of roughly 98 digitalization projects. These initiatives align
with the company’s commitment to achieving “complete automation
and thorough automation; complete informatization and thorough
informatization”. They encompass the integration of industrial internet and
intelligent manufacturing, as well as the adoption of automated equipment
and control systems.

PROSPECTS

Despite operating in a cyclical industry both in China and internationally,
the Group’s business model and strategic regional presence in China are
designed to mitigate cyclical impacts through the following approaches:

1. by balancing the production of both coke and refined chemical
products, which experience varying demand cycles, we are able to
leverage the robust demand for certain refined chemicals to sustain
our business growth;

2. capitalizing on its leading position and extensive experience in coke
production, the Group has successfully expanded its business by
striking a strategic balance between mergers and acquisitions and
operational management services. This approach harmonizes the
“asset-light” and “capital-intensive” investment philosophies;

3. by venturing into the development of new materials and new energy
sources, the Company is diversifying beyond its traditional focus on
coke and refined chemicals. This expansion creates a synergistic
balance between the established business lines and the emerging
purified hydrogen sector; and

4. bolstering the Group’s competitive edge by integrating advanced
automation and information technologies into its operations.

The Group is committed to smoothing out the cyclical fluctuations inherent
in our industry, guided by our vision and strategic objectives. We are
resolved to align our business development with the overarching trends of
China’s national macroeconomy, which we believe will continue to thrive.
Embracing a high standard of environmental and social responsibility,
the Group is proactive in harmonizing its business growth with the
nation’s development goals. Risun steadfastly adheres to a customer-
centric philosophy, dedicated to creating value for our clients. We aim for
mutually beneficial business progress and to foster innovation within the
coke, new materials, and new energy sectors.
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Looking forward in 2024, the Group will continue to increase the market
share of all key products by expanding the operation management
together with merger and acquisition. The Group also plans to strengthen
the production line of coke and refined chemicals and further refining into
new materials and new energy such as caprolactam (CPL) and hydrogen-
based products. Our primary focus is to expand the production of our
existing product mix and to introduce new refined chemical products that
align with the current economic climate both in China and globally.

DIVIDEND

Reflecting the operating performance and considering the business
outlook, the Board proposes a final dividend for the year of approximately
RMB53 million. This, combined with the interim dividend for 2023, brings
the total dividend for the Year to approximately RMB270 million. This
represents a minimum of 30% of the Group’s net distributable profits for
the year, which amount to approximately RMB861 million, as a gesture of
appreciation to the Company’s shareholders.

APPRECIATION

In conclusion, | would like to seize this opportunity to express my heartfelt
gratitude to our dedicated staff, particularly our entry-level employees,
as well as our shareholders and business partners. This includes, but
is not limited to, our banks, customers, suppliers, and all those who
have supported us. Your unwavering support and guidance have been
instrumental to Risun’s success.

The Board and management team eagerly anticipate building upon
this foundation to achieve even greater prosperity in the years to come,
whether in the next three decades or beyond. We are committed to
steering Risun towards a future replete with achievements and milestones,
thanks to the collective efforts of everyone involved.

Yang Xuegang
Chairman

March 14, 2024
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Revenue hits
historical high

WEAIELH S

The Group’s total revenue recorded over
RMB461 hundred million in 2023

BB R 2023 F 15 B

Production/
processing volume
continuously increases

BEE I 8REEm

Risun’s annual coke production/processing
volume reached 12.54 million tons in 2023

2023%F - JBRG Z FEIRE, NI RE

Business Highlights

X E

Pillar industry of
chemicals (including CPL)
outperformed by results
LI(ECABKR)XEERBRRN
Refined chemicals reportable segment

results exceeded coke’s results
for the first time

AR 46118 T 1,254 8 BT 2| EBER
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e 25 RMB hundred million
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2020 - 08
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2022 1
2023 sl
Net profit 1 ARMET
SEAE RMB hundred million
2019 - 3.7
2020 D 6.5 (Restated) (R E7I)
2021 N 250
2022 - . 5.6
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Gross profit 33 2 AREIETT
E7 RMB hundred million
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2021 B JGUK
2022 - 28
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Business Highlights (Continued)
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China Map
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Inner Mongolia

Xinjiang
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Shaanxi

Sichuan
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Guizhou
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Guangxi

Part of Indonesia ElE e Fa an (#5) /

Provinces in which we had sales of our products during the Reporting Period
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Headquarters in Beijing 6| Huhhot, Inner Mongolia
b RAEH ANEE RS

1

Xingtai, Hebei Yuncheng, Shandong

2| s 7| L5
Dingzhou, Hebei Dongming, Shandong

3| 7R 8| 1FRw

4| Cangzhou, Hebei 9 Sulawesi, Indonesia (Under development)
A ER M EJE JE 7o ap #R R B PR (FE 2R )

Pingxiang, Jiangxi (Under development)
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Tangshan, Hebei
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Business Highlights (Continued)
FHIRE(E

Joint venture company CNC Risun Energy
AEARFEEEER

Xingtai production base:
MearERR

Coke and coking chemicals
production lines

ERRECERLEESR

Alcohol-ammonia chemicals
production lines

ERELtIEREER

Joint venture company Risun Wei Shan
AEDRNEEEL

Sulawesi production base:
HUBAEERR

Coke and coking chemicals
production line

EREECEREER

Associated company Jinniu Risun Chemicals
BE AR S4BT

Xingtai production base:
MatERRE :

Alcohol-ammonia chemicals
production line

EREtIEREES

Associated company Cabot Risun Chemicals
B AR RESRBET

Xingtai production base:
MetERRE :

Carbon material chemical
production lines

BARELTIEREER
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China Risun Group Limited

TEEESEEERATF

O NN~

1
2

Coke and coking chemicals
production lines

ERNRELCEREER

Carbon material chemicals
production lines

BAMREBLEIEREER

Alcohol-ammonia chemicals
production lines

BEaBtIEREER

Aromatics chemicals
production lines

FRECIEREER

Operating Management Services
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Coke and coking chemicals
production lines

ERRELCEREER

Carbon material chemicals
production lines

AR ECIEREER

Aromatics chemicals
production lines
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Business Highlights (Continued)

FBRE(E)
Production volume/processing volume of major
products of the Group in 2023 (thousand tons)
2023 FAEEXEERNER MIE 7w
Coke* Production volume
=3, ER
Coking crude benzene Processing volume
FEX MITE
W 7544
Industrial naphthalene phthalic anhydride Production volume
TEZEBRRE ES
| 1571
Coke oven gas methanol Production volume
ERERS FE E8
¥ 70690
Coal‘tar Processing volume
B MIE
W77
Caprolactam Production volume
EhAL ure
Yes7.9
High purified hydrogen Production volume
BAE =5

W 930.0 (million cubic meters) (F #3775 %)

* Calculated on a dry basis

- B EAE

Note: The production volume of each major products includes
both self-owned production and operation management’s production.

Mt SETEERNEERRAFERNELRERERNES -
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Financial Highlights
BT 15T 2

The following table sets out our key financial data for the periods or as TREIN N EBAAMSEZFR B EBRRME

of the dates indicated extracted from the audited consolidated financial EMBEE - DB BT FRRAFR
statements disclosed in previous annual reports and this annual report. PRt Be M AS AR SR & BT S T3k »

SUMMARY OF CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS

FEBERREE
For the year ended December 31,
HZE12A31ALEE
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
2019% 20204 20214 20224 20234
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT  ARETT ARETT ARETT AREETT
(Restated) (Restated)
&2 7)) (45 &)
Revenue Yzs 18,842,038 19,784,866 39,370,054 43,139,449 46,065,896
Gross profit EF 2,582,908 3,223,443 5,530,618 4,275,321 3,324,950
Profit before taxation B3 Al A 1,679,379 1,950,664 3,198,254 2,203,483 681,748
Income tax (expense) credit FrsHi(RX)#ER (305,711) (296,812) (601,840) (343,992) 307,801
Profit for the year attributable to:  fE{EFEEF)
Owners of the Company RREEEA 1,363,165 1,652,990 2,613,689 1,855,122 860,814
Non-controlling interests PR 10,503 862 (17,275) 4,369 128,735
Basic earnings per share FREREF
(RMB yuan) (AR¥T) 0.34 0.40 0.61 0.42 0.19

14 2023 ANNUAL REPOR
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SUMMARY OF CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

FEMBRRARBE
As at December 31,
M12831H

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
20195 20204 20214 20224 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ANEETFT ARETFT AEETFT AREFT AREFT

(Restated) (Restated)

(45 E2)) (4= &)
Non-current assets FERBEE 14,597,914 17,258,345 24,634,133 32,713,772 36,702,430
Current assets REEE 5,603,482 7,202,710 12,147,384 13,388,852 17,133,819
Total assets BEE 20,201,396 24,461,055 36,781,517 46,102,624 53,836,249
Current liabilities mEAE 11,889,771 13,189,632 16,840,541 25,047,079 29,955,428
Non-current liabilities E =L 1,511,523 2,888,635 8,846,362 8,460,516 9,408,376
Total liabilities Bafd 13,401,294 16,078,267 25,686,903 33,507,595 39,363,804
Net current liabilities BB EFE (6,286,289)  (5,986,922)  (4,693,157)  (11,658,227)  (12,821,609)
Net assets BEFE 6,800,102 8,382,788 11,094,614 12,595,029 14,472,445
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. YANG Xuegang, aged 59, is an Executive Director, the chief
executive officer of the Company and the chairman of the Board. He was
appointed as an Executive Director in November 2007. He is responsible
for the overall management and business development of the Group. He is
also the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

Mr. Yang graduated from Hebei Hydraulic College (574t 7K | 2 &} £ 45 )
(now known as Hebei University of Water Resources and Electric
Engineering (7] 4t 7K F & 71 £ F ) in Cangzhou, the PRC in July 1985
with a diploma in hydraulic engineering construction and obtained the
hydraulic engineer qualification issued by the Handan City Labour
Bureau (HBEFM 48 A= /3) in December 1993. He completed a master-
level training course in business administration at Renmin University
of China (FF B A & K £) in Beijing, the PRC in March 2000 and was
a supervisor of a master’s degree program at Hebei University of
Economics and Business (AL E KE) in Shijiazhuang, the PRC in July
2002. He completed a further master-level training course in business
administration at the Zhonghua Yanxiu University ( 7 % #f & K 2 ) in
Beijing, the PRC in September 2003. In November 2003, he obtained a
master’'s degree in business administration from Asia International Open
University (Macau) (21 CRF9) BB AR AE) in Macau. He obtained the
senior engineer qualification awarded by the Hebei Provincial Department
of Human Resources and Social Security (jildb & A 7 &R it SR E
E2) in December 2012. In January 2017, Mr. Yang obtained an executive
master’s degree in business administration from Hebei University of
Technology (AI3E T2 K£2) in Tianjin, the PRC.

Prior to the establishment of the Group, Mr. Yang was employed at the
Dongwushi Reservoir Management Center (R A/KEE M ER), a public
body directly subordinated to the Handan City Hydraulics Bureau (857K
FI/3), on a full-time basis for approximately 10 years from August 1985,
and became a deputy director of the Dongwushi Reservoir Management
Center from January 1988. He then joined the Group as general manager
as a result of his entrepreneurial efforts since the establishment of
Xingtai Risun Coking Limited in May 1995 and became chairman since
May 1996. Since September 2012, he has been a director of Beijing
Automic Technology Co., Ltd. (It REBFEREHERH AR AR (“Beijing
Automic”), a company previously listed on the National Equities Exchange
and Quotations (B9 /N ZE AR 1) 8558 5 47%) (stock code: 430245), whose
principal business is the planning of water conservancy information
projects, consultation and assessment, as well as software and hardware
product development and services, and held as to 49.92% by Mr. Yang
and parties acting-in-concert with him.
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Over the years, Mr. Yang has taken up leadership roles in a number of
industry associations, including those relating to the coking industry.
He has been the vice president of CCIA since October 2005, and the
president of HBCCIA since January 2006. In February 2008, Mr. Yang
was elected and had served as a deputy to the 11th NPC and in February
2013, he was elected as a deputy to the 12th NPC.

Mr. Yang is the husband of Ms. Lu Xiaomei and the father of Mr. Yang Lu.

Ms. LU Xiaomei, aged 60, has been an Executive Director since April
2024. She was appointed as a non-executive director of the Group
from November 2007 to September 2018. In addition to her duties
on the group-level, Ms. Lu also served in the management of various
subsidiaries of the Group, including being appointed as a director of
Hebei Risun Coking Limited* (AdLBIZ (LB R A R]) (currently known as
Hebei Risun Energy Limited* (AI3LEFZAEIRA R A 7)) and Xingtai Risun
Coking Limited* (/i & B % £ {k B BR 2 &) (currently known as Xingtai
Risun Trading Limited* (I8 & fBI% & 5 & R A 7)) in 2004. She was also
appointed as a director of Xingtai Risun Coal Chemicals Limited* (fB& /B
P TARR AT in 2006. She resigned from her directorships in these
three subsidiaries in 2007.

Ms. Lu has approximately 20 years of corporate management experience.
Prior to joining the Group, she graduated with a bachelor’'s degree in
medicine from North China Coal Medical University ( % 4t /& % 28 2 7 )
(currently known as the Department of Medicine of North China University
of Science and Technology (4t £ T X £ & 22 [)) in 1988. In 2001,
she completed the master-level training course in medicine at Hebei
Medical University (A1t 2% K22). From 1988 to 2002, Ms. Lu had been
a gynecologist, a physician-in-charge and a deputy chief physician at
the Hospital of Xingtai Mining Group* (I8 &£ B 4AET). In 2022, she
obtained the deputy chief physician qualification from the Title Reform
Leading Group Office of Hebei Province* (3] 1t & B fE 2 B 48 & NE T
=)

=)

Between October 2012 and March 2021, Ms. Lu was a director of Beijing
Automic.
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Ms. Lu is familiar with the businesses of the Group by virtue of her
relevant management experience in the past, including the management
of various subsidiaries of the Group. In addition, Ms. Lu will contribute to
the diversification of the Board as a female Director. The Board believes
that the appointment of Ms. Lu as executive Director will provide benefits
to the Group’s operation and management.

Ms. Lu is the wife of Mr. Yang Xuegang, and the mother of Mr. Yang Lu.

Mr. LI Qinghua, aged 60, joined the Group in November 2004. He has
been an Executive Director and the executive president of the Group
since April 2024, and was a vice president of the Group from June 2015
to March 2024. He is primarily responsible for the overall management
of the Dingzhou, Xingtai and Sulawesi Production Bases. In addition to
these management duties, Mr. Li will also be responsible for the overall
management of the other developed production bases of the Group
in Huhhot, Cangzhou, Tangshan, Dongming and Yuncheng as well as
the management of the Group’s procurement and sale since the Latest
Practicable Date. As Mr. Li will be responsible for the daily operation of
the Group and the management of all the Group’s production bases, the
Board has also appointed Mr. Li as the executive president of the Group
to oversee the Group’s administration and management, assist the Board
and the chairman of the Board in making operational decisions, and he
will report to the Board.

Mr. Li has approximately 29 years of corporate management experience.
Prior to joining the Group, he undertook several positions at Hebei
Changzheng Automobile Manufacturing Co., Ltd.* GAldb RAE/SBE&ER
R 2~ Al ), an automobile manufacturer, from July 1983 to October 2004,
including director of the special cars factory from May 1993 to June 1998,
deputy director and director of the general factory from June 1998 to
September 2002 and deputy general manager of Hebei Changzheng
Automobile Manufacturing Co., Ltd.* from September 2002 to October
2004. He graduated from the Anhui Economic Management Cadre
Institute* (ZEEEEE R HIPERT) (currently known as the Party School of
Anhui Provincial Committee of C.P.C. (Anhui Academy of Governance))
in Hefei, the PRC in July 1987 with a diploma in industrial enterprise
management and obtained a master’s degree in economics from the Party
School of the Central Committee of the CPC* (FF /1 s #4%) in Beijing,
the PRC in July 2001. He obtained a senior economist qualification from
the Title Reform Leading Group Office of Hebei Province* (jaldt2& BBk
FLEE/MAYANE) in November 1999.
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Mr. HAN Qinliang, aged 50, is an Executive Director and a vice president
of the Group. Mr. Han was appointed as an Executive Director in May
2011. He is primarily responsible for the management of the financial,
accounting and information systems of the Group.

Mr. Han obtained a diploma in industrial economy administration from
Hebei College of Mechanical Engineering (i 11 £55%) in Xingtai, the
PRC in June 1993 (as a result of a merger, Hebei College of Mechanical
Engineering is now part of Hebei University of Science and Technology
(AR R E)). In December 2001, he obtained a bachelor's degree in
accounting from Hebei University of Economics and Business ( )i 1t 4
H KE) in Shijiazhuang, the PRC. In July 2001, he became a member of
Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants (7 B s i &€ st At <)
in the PRC. In December 2003, he obtained the senior accountant
qualification from the Title Reform Leading Group Office of Hebei Province
(b A B E R S MEP R E).

Mr. Han joined the Group in March 2004. Mr. Han has approximately 30
years of experience in steel and coal chemical industry. From September
1993 to April 2004, he was the deputy head of the finance department
cost division in Xingtai Machinery and Mill Roll (Group) Corporation (ff&
et ELEE (23 AR A ) (now known as Sinosteel Xingtai Machinery &
Mill Roll Co., Ltd. (F i &= BT & # ik BLE2 A R A F1)). In March 2004, Mr.
Han joined Xingtai Risun Trading as a general manager assistant.

Mr. WANG Nianping, aged 61, is an Executive Director and a vice
president of the Group. He was appointed as an Executive Director
in September 2018. He is primarily responsible for the legal and risk
management of the Group.

Mr. Wang obtained a bachelor’'s degree in law from the Institute of
Hubei Finance (i 1t Bf 4% 2267 ) (now known as Zhongnan University of
Economics and Law ( /& B &8 B & K 2)) in Wuhan, the PRC in July
1984. He obtained a post-graduate degree in international trade and
a juris doctor degree from the University of International Business and
Economics ( ¥f 7N &8 & & 5 KX 2) in Beijing, the PRC in June 1994 and
December 2007, respectively. He was admitted as a qualified lawyer in
the PRC in June 1987 and obtained the senior economist qualification
issued by the Sinopec Group in November 2004.
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Mr. Wang joined the Group in February 2011 and prior to joining the
Group, he had over 13 years of extensive experience in the petrochemical
industry. He was recognized as a third level lawyer in April 1990 by the
China National Petroleum Corporation (4 Bl f f XA R4 A 7)) where he
worked. In January 1996, Mr. Wang joined China Petroleum Engineering
Construction Corporation, a company whose principal business is building
oil and gas infrastructures and undertook various positions including
contracts administrator, senior officer of the debt recovery department
and deputy manager of the projects department. In May 2001, he joined
Sinopec International Petroleum Exploration and Production Corporation
(“SIPC”), a company whose principal business is in overseas oil and
gas investment and operations, as the deputy manager of the legal
department. From November 2004 to December 2008, he served as the
vice president of the SIPC’s subsidiaries in Kazakhstan and as the deputy
general manager of the SIPC’s subsidiaries in Syria from January 2009 to
October 2010.

Mr. YANG Lu, aged 33, is an Executive Director. He is primarily
responsible for the management of the import, export and domestic
trading business of the Group. He was appointed as an Executive
Director in September 2018.

Mr. Yang Lu graduated with a bachelor’s degree in chemical engineering
from the Washington University in St. Louis, the United States in May
2012. He obtained the fund management qualification from the Asset
Management Association of China in June 2015.

Mr. Yang Lu joined the Group in November 2013. Prior to joining the
Group, he was a junior consultant at Roland Berger Management
Consultants (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (& R EEIE(LEE)BRAF), a
global strategy consulting firm, from September 2012 to September 2013,
and from October 2013 to November 2014, he worked in the marketing
department of Beijing Automic. Mr. Yang Lu has been the chairman’s
assistant of Hong Kong Risun since November 2013 and worked in the
market research department as deputy manager of Risun Marketing Co.
Ltd. (/B 5 & 34 & BR A 7)) (previously named as Beijing Risun Hongye
Chemicals Co., Ltd.) from December 2014 to May 2016. He then worked
in Beijing Risun Fund Management Co., Ltd. (1t /B ESEEFR A F)),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Xuyang Holding, between June 2016 and
September 2018, first as deputy general manager and subsequently as
general manager. Since September 2018, he was the general manager of
Risun Marketing (JEFZ %4 £4).

Mr. Yang Lu is the son of Mr. Yang Xuegang and Ms. Lu Xiaomei.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. KANG Woon, aged 61, is an Independent Non-executive Director
and also the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member
of the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee. He was appointed
as an Independent Non-executive Director between November 2011 to
September 2015 and re-appointed in September 2018.

Mr. Kang obtained a doctorate of jurisprudence from the University of
Texas in Austin, Texas, the United States in May 1990. He has been
an attorney-at-law of the Supreme Court of the State of New York since
March 1991, and a member of the Law Society of England and Wales
since May 1998.

Mr. Kang served as a supervisor from May 2004 to June 2007 and was
an independent non-executive director of Anhui Conch Cement Company
Limited (Z &SRR B R A 7]), a company principally engaged in
cement products manufacturing dually listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange and Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock codes: 914 and
600585, respectively), between October 1997 and May 2004 as well as
between June 2007 and May 2013. Mr. Kang was also an independent
non-executive director of China Yurun Food Group Limited (9 B FH &
mE B BRAF]), a company whose principal business is manufacturing
meat products and listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 1068), from April 2005 to January 2010.

Mr. YU Kwok Kuen Harry, aged 54, is an Independent Non-executive
Director and also the chairman of the Audit Committee and member of the
Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee. He was appointed
as an Independent Non-executive Director in September 2018.

Mr. Yu received his diploma in accountancy from Morrison Hill Technical
Institute in Hong Kong in 1991 and master’s degree in business
administration from Manchester Business School in the United Kingdom
through distance learning in 2000. Mr. Yu is a fellow of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, a fellow of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Yu is also a Certified Public
Accountant in the Macau Special Administrative Region.

Mr. Yu joined KPMG, an international accounting firm in October 1991
and was a partner of KPMG from July 2002 to June 2011.

Mr. Yu also serves as an independent non-executive director at Impro
Precision Industries Limited, a manufacturer of high-precision, high-
complexity and mission-critical casting and machined components and
a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
1286) since April 2019.
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Mr. WANG Yinping, aged 63, is an Independent Non-executive Director
and also a member of the Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee.
He was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director in
September 2018.

Mr. Wang obtained a bachelor’'s degree in law from Renmin University
of China (B AR AXZ) in Beijing, the PRC in July 1985 and a master’s
degree in business administration from the China Europe International
Business School (FFEXEIFE T & ke) in Shanghai, the PRC in November
2004.

Mr. Wang has extensive experience in corporate management. He joined
China National Chemical Import & Export Corporation (FF Bt T3 H D42
A7) (now known as Sinochem Group Co., Ltd. (FEIF{LEBHRAT))
(“Sinochem”), a conglomerate offering exploration and production of
oil and gas, energy, agriculture, chemical, real estate and financial
services, in June 1987 and held various senior positions between March
1988 and March 2014 in Sinochem and its subsidiaries (“Sinochem
Group”), including the deputy general manager of the Hainan branch of
Sinochem, the general manager of the Pudong branch of Sinochem, the
deputy general manager of China Foreign Economic and Trade Trust
Company Limited ({FEIE SMEEE 5 {5558 R A 7)) a company principally
engaged in microfinance, industrial finance, capital market and wealth
management, the general manager of the human resource department
of Sinochem Group, the vice president of Sinochem Group, the general
manager of Sinochem International Trading Company Limited (now
known as Sinochem International Corporation (FF /b BB (#5A% ) I 19 B R
A A])), a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code:
600500) and principally engaged in the chemical and rubber business,
the chairman of the China Foreign Economic and Trade Trust Company
Limited and the chairman of the Sinochem Lantian Co., Ltd. (/L& Xt
EBFRAR]), a company principally engaged in research, production and
sale of fluorine chemicals.

Mr. Wang also served as chairman of the board of Zhejiang Int'l Group
Co., Ltd. (T = FFE B B h B R A dl), a company that produces and
sells pharmaceutical and Chinese medicine health products in China
and listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 000411) from
December 2010 to March 2014. From January 2015 to December 2016,
Mr. Wang was an executive director of China Pioneer Pharma Holdings
Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 1345) and a comprehensive marketing, promotion and channel
management service provider dedicated to imported pharmaceutical
products and medical devices in the PRC, and was re-designated to
serve as a non-executive director from December 2016 to December
2019.

Mr. Wang has been an independent non-executive director of Yida China
Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 3639) since December 2016.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Li Qinghua is the executive president of the Group. For biographical
details of Mr. Li, please see the sub-section headed “EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS” above.

Mr. ZHANG Jianguo, aged 56, has been vice president of the Group
since February 2021. He is primarily responsible for management of the
Group’s strategic investments, production and engineering. He graduated
from the Daging Petroleum Institute (X 2 A /B £ 8 ) (now known as the
Northeast Petroleum University ( % 1t /& i K £)) in Daging, the PRC in
July 1988. He obtained a master degree in organic chemicals from the
Daging Petroleum Institute in Daqging, the PRC in April 1994 and a doctor
degree in chemical technique from the China University of Petroleum (4
Bl A f A E) in Beijing the PRC in July 2009, respectively. He obtained the
professor of engineering (1% & /= & T2 A0) awarded by the Zhejiang
Province Human Resources and Social Security Department (477I%& A 7]
BRI & {RFEEE) in December 2017.

Mr. Zhang has approximately 35 years of experience in the petrochemical
and chemicals industry. He joined the Group in February 2021. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Zhang was the director of refinery factory of Daging
Petrochemical Company (X B A1t 2 &) from September 1988 to June
2005. He was also deputy general manager and director of safety of
Guangxi Petrochemical Co. Ltd. (E#EA{tAF]) of PetroChina Company
Limited (7 BlAARARIMD AR A A]) from June 2005 to February 2016.
He was also the executive deputy commander and vice president of
Zhejiang Petrochemical Co., Ltd. (#/TA#R{L THER A A]) from February
2016 to January 2021.

Mr. HO Pui Lam Joseph, aged 43, is the company secretary of
the Company. He is responsible for the management of corporate
governance and company secretarial matters, participation in the making
of material business decisions and development of the business strategy.
He obtained a bachelor’'s degree in business administration from the
University of Hong Kong in Hong Kong in December 2002. He is a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a
member of Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales.

Mr. Ho has approximately 20 years of auditing, financial and company
secretarial experience. He joined the Group in September 2017. Prior to
joining the Group, he was an audit manager at Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
from September 2002 to November 2009. He also served as the financial
controller and company secretary of RENHENG Enterprise Holdings
Limited, a company principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of
tobacco machinery products in the PRC and listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 3628), from June 2010 to August 2017.

*

For identification purpose only
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

OVERVIEW

The Group is an integrated coke, coking chemical and refined chemical
producer and supplier together with relevant operation management
services provider in China. The Group maintains as the world’s largest
independent producer and supplier of coke by production/processing
volume in 2023* and this remarkable leading position in the independent
coke industry has been maintained for decades.

Other than the above, the Group held a number of leading positions in
different refined chemical sectors in China or globally in 2023* as
following:

Coke World’s largest independent
producer and supplier

World’s largest processor

World’s second largest processor

World’s second largest producer

China’s largest producer

China’s largest producer

Coking crude benzene

High temperature Coal tar

Caprolactam (CPL)

Coke-oven-gas-based methanol

Industrial-naphthalene-based
phthalic anhydride

High purified hydrogen Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei area’s largest
producer

Furthermore, the Group is an operation management service provider to
third party independent coke producers and refined chemicals producers
in order to enhance the Group’s influence in the coke and refined
chemicals industry. As at the end of the Reporting Period, the Group
provided operation management service to three coke producers and five
refined chemicals producers.

According to the industry report prepared by Frost & Sullivan (Beijing) Inc.,
Shanghai Branch Co., an independent global consulting firm.
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I\/Ianagement Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

SR i AT ()

During the Reporting Period, the Group focused on the main theme of
integration of existing businesses and production bases, expansion of
production capacity of coke and refined chemicals together with entering
into four new operation management agreements. In order to continuously
create value to the shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”),
the Group closely controlled the operating costs and expenditures of
production bases and monitored the operating efficiency of production
facilities. The Group continued its expansion in annual capacity of all the
products and its further refining ability to high-end chemicals products
with strong market demand. Starting from 2022, the Group has been also
developing new production base with two joint ventures and one associate
in Sulawesi Province, Indonesia. In 2023 and up to the date of this report,
there were three coke ovens commenced for operation. Ultimately, the
gross annual coke production capacity of these three companies in
Indonesia is 13.40 million tons and the equity capacity in production of
coke attributable to the Group is 4.36 million tons per annum.

Currently, the Group has eight operating production bases around
the world, including seven located in three provinces of China and
one in Sulawesi, Indonesia. The Group was also in the process of the
development of new coke production base in Jiangxi, China. The main
philosophy of the Group’s expansion is to increase its annual production/
processing volume in coke and refined chemicals according to the
market and the Group’s own Five-Year Plan from 2021 to 2025. With the
commencement of operation of its new production facilities by phases,
the Group’s overall production capacity will continue to grow. By doing
so, the Group can develop a longer and wider production chain of more
than 60 types (2022: approximately 55 types) of refined chemicals. In the
long run, the Group will maintain the leading positions of coke and refined
chemicals industry and continue to create values to the Shareholders.

In view of the operating results in the Year, the recent development
of China’s economy and future development needs, as well as the
willingness of sharing the results of the Group with Shareholders, the
Board recommended a final dividend of RMB1.20 cents per share,
equivalent to HK1.32 cents per share, with a total amount of approximately
RMB53,090,000 or HK$58,510,000 for the Year representing no less
than 30% of the profit attributable to owners of the Company for the Year.
By aggregating the dividends paid by the Company since its listing in
March 2019 and current proposed final dividend for the Year, the total
amount of dividends per share was approximately RMB0.76 or HK$0.88,
representing a return of 31.4% to the offering price of HK$2.80 at initial
public offering in March 2019.
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China Risun Group
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group’s vertically integrated business model and its experience of
more than 28 years in the coke industry production chain enables the
Group to widen the downstream refined chemicals industry. Currently,
the Group has four business segments ranging from coke and coking
chemicals manufacturing, refined chemicals (including hydrogen-energy
products) manufacturing, operation management services and trading.

The Group engaged in its first operation management service in 2014 and
has been actively developing up to the Year for a decade in operation
management business. During the Reporting Period and up to the date
of this report, the Group entered into four new operation management
agreements to further expand the Group’s business presence in coke and
coking chemicals, including aniline and benzene hydrogenation refined
chemicals sectors, in Shanxi, Shandong and Jilin Province, China.

Our principal businesses, categorised in the following four existing major
business segments of the Group are set out as follows:

(1) coke and coking chemicals manufacturing: the production
and sale of coke and a series of coking chemicals from externally
sourced coking coals processed at the Group’s coking facilities;

(2) refined chemicals manufacturing: the processing of coking
chemicals, sourced from the Group’s coke and coking chemicals
manufacturing segment and third parties, into refined chemicals
products at the Group’s refined chemicals facilities, as well as
marketing and sale of such refined chemicals including hydrogen-
energy products;

(3) operation management: the operation management service
provided to the third-party plants, and the sale of coke, coking
chemicals and refined chemicals produced by these plants
under the management service agreements and commissioned
processing contracts; and

(4) trading: the sourcing of coke, coking chemicals and refined
chemicals from third parties and the marketing, sale and distribution
of them.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EREHR AW (E)

The Group obtained certain land parcels from the local government in
Dingzhou City after production facilities transformation and upgrades,
payment for the land-use rights acquisitions were settled by the
government subsidy granted under such transformation and upgrades.
In order to fully utilize the land resources of the Group and generate more
fundings for developing its principal businesses, the Group decided to
construct and develop residential properties and sell the same to third
parties. As a result, the Company set up a new subsidiary, Dingzhou
Zhongxu Real Estate Limited* (7 /I /B & %A R 2 7)) for handling the
development and sales of properties, and recorded a total revenue
of RMB122.8 million for the Year, and a new business segment was
identified for compliance with the requirements under IFRS 8 (Operating
Segments). However, the development and sales of properties in
Dingzhou City are for the purposes of asset realization and generate more
fundings in cash or cash equivalent for the Group, and the Group does
not have any plan to expand its principal business into real estate industry
in the long run.

The average selling prices (net of VAT) of the Group’s major products
during the Reporting Period are as follows:
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RMB per ton

AR T 1

Coke IR 2,201.4
Coal tar pitch BERES 4,479.2
Phthalic anhydride PN 6,678.3
Methanol Rz 2,043.2
Benzene EiS 6,404.2
Caprolactam (CPL) = AL (CPL) 10,822.1
Hydrogen-energy products (per cube meter) QEeEm(FITK) 2.28

*  For identification purpose only
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

R LA (E)

Below is the table summarizing the key corporate activities of the Group TR A EER2023F R EEAHRE HER

in 2023 and up to the date of this report: WEEPEED :

Time Corporate Activities

B ESER

January 2023 — New Operation Entered into a new operation management services agreement in relation to a
Management Services in Shanxi plant with production capacity of 1,000,000 tons per annum of coke and coking
Province, China chemicals in Shanxi Province, China.

2023F1 A —RABILAEETHNEEE eI ARURTEILEEFES,000,000M KR MECERERNEES
2 k7R B A5 tpedh o

May 2023 — New Operation Management  Entered into a new operation management services agreement to a production
Services in Shandong Province, China capacity of 100,000 tons per annum of crude benzene hydrogenation refined
chemicals in Shandong Province, China.
20235 4 — R BILRAETHNEEE  Ha] A AT B I RE /4 Z S 100,000M R NEAFRE BN EEE R RS
EART1E B ez o

May 2023 — Capital injection to Huhhot Entered into the Capital Increase Agreement, pursuant to which three
Risun China Gas Energy Limited* (“Risun shareholders of Risun China Gas agreed to make additional disproportionate
China Gas”) (W-AEHEBES FREEJR BB contribution of RMB800 million to Risun China Gas by way of cash injection in
NG| order to expedite the launch of the coking project of Risun China Gas with an
annual production capacity of 3 million tons.
20235 A — MM FADERBISFIRBEREIR A FESEFRFEESI00EMELIE B BIRIKE @ T8 E s - Bt - B85
REN[TBESHFIR)EE PR=FIRREEFEBIR e N E L REEPREINETEARBB0EETT °

June 2023 - Capital Injection to Dingzhou  Entered into the investment agreement, pursuant to which BOCOM Financial
Tianlu New Energy Limited* (Dingzhou  Asset Investment Co., Ltd. (IR B E EKR L BR A 7)) agreed to make capital

Tianlu) GEMNREFELIRBR A F) injection of RMB500 million to Dingzhou Tianlu by way of cash injection.
20236 A —MEMAREMERBRAR(E AIKEWRZ Bt - RIREMEEREBRAARABUARTXNATEMREE
MRE)TE EARB5008ETT °
October 2023 — New Operation Entered into a new operation management services agreement to a production
Management Services in Jilin Province,  capacity of 300,000 tons per annum of aniline refined chemicals in Jilin
China Province, China.

2023F10 A — A B EMEETHHEEE 7] A BN P EEME B FEES300,000ME Rt TEMBRNEEE
I 518 B A% thhes o

November 2023 — New Operation Entered into a new operation management services agreement in relation to
Management Services in Shandong a plant with annual coke and coking production capacity of 1,200,000 tons in
Province, China Shandong Province, China.

2023F 1A — A EILREETHREEE ] A BN PEILREHFES1,200,000M8EX MECERERNEEEE
I fR5IE B AR5 thhask o

*

For identification purpose only * BHREE
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BIEE LT ()

Time Corporate Activities
B F HSER

November 2023 to December 2023
— Conducting On-Market Share
Repurchase

202311 R £ 2023F 127 — A5 _LEEE
& 17

November 2023 — Shares of the Company
included in MSCI
2023F11 A — AR R B AMSCI

China.

Partially exercised the Share Repurchase Mandate to repurchase shares of the
Company in the open market during the financial year 2023.

2023 F A FETE B D It BBEIXME - RARTS FERAR RS

Shares of the Company was included in MSCI Global Small Cap Indexes —

AR RN R AMSCI 2 IR B IR e 8 RIS 8 -

Furthermore, the business developments in terms of the coke and refined
chemicals, hydrogen-energy products, capital market, environmental
protection and digitalization during the Reporting Period are described as
follows:

Coke

The Group persistently focused on the expansion of its coke production
capacity by either organic growth in self-construction of coke production
facilities or merger and acquisition of other coke enterprises. In the past,
the Group successfully completed the acquisition of a group of coke
enterprises in Shangdong in December 2020 and took the shortest time
to make smooth integration into the Group.

In 2023, the Group did not acquire any new coke enterprise but was
still focusing on the way of expansion by further integration of two coke
production facilities in Huhhot Production Base and Sulawesi Production
Base. During the Year, the Group completed the coke production facility
with an annual production capacity of 3 million tons in Huhhot Production
Base in June 2023. Also, the Group was constructing another coke
production facility in Sulawesi Production Base by phase: two coke ovens
out of eight coke ovens were completed and commenced operation in
20283; and subsequently in the first quarter of 2024, the third coke oven
was also completed and commenced operation.

Moreover, the Group was providing operation management service for
third-party coke enterprises with plants producing and processing annual
coke capacity of 3.2 million tons in different provinces in China.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Refined chemicals

The Group maintained three production chains of refined chemicals and
their classification with corresponding refined chemicals products as
follows:

Carbon material chemicals:

Coal tar pitch, industrial-naphthalene-based phthalic anhydride, carbon
black oil

Alcohol-ammonia chemicals:
Methanol, synthetic ammonia, 2-Amino-2-Methyl-1-Propanol (AMP)
Aromatic chemicals:

Benzene hydrogenation, cyclohexane, cyclohexanone, styrene,
caprolactam (CPL), polyamide 6 (PAB)

In 2023, the Group made use of its leading position and advanced
production chain and technology in operating and manufacturing
caprolactam (CPL) and some alcohol-ammonia chemicals products,
such as 2-Amino-2-Methyl-1-Propanol (AMP). CPL is the raw materials
used for producing polyamide 6 (PA6) and high-temperature nylon — a
special material for many consumables with its characteristic of strength
and heat resistance, while AMP is a high value-added refined chemicals
product, which was widely used in high-end paint additives, cosmetics,
pharmaceuticals, pesticide, metal processing, carbon dioxide absorption
etc. The main philosophy was to invest in those refined chemicals
production lines with larger market demand anticipated by the Group.

For the new market of aromatic chemicals, the Group newly built an
annual processing capacity of 0.36 million tons of crude benzene
hydrogenation and renovated an annual processing capacity of 0.20
million tons crude benzene hydrogenation into a single production base
with obvious scale advantages and significant comprehensive benefits,
resulting in annual processing capacity of 0.56 million tons in total in
Tangshan Production Base. This further strengthens the Group’s leading
position as the world’s largest processor of coking crude benzene and
empowers the Group with greater influence and competitiveness in the
benzene hydrogenation market.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BIEE LT ()

Hydrogen-energy products

Apart from the existing business segments, the Group actively
participated into the hydrogen industrialization plan in Hebei Dingzhou,
Inner Mongolia Huhhot and Hebei Xingtai, China. The Group aimed at
creating a clean and low-carbon hydrogen energy supplier. Focusing
on the rapid development of hydrogen energy industry in Beijing-Tianjin-
Hebei area, the Group is committed to develop from production, storage,
transportation, hydrogenation to usage together with radiation of intelligent
supply of hydrogen to the whole country with advanced technology and
more customer-oriented services.

In 2023, Risun Hydrogen Energy successfully passed the “Low Carbon
Hydrogen, Clean Hydrogen and Renewable Hydrogen Standards and
Evaluation” certification of the National Hydrogen Energy and Fuel Cell
Vehicle Demonstration Evaluation Platform, where the Group became the
first domestic enterprise to officially obtain clean hydrogen certification for
demonstration city clusters.

Capital Market

During the Reporting Period, the number of shares of the Company held
through Hong Kong Stock Connect was approximately 300 million shares.
This reflected the market confidence in the Company with regard to its
long-term strategy and development. The Group also strengthened the
team of equity market department in China and Hong Kong in order to
continuously promote the Company to investors in different countries and
areas, including the Middle East.

In November 2023, the Company was also included in MSCI Global
Small Cap Indexes — China. The Group believes that the inclusion of
the Company in various well-known indexes reflects the confidence
of the equity capital market in the Group’s business performance and
development prospects.

Environmental Protection

During the Reporting Period, Hebei China Coal Risun Energy Co., Ltd.*(;/]
1t BB B5 B8 JR B BR A A1) and Cangzhou Risun Chemical Co., Ltd.*(j&
M 8 5 1t T A R A al) were included in this batch of carbon dioxide
capture, utilization and storage pilot projects. It was also a province-wide
industrial green development demonstration project determined by the
Hebei Provincial Department of Industry and Information Technology.
The carbon dioxide capture facility of the Group was a capture device
and liquefaction and purification device of carbon dioxide of 7,500 ton
per annum. It was an economically feasible demonstration in the coke
industry for the reduction of carbon emission and carbon neutrality
together with new technologies of research development and storage in
order to reduce carbon emission.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

In September 2023, the Hebei Provincial Department of Industry
and Information Technology announced the 2023 provincial green
manufacturing list in Hebei Province. Cangzhou Risun Chemical Co.,
Ltd*CE N BEE L TH R A a]), by virtue of its outstanding achievements
and results of green development were selected as provincial green
factories in Hebei Province, China.

Digitalization

The Group was committed to leading the digitalization in the coke and
chemical industry by continuous innovation throughout the process
of sales-transportation-manufacturing-supply-research. The Group
continued to promote the construction and improvement of digital or
intelligent factories among the production bases of the Group with the aim
of development of “green, agglomeration, intelligence and high-end” in
the coke and chemicals industry.

Moreover, in view of the National Five-Year Plan’s focuses on digital
transformation, intelligent manufacturing, industrial Internet, big data
and information security, the Group determined to formulate its own
development in information technology and digitalization projects. By
doing so, the Group continued to get along with “completely automation
and thoroughly automation; completely informatization and thoroughly
informatization” as well as industrial Internet, intelligent manufacturing
together with the use of automatic equipment and automatic control
system.

DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY

Founded in 1995 and up to 2023, the Group has a more than 28-years
history of development, where we take advantage of its leading position,
experience, technology and digitalization in coke and refined chemicals
industries to drastically expand its four existing business segments
together with hydrogen-energy products business through the following
development strategies:

(i)  expansion of business operation and production capacity (including
high value-added chemicals products and hydrogen-energy

products);

(i)  exploration of market opportunities to provide operation
management services;

(i)  development and reinforcement of long-term business relationships
with the major customers and suppliers;

(iv) expansion of domestic and international trading business;

(v)  improvement of its energy-efficiency, environmental protection and
operation safety standards; and
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I\/Ianagement Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

SR i AT ()

(vi) improvement of its core competitive strengths through automation
and information technologies.

The above development strategies are deployed based on the Group’s
competitive advantageous abilities through integrated business model
and are designed to diversify the risks throughout the production bases in
China and overseas.

Apart from the above development strategies, the Group has identified
nine competitive advantageous abilities, based on which it formulates
and executes development strategies effectively in order to enhance its
leadership in coke and refined chemicals industries and hydrogen-energy
products business:

1. Scale advantageous ability

The Group is the world’s largest independent coke producer and
supplier by production/processing volume, and enjoys economies
of scale which enables the Group to become more competitive in
terms of costs, product quality and customer relationships among
the eight production bases in China and overseas.

2. Vertically integrated advantageous ability

The vertically integrated business model helps to improve the
Group’s production efficiency and achieve synergies through
centralized and unified management and reducing exposure to
market volatility and price fluctuations.

3. Production base advantageous ability

All of the production bases are located in industrial parks approved
by local government authorities. The production bases are located
near most of the major customers and suppliers and transportation
infrastructure, such as national railway networks, major highways,
expressways and ports, which provide the Group with multiple
transportation options.

4. Cost control advantageous ability

The Group actively control the expenditures in cost of sales
and services, selling and distribution expenses, administrative
expenses, finance costs and income tax expenses. The Group
formulated a comprehensive and mature coal preparation and
blending computer system based on its IT infrastructure and
experience so as to widen the price spread between its products
and raw materials both in coke and refined chemicals.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Centralized sale and marketing advantageous ability

The Group is market-oriented and all the products are sold under
the brand “RISUN” via the centralized sale and marketing system
operated by the Group. The Group maintains low levels of finished
product inventories, adopts a “zero inventory” policy and strives
to achieve minimal inventory of the Group’s coke products. The
Group’s production is based on the periodical production plans
which are adjusted regularly pursuant to the customers’ demands.

Innovation advantageous ability

The Group tasks its research and technology personnel to focus on
the innovation of production and energy and resource efficiency to
improve its manufacturing processes and reduce the environmental
impact of its production processes. The Group also commits to
improving product added value and extending the industrial chain.

Automation and information technologies
advantageous ability

The production bases are highly automated and the Group
established a centralized system connecting its Manufacturing
Execution System (MES), Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP)
systems and the BeiDou Navigation Satellite System. The Group
also uses the mobile internet, cloud computing, internet of
things, big data and intelligent manufacturing technologies in the
operations of the Group.

Environmental safety advantageous ability

The Group adopts a number of measures and practices to reduce
the environmental impact of the operations, such as preventing soil
pollution, water pollution and air pollution in order to minimize the
negative impact on the environment.

Another key environmental measure of the Group is the Group’s
resource recovery and re-utilization. During the coking process,
the Group recover and re-utilize valuable coking by-products, from
which the Group manufactures its refined chemical products. With
the vertically integrated business model, the Group also re-utilizes
the heat from its production processes and re-use wastewater and
other fluids after appropriate treatment.

Risk mitigation advantageous ability

The Group monitors the business operations of its customers,
including but not limited to their inventory levels, production output
and sales volumes, via its on-site customer service personnel. This
enables prompt understanding of the downstream demand for
the Group’s products, adjustment of the Group’s production plans
and reduction of the risks associated with price fluctuations and
changes in demand for its products.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BIEE LT ()

BUSINESS PROSPECTS

Looking forward to the Group’s Five-Year Plan from 2021 to 2025,
the Group will make use of different ways of operation management,
merger and acquisition together with the setup of joint ventures with
well-known geographical large enterprises to increase the market share
by production/processing of coke and refined chemicals together with
hydrogen-energy products.

Coke and refined chemicals

Looking forward to 2024 onwards, the Group will continue to increase the
market share in independent coke market and certain refined chemicals
market in China and overseas by expanding the annual coke and refined
chemicals production/processing capacity, exploring and focusing on
new refined chemicals market with large potential demand and relatively
small domestic supply together with entering into different operation
management services in order to promote deep and instant market
influence and power to selling price.

The Group is in the development process of Pingxiang Production Base
in Xiangdong Industrial Park by constructing coke facilities with an annual
coke production capacity of 1.8 million tons. Moreover, the Group will
continue exploring different potential projects of mergers and acquisitions
in China and overseas. The Group will explore greater use of coals from
different countries in the world and digitization of new technologies to
maximize the price spread of the Group’s products.

Hydrogen-energy products

The Group is going to participate actively into the hydrogen
industrialization plan in different cities in the PRC, including Dingzhou,
Xingtai and Baoding in Hebei Province and Huhhot in Inner Mongolia,
etc. The Group will also investing in new hydrogen-energy products
project in Pingxiang Production Base. The Group aims at becoming
a clean and low-carbon hydrogen energy supplier. Focusing on the
rapid development of hydrogen energy industry in Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei
area, the Group is devoting efforts towards development in the areas of
production, storage, transportation, hydrogenation and utilisation. The
Group aims to provide smart hydrogen energy supply across China with
advanced technology and more customer-oriented services. In the future,
the Group will explore the opportunities to build up hydrogen-energy
mother island and energy integrated station in Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei area.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD

Subsequent to the Reporting Period, the Group entered into a
financial guarantee contract with Industrial and Commercial Bank
of China Limited, Xingtai Qiaodong Branch on January 8, 2024,
pursuant to which the Group agreed to provide financial guarantee
to the project of Risun Wei Shan with maximum liabilities amounting
to RMB698 million.

Subsequent to the Reporting Period, the Group repurchased
3,485,000 ordinary shares with aggregate consideration of
HK$10,578,000, equivalent to RMB9,616,000. As at the date of this
report, the entire ordinary shares repurchased were pending for
cancellation before the forthcoming annual general meeting in June
2024.

DEVELOPMENT, PERFORMANCE AND STATUS OF
THE BUSINESS OF THE GROUP

The following table sets forth the Group’s financial ratios as at the dates
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and for the years indicated: =
As of and for the year
ended December 31,
M12A831B R
BEZALEE
2023 2022
2023F 20224
Gross profit margin® FEFEO 7.2% 9.9%
Net profit margin® LRI 2.1% 4.3%
EBITDA margin® EBITDAFEZ&® 9.5% 10.7%
Return on equity® R # Bl TR @ 6.7% 15.3%
Gearing ratio® BARBEXS 1.8 1.6
Debt-to-asset ratio BEBER 73.1% 72.7%
Notes: Vi

Calculated by dividing gross profit by revenue for the year.
Calculated by dividing profit by revenue for the year.

Calculated by dividing earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and
amortization (“EBITDA”) by revenue for the year.

Calculated by dividing profit attributable to owners for the year by equity
attributable to owners as of the end of the year.

Calculated by dividing total interest-bearing borrowings by total equity as of
the end of the year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EEEMNREST(E)

FINANCIAL REVIEW B %5 [

The following table sets forth our total revenue and gross profit by TREINBEMZREH D HE OB RERE
business segment (excluding the inter-segment revenue): (T BES k) -

For the year ended December 31, 2023

220235 12A3 ALER
Coke and
coking Refined
chemicals chemicals Operation Property
manufacturing  manufacturing  management Trading  development Total
ERREM LA
EREE ERLE EgER g% ESES st
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000

ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR

Total revenue Blm 18,077,005 18,680,876 2,016,851 7,168,375 122,789 46,065,896
Gross profit £ 1,640,778 1,360,101 17,940 282,753 233718 3,324,950

For the year ended December 31, 2022

HENXF12A31BILEE
Coke and
coking Refined
chemicals chemicals Operation
manufacturing manufacturing management Trading Total
ERREL BT
ERtE EmiE BEER g% &t
RMB000 RMB1000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000

NEETT NEETT NEETT NEETT NEETT

Total revenue Blrss 16,368,438 15,430,291 116,906 11,223,815 43,139,449
Gross profit EH 2,475,714 1,072,403 17962 709,242 4,275,321
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

The following discussion addresses the principal trends that have
affected our results of operations during the Reporting Period.

(a)

Revenue

Revenue for the Year increased to RMB46,065.9 million when
compared with RMB43,139.4 million for for the year ended
December 31, 2022 (“Last Period” or “Last Year”).

Revenue from coke and coking chemicals manufacturing business
increased by RMB1,708.6 million or 10.4% from RMB16,368.4
million for the Last Year to RMB18,077.0 million for the Year,
primarily due to a cumulative increase in revenue of RMB5,221.7
million since Risun China Gas was included in the scope of
consolidation on June 1, 2023. However, the decrease in average
selling price of coke and coking chemicals resulted in a cumulative
decrease of RMB3,513.1 million in revenue of the original scope of
consolidation.

Revenue from refined chemical manufacturing business increased
by RMB3,250.6 million or 21.1% from RMB15,430.3 million for the
Last Year to RMB18,680.9 million for the Year, primarily due to an
increase in sales revenue of RMB2,778.4 million since Cangzhou
CPL phase two completed construction and commenced operations
and a cumulative increase in revenue of RMB592.7 million from
the synthetic ammonia and methanol production lines since Risun
China Gas was included in the scope of consolidation since June
2023.

Revenue from the operation management business increased by
RMB1,900.0 million or 1,625.2% from RMB116.9 million for the
Last Year to RMB2,016.9 million for the Year, primarily due to the
addition of the Shandong crude benzene hydrogenation project
and the Jilin aniline project.

Revenue from the trading business decreased by RMB4,055.4
million or 36.1% from RMB11,223.8 million for the Last Year
to RMB7,168.4 million for the Year, primarily due to the Group
reducing simple trading businesses resulting in a decrease in
business volume, as well as a decrease in the unit price of coke
and coal, being the main trading products, which ultimately resulted
in a decrease in revenue from the trading business for the Year.
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(b) Cost of sales

Cost of sales for the Year increased to RMB42,740.9 million when
compared with RMB38,864.1 million for the Last Year.

Cost of sales from coke and coking chemicals manufacturing
business increased by RMB2,543.5 million or 18.3% from
RMB13,892.7 million for the Last Year to RMB16,436.2 million for
the Year, primarily due to a cumulative increase in cost of sales
of RMB4,867.0 million since Risun China Gas was included in the
scope of consolidation on June 1, 2023. However, the decrease
in average selling price of coal, being the primary raw material,
resulted in a cumulative decrease of RMB2,323.5 million in cost of
sales of the original scope of consolidation.

Cost of sales from refined chemical manufacturing business
increased by RMB2,962.9 million or 20.6% from RMB14,357.9
million for the Last Year to RMB17,320.8 million for the Year,
primarily due to an increase in cost of sales of RMB2,418.3 million
since Cangzhou CPL phase two completed construction and
commenced operations and a cumulative increase in cost of sales
of RMB423.5 million since the synthetic ammonia and methanol
production lines of Risun China Gas was included in the scope of
consolidation in June 2023.

Cost of sales from the operation management business increased
by RMB1,900.0 million or 1,921.1% from RMB98.9 million for the
Last Year to RMB1,998.9 million for the Year, primarily due to the
addition of the Shandong crude benzene hydrogenation project
and the Jilin aniline project.

Cost of sales from the trading business decreased by RMB3,629.0
million or 34.5% from RMB10,514.6 million for the Last Year
to RMB6,885.6 million for the Year, primarily due to the Group
reducing simple trading businesses resulting in a decrease in
business volume, as well as a decrease in the unit price of coke
and coal, being the main trading products, which ultimately resulted
in a decrease in cost of sales from the trading business for the Year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
BEEN WA (E)
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(c)

Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Gross profit and gross profit margin

The Group’s total gross profit decreased by approximately
RMB950.3 million or 22.2% from approximately RMB4,275.3 million
for the Last Year to approximately RMB3,325.0 million for the Year.
Gross profit margin decreased from 9.9% for the Last Year to 7.2%
for the Year.

Gross profit from the coke and coking chemical manufacturing
business decreased by RMB834.9 million or 33.7% from
RMB2,475.7 million for the Last Year to RMB1,640.8 million for
the Year. Gross profit margin for the coke and coking chemical
manufacturing business decreased from 15.1% for the Last Year
to 9.1% for the Year, primarily due to the decrease in the margin
between coke selling and coal buying.

Gross profit from the refined chemical manufacturing business
increased by RMB287.7 million or 26.8% from RMB1,072.4 million
for the Last Year to RMB1,360.1 million for the Year. Gross profit
margin for the refined chemical manufacturing business increased
from 7.0% for the Last Year to 7.3% for the Year, primarily due to
Cangzhou CPL phase two completed construction and commenced
operations, wherein the process for cyclohexanone, being its raw
material, has been changed from oxidation to hydration, leading
to a decrease in costs, resulting in an increase in gross profit of
RMB360.1 million, and gross profit margin has also increased.

Gross profit from the operation management business maintained
at approximately RMB18.0 million for the Year and the Last Year.
Gross profit margin for the operation management business
decreased from 15.4% for the Last Year to 0.9% for the Year,
primarily due to the addition of commissioned processing model
besides charging management service fees for the operation
management business, which resulting in an increase in revenue,
however due to a narrow price spread between raw materials and
finished goods, gross profit contributed was limited, in turn leading
to a lower gross profit margin for the operation management
business segment.

Gross profit from the trading business decreased by RMB426.4
million or 60.1% from RMB709.2 million for the Last Year to
RMB282.8 million for the Year. Gross profit margin for the trading
business decreased from 6.3% for the Last Year to 3.9% for the
Year, primarily due to the decrease of trading volume and lower
price spread.

(c)
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
BEEN WA (E)

(d) Other income

The Group’s other income consists primarily of Value-added Tax
(“VAT") concession, interest income, income from production waste
sales, and government grants received from several government
authorities as subsidies for the Group’s contribution to the
environment protection, energy conservation recycling resources,
relocation, purchase of land use rights, and infrastructure
construction. Other income increased by RMB233.2 million or 85.0%
from RMB274.4 million for the Last Year to RMB507.6 million for the
Year mainly because during the Year, certain subsidiaries of the
Company are qualified as “Advanced Manufacturing Enterprises”,
which are eligible for an extra 5% VAT deduction based on their
deductible input VAT during the period from January 1, 2023 to
December 31, 2027.

(e) Other gains and losses
The Group had other gains of RMB332.4 million for the Year
primarily due to the three following reasons:

1. the difference between the fair value and book value of the
original 55% equity of Risun China Gas was recognized as
gain on remeasurement of equity interest of RMB251.2 million.

2. during the Year, the Group finalized the negotiation and
entered into a settlement agreement with a contractor, which
reduce the payment RMB87.6 million and purchase of certain
property, plant and equipment valued at RMB67 million. Thus
a decrease in provision amounting to RMB154.6 million was
recognized during the Year.

3. a compensation receivable from the local authority amounting
to RMB68.4 million in relation to the termination of a project
under development due to a change of regulation in 2021.

(f) Impairment losses under ECL model, net of reversal
The Group had impairment losses under ECL model, net of
RMB111.2 million for the Year, primarily due to the Group’s increase
in certain receivables.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses increased by RMB199.8 million
or 20.3% from RMB985.3 million for the Last Year to RMB1,185.1
million for the Year. The main reason was that transportation costs
increased by RMB129.8 million. Due to the Group’s consolidation
of Risun China Gas, the business and trade volume increase
compared with last year.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses increased by RMB127.9 million or
13.7% from RMB932.9 million for the Last Year to approximately
RMB1,060.8 million for the Year. Such increase was mainly
attributable to the increase of RMB56.8 million as a result of the
consolidation of Risun China Gas upon completion of capital
injection and opening L/C commission increased RMB62.3 million
compared with the Last Year.

Finance costs

Finance costs primarily consist of interest expenses on bank loans,
other loans and finance expenses on discount of bills receivables.
The Group’s finance costs increased by RMB352.4 million or 35.3%
from RMB997.3 million for the Last Year to RMB1,349.7 million for
the Year. The increase was mainly due to an increase in other loans
and L/C discount fee during the Reporting Period.

Share of results of associates

Share of results of associates increased from a profit of RMB59.1
million for the Last Year to a profit of RMB89.6 million for the Year,
primarily due to the increase in profits shared from Yangmei Group
Shouyang Jingfu Coal Co., Ltd.* (G £ ESE S EEEERAR]) of
RMB38.4 million during the Reporting Period.

Share of results of joint ventures

Share of results of joint ventures decreased by RMB289.5 million or
68.3% from RMB423.5 million for the Last Year to RMB134.0 million
for the Year, primarily due to the decrease in profit shared from
China Coal Risun Energy Limited* (e it 2 E B F5 6E IR B BR 2 &]) of
RMB210.0 million during the Reporting Period.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
BEEN WA (E)

Profit before taxation

As a result of the foregoing factors, the profit before taxation
decreased by RMB1,521.8 million or 69.1% from RMB2,203.5
million for the Last Year to RMB681.7 million for the Year.

Income tax expense

The Group incurred income tax credit of RMB307.8 million for the
Year and income tax expense of RMB344.0 million for the Last
Year respectively at effective tax rates of -45.2% and 15.6%. The
decrease in income tax expense is mainly because during the
Reporting Period, three of the Group’s wholly-owned subsidiaries
which were acquired through acquisition of Wuhu Shunri Xinze
Equity Investment Partnership (LP)*(ZEMIE B Z2RERE S B
#(BRA%)) (“Wuhu Shunri”) in 2021, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, transferred all their businesses to another wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, and completed the necessary
corporate tax closing procedures in compliance with the relevant
rules and regulations and deregistered in July 2023. The Group
recognized a reversal of income tax payable amounting to
RMB365,824,000 in profit and loss based on the outcome of the
corporate tax closing procedures.

Profit for the year

For the Year, the Group recorded a net profit of RMB989.5 million,
which represented a decrease of RMB870.0 million or 46.8% as
compared to the net profit of RMB1,859.5 million for the Last Year.
Earnings per share — Basic

The basic earnings per share for the Year and the Last Year was

RMB19.46 cents and RMB41.86 cents respectively. The decrease
in basic earnings per share was due to the decrease in net profit.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group’s primary uses of cash are operating costs, capital
expenditures and repayment of debts in the PRC. To date, the Group
has funded the investments and operations principally with cash from
operations and debt financing from banks and other financial institutions.
The Group believes that the liquidity requirements will be satisfied through
a combination of cash flows generated from the operating activities, bank
loans and other borrowings. Any significant decrease in the demand
for, or pricing of, the products and services, or a significant decrease in
the availability of bank loans, may adversely impact the liquidity. As at
December 31, 2023, cash and cash equivalents held by the Group were
mainly cash in the banks and on hand denominated in RMB and deposits
denominated in RMB that are readily convertible into cash.

The following table sets forth the cash flows for the periods indicated:

BEE W MO (8)
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For the year ended
December 31,

BZE12A31BLEE
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTFT ARETFT
Net cash generated from operating activities KEEBMER S FE 2,204,369 3,163,708
Net cash used in investing activities WEEESAR S F5E (1,712,609) (9,180,633)
Net cash (used in) from financing activities REEE(FTA) MBS F58 (455,155) 4,925,931
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash ReERRSZEEBWFEMCRLD)
equivalents 36,605 (1,090,994)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning FONRERREEEY
of the year 1,200,669 2,280,914
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes b S B ) S 2 1,996 10,749
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year FRAGERSEEY 1,239,270 1,200,669

(a) Net cash generated from operating activities

For the Year, our net cash generated from operating activities
was approximately RMB2,204.4 million and was lower than our
net cash generated from operating activities for the Last Year by
approximately RMB959.3 million, primarily due to the group paid
more trade and other payables.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EREHR AW (E)

(b) Net cash used in investing activities

For the Year, our net cash used in investing activities decreased
from approximately RMB9,180.6 million for the Last Year to
approximately RMB1,712.6 million primarily due to the following four

reasons:

1. payment of RMB2,901.0 million for acquisition of Wuhu Shunri
in Shandong for the Last Year;

2. net cash inflow of RMB1,358.9 million from the acquisition of
Risun China Gas during the Reporting Period;

o an increase of RMB1,063.9 million in disposal of financial
assets at FVTPL the Reporting Period as compared to the

Last Period; and

4, a decrease of RMB2,332.6 million in expenditure on
construction of fixed assets during the Reporting Period as
compared to the Last Period.

(c) Net cash used in/generated from financing activities

For the Year, our net cash used in financing activities was
RMB455.2 million as compared to a net cash inflow from financing
activities of RMB4,925.9 million for the Last Year. The decrease in
net cash flow from financing activities was mainly because of the
net increase the repayment of bank and other loans.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
BEEN WA (&)

INDEBTEDNESS 818
(a) Borrowings (a)

KRB ERAARBEHE - TRHEIIE
Z PR BB ERTTER

Most of our borrowings are denominated in RMB. The following
table shows our bank borrowings as of the dates indicated:

As at December 31,

#Z=12A31H
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FIT AREFT
Bank loan, secured HRITER - B 8,193,983 9,532,525
Bank loan, unsecured RITER - EIEIH 8,163,912 4,677,063
16,357,895 14,209,588
Other loans, secured HEiER - B 4,990,986 3,188,292
Other loans, unsecured H B I 417,728 298,183
5,408,714 3,486,475
Discounted bills financing BN EEmE 3,939,034 2,532,610
Total “aEt 25,705,643 20,228,673
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB in million %  RMB in million %
ARKEEET % AREFET %
Fixed rate bank and other TEBIRIT R EA AR
borrowings 18,363.5 1.70 ~ 9.00 13,306.7 1.17 ~ 12.00
Floating rate bank and other 2 BR1T R E B
borrowings 7,342.1 1.58 ~ 8.40 6,922.0 1.58 ~8.00
Total #ast 25,705.6 20,228.7

B EEYE 2022 £12 A318H
AR 2028 I AR EEBSEB IS
271% » TE E 2023512 A31B M4
ARBES7TEIL - TEARBTERR
HEFm o

The total borrowings increased by approximately RMB5.5 billion, or
27.1%, to approximately RMB25.7 billion as of December 31, 2023
from RMB20.2 billion as of December 31, 2022, primarily due to an
increase in bank loans and other loans.
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I\/Ianagement Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEEN®RE

DT (&)

The borrowings denominated in currencies other than the functional
currencies of respective entities are set out below:

EEER SN E R SHES

As at December 31,

HZE12A318
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB in million RMB in million
AR¥EET ANREEET
Usb x7T 1,105.3 1,883.8
JPY At 0.7 2.1
Total 4az 1,106.0 1,885.9

During the Year, in respect of bank loans with a carrying amount of
RMB719,997,000 as at December 31, 2023, the Group breached
certain of the terms of the bank loan, which are primarily related
to the net debt to EBITDA ratio of the Group and such bank loans
was classified as current liabilities as at December 31, 2023. Up to
the date of this report, the Group is still negotiating with banks and
the Directors believe that the negotiations with banks will ultimately
reach a successful conclusion.

Taking into account the internal and external financial resources
available to the Group, including but not limited to internally
generated cash flows, bank balances and external bank loans with
its successful renewal rates, the Group anticipates that sufficient
working capital for its present requirements and there is no threat
to the continuing operations of the Group for at least the next 12
months.

Lease liabilities

Our Group had the following total future minimum lease payments as
of the dates indicated:

RAFE  AEBER T R2023F12
A31AERAEAARE719,997,0007T
RIRITTERNE TER - EXZHAE
B ER TR ST E R AT A
JE(EBITDA)XR B - R2023F 12 431
H BEEFESBRINEEE - 52
AmE B - AREEERITHORAIE
ETREFHERSFERITHORARK
@/ﬁmn ©

ST RASE A FANRINBTIEER
BIEETRAABEENR SR - ]/IT
HEHREKIBEENIMNPIRITER - A&
BB EE NS EES M HER

R BOERKA2M[EARNEEEH

HEEETEEENE -
HERE

REBR AR A R AR R REEERK
mEm

/

As at December 31,

HZ12A318
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFT
Lease liabilities HEAE 599,895 473,234
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

As of December 31, 2023, the Group did not have any significant
outstanding off-balance sheet guarantees, interest rate swap transactions,
foreign currency and commaodity forward contracts or other off-balance
sheet arrangements. The Group does not engage in trading activities
involving non-exchange traded contracts. In the course of the business
operations, the Group does not enter into transactions involving, or
otherwise form relationships with, unconsolidated entities or financial
partnerships that are established for the purpose of facilitating off-balance
sheet arrangements or other contractually narrow or limited purposed.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD, MATERIAL
ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATED COMPANIES AND JOINT VENTURES,
AND FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS

On May 26, 2023, three shareholders of Risun China Gas entered into
the capital increase agreement, pursuant to which the three shareholders
agreed to make additional non-pro rata contribution of RMB800 million to
Risun China Gas by way of cash injection. In particular, Huhhot Zhongran
Urban Gas Development Co., Ltd.* (“Huhhot Zhongran”) (W Al & 4% & 1A
WA R EEE AR 2AR]), Risun Group Limited* (“Risun Group”, an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) and Tianjin Baisen Energy
Technology Co., Ltd.* (“Tianjin Baisen”) (X;Z B ZE R R BR A A))
subscribed for RMB133.12 million, RMB600.32 million and RMB66.56
million, respectively, of the increased registered capital. Risun China Gas
is now owned by Huhhot Zhongran, Risun Group and Tianjin Baisen as to
22%, 67% and 11%, respectively, and Risun China Gas became a non-
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group. The transaction was completed
by June 30, 2023. Pursuant to the capital increase agreement, an
additional compensation payable by the Group to Huhhot Zhongran and
Tianjin Baisen will be subject to negotiation and agreement by all parties
involved. As at the date of this report, the negotiation is still ongoing. The
contingent consideration payable amounting to RMB66 million represents
the best estimate by the Directors. Please refer to the Company’s
announcement dated May 28, 2023 for details.

On June 25, 2023, the Group entered into an agreement with BOCOM
Financial Asset Investment Co., Ltd. (independent third party of the
Company and its connected persons), pursuant to which the counterparty
injected RMB500 million in cash to the Group’s subsidiary, Dingzhou
Tianlu New Energy Limited* (& M X & ¥ 82 )8 & R 2 7). Upon the
completion of the capital injection, the proportion of ownership and voting
rights held by the counter-party were 34.90%.

Save as disclosed in this report, there were no other significant
investments held, no material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries,
associated companies and joint ventures during the Reporting Period. As
at December 31, 2023, the Board has not authorized any plan for other
material investments or additions of capital assets.
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Report of the Board of Directors
EERWL

The Board hereby presents their report together with the Consolidated
Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2023 to the
Shareholders.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Operating Environment and Prospects

Please refer to “Management Discussion and Analysis — Overview” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis — Business Review” in this annual
report for details.

Laws, Regulatory and Compliance Matters

Directors have confirmed that during the Reporting Period, the Group
had complied with the applicable laws and regulations in all material
respects, and did not have any incidents of material non-compliance, and
had obtained all relevant permits, approval documents, qualifications,
authorizations and approvals upon examination material to the business
operations of the Group.

Significant Subsequent Events

a. Subsequent to the Reporting Period, the Group entered into a
financial guarantee contract with Industrial and Commercial Bank
of China Limited, Xingtai Qiaodong Branch on January 8, 2024,
pursuant to which the Group agreed to provide financial guarantee
to the project of Risun Wei Shan with maximum liabilities amounting
to RMB698 million.

b. Subsequent to the Reporting Period, the Group repurchased
3,485,000 ordinary shares with aggregate consideration of
HK$10,578,000, equivalent to RMB9,616,000. As at the date of this
report, the entire ordinary shares repurchased were pending for
cancellation before the forthcoming annual general meeting in June
2024.

Details of significant subsequent events are provided in Note 48 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Report of the Board of Directors (Con

Relationship with Employees

The Group recruits new employees based on specific job requirements,
our resources and needs from time to time. The Group provides technical
as well as operational training for our employees and the Group has
tailored specific courses for our management personnel in order to build
a competent team.

As of December 31, 2023, the Group had 7,601 full-time employees
(2022: 7,434) of which 17.4% were female. Most of the Group’s senior
management members and employees are based in Beijing, Hebei
province and Inner Mongolia Autonomous Region after the capital
increase of Huhhot Risun China Gas Energy Limited (“Risun China Gas”)
by the Group in May 2023.

The Group enters into a standard employment contract with each of the
full-time employees. Compensation for the employees includes basic
wages, variable wages, bonuses and other benefits. For the years ended
December 31, 2022 and 2023, staff costs of the Group amounted to
RMB995.5 million and RMB1,150.6 million respectively.

The Company’s remuneration policy is set out by the Remuneration
Committee on the basis of the employees’ merit, qualifications
and competence. The emoluments of the Directors are set by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to among others, salaries
paid by comparable companies as well as time commitment and
responsibilities and employment conditions of the Group.

None of the directors waived or agreed to waive any remuneration and
there were no emoluments paid by the Group to any of the directors as
an inducement to join, or upon joining the Group, or as compensation for
loss of office.

The Group has adopted the Share Option Scheme to motivate and reward
its Directors and eligible employees. For further details, please refer to the
section headed “Report of the Board of Directors — Share Option Scheme”
of this annual report.
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During the Reporting Period, the Group had not experienced any
interruptions to the operations caused by major labor disputes and there
were no complaints or claims from our employees which had a material
adverse effect on our business. The Directors believe that the Group
have a good relationship with its employees. During the Reporting Period,
the Group had no major labor disputes which might produce significant
impact of the normal business and operation of the Group.

Relationship with Customers

The Group sells the coke primarily to customers in the iron and steel
industry in the PRC, exports a portion to overseas customers and sells
the coke to overseas customers manufactured at Sulawesi production
base in Indonesia. The Group sells the refined chemicals primarily to
manufacturers and traders in the chemical industry in the PRC and
exports a portion to overseas customers. The end customers may
purchase directly from the Group or purchase through their affiliated
trading arms. The customers for trading business are primarily companies
in the iron and steel, non-ferrous, coking and chemical industries.
During the Reporting Period, the Group did not adopt any distributorship
business models in selling the products.

The Group maintains long-term cooperative relationships with the major
customers. Some of them have maintained business relationships with
the Group for more than five years, of which the customer with the longest
relationship has maintained a business relationship with us for 18 years.
Furthermore, we have entered into long- term framework agreements with
certain of our customers. The products supplied under such long-term
framework agreements mainly include coke, benzene, caprolactam and
methanol.

During the Reporting Period, the revenue attributable to the Group’s top
five largest customers was approximately RMB9,191.5 million, accounting
for 20.0% of the total revenue of the Group (2022: RMB8,653.9 million
or 20.0%). The revenue attributable to the single largest customer was
approximately RMB3,811.5 million, accounting for approximately 8.3%
of the total revenue of the Group (2022: RMB2,274.6 million or 5.27%).
The top five customers of the Group during the Reporting Period were
independent third parties, and none of our Directors, their associates or
any Shareholder (who, to the knowledge of our Directors, owned more
than 5% of the Company’s share capital as of December 31, 2023) had
any interest in any of the top five largest customers of the Group during
the Reporting Period.
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Relationship with Suppliers

The principal raw material used for the coke and coking chemical
production is coking coal. The Group mainly sources the coking coal from
external suppliers. The major types of coking coal the Group purchased
included hard coking coal, fat coal, gas coal, 1/3 coking coal and lean
coal. The Group purchased a large proportion of the coking coal from
suppliers in Shanxi Province and Hebei Province, China. If overseas
coking coal is more competitively priced than domestic coking coal,
the Group will source coking coal from countries such as Mongolia and
Australia.

For the production of the refined chemicals, the principal raw materials
are coking chemicals, which include crude benzene, coal tar and coke
oven gas. Coking chemicals are by-products in the coking process. The
Group mainly sources such raw materials externally from the suppliers of
the Group, but also sources a portion of such raw materials by utilizing
by-products from the coke production facilities at Dingzhou Production
Base and Huhhot Production Base and from CNC Risun Coking at Xingtai
Production Base.

The Group generally enters into annual procurement arrangements
with key suppliers. These supply arrangements specify the indicative
quantities of raw materials that the Group plans to purchase in the
relevant period and are subject to separate purchase orders to confirm
delivery. The suppliers typically granted the Group credit terms of 30 to
90 days. Pursuant to these arrangements, the procurement department
purchases the required raw materials from suppliers in accordance with
production plans prepared by the production department. Generally,
purchase prices are based on prevailing market prices at the time of
delivery of the raw materials. The Group makes and implements our raw
material procurement plans in line with the production plans which are
primarily based on periodical review of customers’ orders in order to
reduce the Group’s exposure to market price fluctuations of raw materials.
The internal market analysis reports generated by the market department
also provide us with a basis for determining procurement prices.
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The Group has a broad base of suppliers and do not depend on any
single supplier. For instance, the Group procured coking coals from over
100 suppliers in the PRC and overseas during the Reporting Period. A
broad base of suppliers help enables the Group to procure a wide range
of quality raw materials at competitive prices. Though the Group did not
enter into any long-term agreements with our suppliers of raw materials,
the Group maintained long-term cooperative relationships with the key
suppliers. Some of them have maintained business relationships with the
Group for more than five years.

The subsidiaries of the Group engaged in the production business have
passed the ISO 9001:2015 Quality Management System standard which
imposes detailed supplier selection and assessment procurement. The
selection and assessment of the suppliers include:

° the quality and specifications of the raw materials they offer;
° the size and locality of their operations; and
° their past transaction records and terms of trade with the Group.

During the Reporting Period, the purchases from the Group’s top
five suppliers were approximately RMB16,940.5 million, accounting
for approximately 39.6% of the cost of sales of the Group (2022:
RMB12,517.1 million or 32.21%). The purchases from the single largest
supplier were approximately RMB5,038.5 million, accounting for
approximately 11.8% of the cost of sales of the Group (2022: RMB3,242.5
million or 8.34%). Except for CNC Risun Coking disclosed in Note 22
the Consolidated Financial Statements, the top five largest suppliers of
the Group are independent third parties, and none of Directors, their
associates or any Shareholder (to the knowledge of Directors, owned
more than 5% of the Company’s share capital as of December 31, 2023)
had any interest in any of the top five largest raw material and equipment
suppliers during the Reporting Period.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not experience any material
shortages or delays in the supply of the raw materials, and the Group
does not foresee any material shortages or delays in the procurement of
raw materials in the future. The Group closely monitors the inventory levels
of the raw materials, and the Group adjusts the procurement volumes
accordingly in anticipation of periods in which the Group may encounter
raw material supply shortages or product demand increases.
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Report of the Board of Directors (Con

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

The audited results of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended December 31, 2023 are stated on pages 104 to 105 of the
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive
Income. The financial positions of the Company and its subsidiaries as at
December 31, 2023 are stated on pages 106 to 107 of the Consolidated
Statement of Financial Position. The consolidated cash flows of the
Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended December 31, 2023 are
stated on pages 110 to 112 of the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow.

The discussion and analysis on the Group’s business performance and
financial position for the current year are stated under “Management
Discussion and Analysis” on pages 24 to 49 of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

As of December 31, 2023, the total issued share capital of the Company
was HK$442,412,600 divided into 4,424,126,000 shares of HK$0.1
each. During the Reporting Period, the Company repurchased, by way
of on-exchange trading, 12,591,000 shares of the Company at the total
consideration of approximately HK$40,526,000. Such repurchased
shares had been canceled as at the Latest Practicable Date. Details of
movements in the Company’s share capital during the Reporting Period
are set out in note 36 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF THE
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Other than the repurchase of shares disclosed above, the Company and
its subsidiaries did not purchase, sell or redeem any of the Company’s
securities during the Reporting Period.

DEBENTURE ISSUED
The Group has not issued any debentures during the Reporting Period.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHT TO ACQUIRE

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or applicable laws of the Cayman Islands where the Company
is incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new Shares on
a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief or exemption available to the
shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s securities.
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RESERVE

The details in relation to the changes in the reserve of the Company for
the current year are stated under Note 37 of the Consolidated Financial
Statements. The details in relation to the reserve available for distributing
to the Shareholders are stated under Note 37 of the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The Group’s property, plant and equipment consist mainly of machinery
and equipment. The Group purchased machinery and equipment mainly
with cash from operations and debt financing from banks and other
financial institutions. Machinery and equipment are primarily the various
types of machineries and equipment at the Group’s production site at
the seven production bases in China, including Xingtai Production Base,
Dingzhou Production Base, Tangshan Production Base, Cangzhou
Production Base, Huhhot Production base, Yuncheng Production Base
and Dongming Production Base together with the overseas production
base in Indonesia.

As of December 31, 2023, our property, plant and equipment amounted
to approximately RMB26,897 million, with a year-to-year growth of
21.3%. This was mainly because of the addition of RMB1,934.3 million
in property, plant and equipment, the addition of RMB4,969.4 million by
capital injection to Risun China Gas in May 2023 and partially offset by
the depreciation of RMB2,075.0 million.

DIVIDENDS AND DIVIDEND POLICY

After obtaining the shareholders’ approval at the 2022 annual general
meeting on May 30, 2023, the Company paid a final dividend of RMB0.9
cents per share (tax inclusive) for the year ended December 31, 2022 in
cash to shareholders whose names appeared on the register of members
of the Company on June 20, 2023, and the final dividend was fully paid
on June 30, 2023.

On August 29, 2023, the Board declared an interim dividend for 2023
of RMB4.90 cents per share (tax inclusive) in cash to its shareholders
whose names appeared on the register of member of the Company on
September 12, 2023. The interim dividend was fully paid on October 31,
2023.
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Report of the Board of Directors (Continued)

In view of the operating results in the Year, the recent development
of China’s economy and future development needs, as well as the
willingness of sharing the results of the Group with Shareholders,
the Board recommended a final dividend of RMB1.20 cents per
share, equivalent to HK1.32 cents per share, with a total amount of
approximately RMB53,090,000 or HK$58,510,000 for the year ended
December 31, 2023 representing no less than 30% of the profit for the
year attributable to owners of the Company. By aggregating the dividends
paid since March 2019 and current proposed final dividend for the Year,
the total amount of dividends per share was approximately RMBO0.76 or
HK$0.88, representing a return of 31.4% to the offering price of HK$2.80
at initial public offering in March 2019. Further announcements will be
made by the Company in due course regarding the details of the date of
dividend distribution and other specific arrangement.

The recommendation of payment and the amount of any future dividends
will be at the absolute discretion of the Board and the amount of any
dividends actually distributed to the Shareholders of the Company
will depend on the Group’s results of operations, cash flows, financial
condition, payments by the Group’s subsidiaries of cash dividends to
the Company, the future prospects and other factors that the Directors
consider important. The Group expects to distribute no less than 30% of
the Group’s annual distributable earnings in every subsequent year as
dividends.

BANK AND OTHER LOANS

The details in relation to the bank and other loans of the Company and
its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2023 are stated under Note 33 of the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

There was no donation to charitable organizations by the Group during
the Reporting Period (2022: HK$1,000,000).
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

During the Reporting Period and up to the Latest Practicable Date, the
Board of Directors consisted of nine Directors, among whom, six are
Executive Directors and three are Independent Non-executive Directors.
The Directors have been appointed with a term of three years, after which
they may be re-elected.
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The information regarding the Company’s Directors are set out as follows: BRARTESTHERFHIIWOT ¢
Relationship with
Roles and Appointment Date of Joining other Directors and
Name Age Position Responsibilities Date the Group Senior Management
BHMEER
#E 3 B BERBE ZERH MAREENEH BREEENBE
Mr. Yang Xuegang 59 Executive Director, Overall management and November 8, 2007  May 12, 1995 Husband of Ms. Lu
chairman of the Board Business development of Xiaomei and father of
and chief executive the Group Mr. Yang Lu
officer
BEE%E HTEF ERgIRER  TEEMBEEEREBER 2007F11A8H 19955812 BMEREMEER
e BREEMLR
Ms. Lu Xiaomei 60 Executive Director Human resources April 1,2024 November 8, 2007 Wife of Mr. Yang Xuegang
(effective from April 1, management of the Group and mother of
2024) Mr. Yang Lu
BMER L (B20245 YES REEANERER 202454518 2007411 A8H PSHTEHEER
4B1REER) BRELHEE
Mr. Li Qinghua 60 Executive Director and Overall management of April 1, 2024 November 1, 2004 N/A
(effective from April 1, executive president of all production base
2024) the Group and management of
procurement and sales of
the Group
ZEEEE(B204F HTEFRAEENT TEE4ERENEREE . 02454518 2004F11A1H Bl
4F1BERR) & RERHEEER
Mr. Zhang Yingwei 5 Executive Director and Overall management of the ~ July 24, 2009 February 5, 1996 N/A
(resigned with effect vice president of the Tangshan Production
from April 1, 2024) Group Base and the Cangzhou
Production Base
REERE(R2024F YTESRAERAY  BUWAEEERANEEEE 2000F7A24H 19962450 Bl
4R1BREEHE) MEEEE
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Relationship with
Roles and Appointment Date of Joining other Directors and
Name Age Position Responsibilities Date the Group Senior Management
BAMESR
#H i B BERBE ZEAH MAFEERH B SREEENEE
Mr. Han Qinliang 50 Executive Director and Management of the financial, May 18, 2011 March 1, 2004 N/A
vice president of the accounting and information
Group systems of the Group
BHntE PTEFRARERAE  AEEONE @RERE 011F5A18H  2004F381A TER
GER
Mr. Wang Fengshan 65 Executive Director and Management of procurement  September 29, March 1, 2004 N/A
(resigned with effect vice president of the and sales of the Group 2018
from April 1, 2024) Group
IREWFEE(R20245 YTESRASERAY  AEERBREEER 201897298 2004F3A1R TR
1RIBEED)
Mr. Wang Nianping 61 Executive Director and Legal and risk management  September 29, February 22, 2011 N/A
vice president of the of the Group 2018
Group
TEVFEE WTESRARERSH  AERAERERER 20185690298 201152A22R 2 lii
Mr. Yang Lu 33 Executive Director Management of the import, ~ September 29, November 1, 2013 Son of Mr. Yang Xuegang
export and domestic 2018 and Ms. Lu Xiaomei
trading business of our
Group
BREE HiTEs ERASEMENORER 2018795208  2013F11A1A SEMAERB MR T
BH%% M5RF
Mr. Kang Woon 61 Independent Non-executive - Oversight of the compliance  September 29, November 11, 2011 N/A
Director and corporate governance 2018
matters of the Group and
provision of independent
advice to the Board
FEEE BT8R EEASENARRAEER 201859A208  2011F11A11R TR
SH TREFEREEY
ER
Mr. Yu Kwok Kuen Harry 54 Independent Non-executive  Same as above September 29, September 29, 2018 N/A
Director 2018
RERTE BT8R 5is 2018597298 2018F9A29A TR
Mr. Wang Yinping 63 Independent Non-executive - Same as above September 29, September 29, 2018 N/A
Director 2018
ok BT8R 5is 2018597298 2018F9A29A TR
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The information regarding the Company’s senior management are set out

FAARRSRERENERETINAT

as follows:
Relationship with
Roles and Appointment Date of Joining other Directors and
Name Age Position Responsibilities Date the Group Senior Management
BHMEER
#E 3 B AEREE ZERH MAREENEH BREEENBEE
Mr. Li Qinghua 60 Senior vice president of the - Overall management of the  June 8, 2015 November 1, 2004 N/A
Group (until March 31, Xingtai Production Base
2024)
FRERE FEERRBISH MatEERNRRER 2015567181 2004511818 TER
(EZ202453A31A1H)
Executive president Overall management of April 1, 2024
all production base
and management of
procurement and sales of
the Group
A AEELERRNEREE - 202474818
RERHEER
Mr. Zhang Jianguo 56 Vice president of the Management of the Group's ~ December 1, February 18, 2021 N/A
Group strategic investments, 2022
production and engineering
RRELE REERIEH ERASEMRERE  AE 2000512818 2021F2A18H Bl
kIR
Mr. Ho Pui Lam Joseph 43 Company secretary Management of corporate September 29, September 20, 2017 N/A
governance and company 2018
secretarial matters,
participation in the making
of material business
decisions and development
of the business strategy
famaRs A NAfE ERNRAEAARNE 2018F9A208 2017498208 @R

20 2EEREHARR
I HREE

The Company has received the confirmation of the independence issued
by the Independent Non-executive Directors in accordance with Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules and is of the opinion that all Independent Non-

executive Directors are independent of the Company.
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Report of the Board of Directors (Continued)

CHANGES IN DIRECTORS AND INFORMATION OF
DIRECTORS

During the Reporting Period and up to the Latest Practicable Date,
changes in Directors and/or their biographical details are as follows:

1. Mr. Wang Fengshan ceased to act as an executive Director of
the Company and vice president of the Group due to retirement,
effective from April 1, 2024,

2. Mr. Zhang Yingwei ceased to act as an executive Director of the
Company due to re-designation of duties, effective from April 1,
2024,

3. Ms. Lu Xiaomei has been acting as an Executive Director, effective
from April 1, 2024; and

4. Mr. Li Qinghua has been acting as an Executive Director and the
Executive President of the Group, effective from April 1, 2024.

SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS

None of the Directors of the Company has entered into a service contract
with the Company or any of its subsidiaries that may not be terminated by
the employer within one year without the payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The details of the remuneration of the Company’s Directors and five
highest paid individuals are stated under Note 12 in the Consolidated
Financial Statements. The range of remuneration of the senior
management are as follows:

ESREREERNVEH

ARBEER ARG TALTHMNFESH
RERA BB HEM 12 - SHEEBHFH
EHEWT -

Number of
Range of Remuneration (HK$) Senior Management
FNgsE 5 T) SREEBAY
0-1,000,000 -
1,000,001-1,500,000 5

1,600,001-2,000,000
2,000,001-2,500,000
6,000,001-6,500,000

Note: During the year ended December 31, 2023, two directors and one employee
were all with the same remuneration and ranked as the fifth highest paid
individuals.

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (AND THEIR
CONNECTED ENTITIES) IN MATERIAL
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save for the connected transactions between the Group and
Xuyang Holding as disclosed in the sub-section headed “Connected
Transactions” below, and the related parties transactions between the
Group and the entities controlled by Mr. Yang Xuegang as disclosed in
note 40 of the Consolidated Financial Statements, none of the Directors
(and their connected entities) is or was materially interested, directly or
indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement or contract of significance
entered into by the Company or the Controlling Shareholders or any of
their respective subsidiaries at any time during the Reporting Period or
subsisted at the end of the Reporting Period.
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Report of the Board of Directors (Continued)

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the Reporting Period, none of the Directors nor their associates
had any competing interests in such business that is in direct or indirect
competition with any of the Group’s business.

THE INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE
DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT IN THE
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed below, as of December 31, 2023, none of the Directors
and chief executives of the Company had any interests or short positions
in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which were required to be notified to the Company and the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded
in the register referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant to the
Model Code as set out in the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company
and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

sEeWmE(E
EERBTEEBOER

RBEHA - FEEFHEBRANERE
EESERXEMEBRREFNEBTERE

B EAE -

EEREREEEARSG - HER
BRESNERRXR

BRI XX FTiEEEE SN - #HE2023F12A31H -
BEEERANAEERENAQAISKEMT
AREEE (TR R EH RS EAEXVED)
MG - BERGSEST  BEREES
NMEAEIEHIEXVIBE 7R ESD BAMNE AR
AR TS SRR - SARIEE S
N HAE 160 55 3526 B rR R FZ I AT B B AL
Ml s AR » SRR LT AR A AT iR
YESFRIZBME A QR MR AT e s sk

I AN
IRE °

Approximate
percentage of
the total issued
share capital in

Name of Director Capacity/Nature of Interest Number of Shares the Company
LA AT BT

BEgE B, EnttE BRHAHE BREABENEAEIL
Mr. Yang Xuegang” Interest in controlled corporation 3,166,749,928 (L) 71.58%
e R E
Mr. Yang Lu Beneficial interest 6,230,000 (L) 0.14%
it ot TSN
Mr. Wang Feng Shan (resigned

with effect from April 1, 2024) Beneficial interest 432,000 (L) 0.01%
FRLGEAE(B2024F4 A1 HERHE) ExEEAA
Mr. Han Qinliang Beneficial interest 300,000 (L) 0.01%

BY=RLE BEEAA

L) denotes long positions
Note:

(1) Texson is wholly-owned by Mr. Yang Xuegang. Accordingly, Mr. Yang
Xuegang is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Texson.

L EREFE

fa -
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Report of the Board of Directors (Continued)
EEgHE(E)

INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN FERRRRMDAER
SHARES

So far as is known to the Directors of the Company, as of December 31, BARRIEEFIA - BIE2023F12H318 -
2023, the following persons (other than the Directors or chief executives THAL(BELARRBEZESERINRAE
of the Company) had interest and short positions in the Shares, or NElMRM @RS ??Eﬁ*ﬁ%%im%&

underlying Shares of the Company which were required to be notified BB RPIEXVEBE2 R B3N HBEME AR

to the Company pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or BiEm kKR - IRBEESF LY iﬂlﬂﬁﬂ%SSG
which were required, pursuant to section 336 of the SFO, to be recorded BETENRZIEMIEELMOERRRE -

in the register referred to therein, or which had already been notified to HEHGAR T REZTHERIRE ©

the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

Approximate
percentage of
the total issued
share capital in

Name of Shareholder Capacity/Nature of Interest Number of Shares the Company
ERAREET

EFEHR B, REEME BHE BRASEABAEIL

Texson Beneficial interest 3,166,749,928 (L) 71.58%

TR EmiEm

(L)  denotes long positions (L) ERHFE

Note: Save as disclosed above, as of December 31, 2023, the Directors of the et - Br EXXCPTIREE A SN - B E 20234 12 A 31
Company were not aware of any person (other than the Directors or chief =] $QT§$IT%H%&H/\¢(§$X
executives of the Company) who had interest or short positions in the Shares ARREEZFERIN RAR B B
or underlying Shares of the Company which were required to be notified &7 EP HERBEZEF R EGOIEXVELSE
to the Company pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or OREIDEEME AN BN ESSIAR + =X
which were required, pursuant to section 336 of the SFO, to be recorded RIEEFH K HAE 14555336 I%Zﬁuﬂfiﬁ"ni |7k
in the register referred to therein, or which had already been notified to the Frig B fEgmgons - ke mgrn
Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. R FTH R SRR ©

SHARE OPTION SCHEME B AERH S

On February 21, 2019 (the “Adoption Date”), the shareholders adopted R2019F2 A21 B ([HMBH]) - RFEM
the Share Option Scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”). RERERT B ([ BEAERT 2 ) -
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Report of the Board of Directors (Con

Purpose

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide incentives to
Participants (as defined in the following paragraph) to contribute to the
Company and motivate them to higher levels of performance, and to
enable the Company to recruit high caliber employees and attract or
retain human resources that are valuable to the Group.

Who May Join

The Board may, at its absolute discretion, offer options to subscribe for
such number of Shares in accordance with the terms set out in the Share
Option Scheme (“Options”) to any employee, executive director or non-
executive director (including independent non-executive director) of any
member of the Group (the “Participants”).

Maximum Number of Shares

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme (the “Maximum
Number of Shares”) and any other Share Option Scheme of the Group
shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of Shares in issue
immediately upon completion of the Global Offering, however, that,
subject to compliance with the Listing Rules:

(i)  the Company may, at any time as the Board may think fit, seek
approval from our Shareholders to increase the Maximum Number
of Shares, up to a maximum of 10% of the Shares in issue at the
date of approval by our Shareholders in general meeting. Options
previously granted under the Share Option Scheme or any other
scheme of the Company (including those outstanding, cancelled or
lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme
or any other scheme of the Company) shall not be counted for the
purpose of calculating the new Maximum Number of Shares. The
Company will send a circular containing the details and information
required under the Listing Rules to the Shareholders;

(i) the Company may seek separate approval from the Shareholders in
general meeting to permit the granting of Options which will result
in the number of Shares in respect of all Options granted exceeding
the then Maximum Number of Shares, provided that the Options
exceeding the then Maximum Number of Shares are granted
only to Participants specifically identified by the Company before
Shareholders’ approval is sought. The Company will send a circular
containing the details and information required under the Listing
Rules to the Shareholders;

|nued)
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Report of the Board of Directors (Continued)
EEgHE(E)

(iii)  the total maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding Options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Share Option Scheme and any other options granted and
yet to be exercised under another scheme of the Company will not
exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from time to time. No options
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option scheme of the Company if this will result in such limit
being exceeded.

Maximum Entitlement of Each Participant

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option scheme of the Company (including both exercised and outstanding
options) to each Participant in any 12-month period up to the date of
grant shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue as of the date of grant.
Any further grant of Options in excess of the 1% limit will be separately
approved by the Shareholders in general meeting with such Participant
and his associates abstaining from voting. The Company will send a
circular to the Shareholders disclosing the identity of the Participant,
the number and terms of Options to be granted to the Participant, and
containing the details and information required under the Listing Rules.
The number and terms (including the subscription price) of Options to
be granted to the Participant must be fixed before the approval of the
Shareholders and the date of the Board meeting proposing the grant will
be taken as the offer date for the purpose of calculating the subscription
price of those Options.

Granting Options to Connected Persons

Where any offer of the grant of an Option is proposed to be made to
a director (other than an independent non-executive director), chief
executive or substantial shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules)
of the Company or any of their respective associates, the offer must be
approved by the Independent Non-executive Directors (excluding any
Independent Non-executive Director who is the grantee of an Option).
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Report of the Board of Directors (Co

Where any grant of Options to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or any of their
respective associates, would result in the Shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of all Options already granted and to be granted
(including Options exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to such person
in the 12-month period up to and including the date of such grant: (i)
representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the Shares in issue; and (ii)
having an aggregate value, based on the closing price of the Shares at
the date of each grant, in excess of HK$5 million, such further grant of
Options will be subject to the issue of a circular by the Company and
approval by the Shareholders in general meeting at which all connected
persons of the Company must abstain from voting in favor at such general
meeting and/or such other requirements prescribed under the Listing
Rules from time to time. Any vote taken at the meeting to approve the
grant of such options will be taken as a poll.

Performance Target and Conditions for Vesting

No performance targets are to be achieved before an Option can be
exercised.

Subscription Price

The price per Share at which a grantee may subscribe for Shares on
the exercise of an Option shall be a price determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion and notified to a Participant, which shall be at least
the higher of:

(i)  the closing price of the Shares on the Stock Exchange as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the relevant offer
date in respect of such Option;

(i) the average closing price of the Shares on the Stock Exchange
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the
five trading days immediately preceding the relevant offer date in
respect of such Options or where the Company has been listed for
less than five trading days, the new issue price shall be used as the
closing price; or

(i) the nominal value of the Shares.
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Life of the Share Option Scheme

Subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the Share Option
Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years commencing
on the Adoption Date, i.e. February 20, 2029, after which period no further
Options will be offered but the provisions of the Share Option Scheme
shall remain in full force and effect to the extent necessary to give effect to
the exercise of any Options granted before that. Options granted before
that but not yet exercised shall continue to be valid and exercisable in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme.

Option Granted

No option has been granted under the Scheme during the Reporting
Period.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not enter into any contracts
in respect of the management and administration of all or any significant
portion of the business (except for such service contracts entered into
with the Group’s Directors and all employees) and there existed no such
contracts in respect of the management and administration of all or any
significant portion of the business (except for such service contracts
entered into with the Group’s Directors and all employees).

During the Reporting Period, the Group renewed the service contracts
with nine Directors of the Company.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group has entered into some transactions with connected persons of
the Company. In accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, such
transactions have constituted Continuing Connected Transactions of the
Company.

On December 31, 2021, the Company and Xuyang Holding renewed the
project services (“Project Services”) framework agreement, the integrated
procurement (“Integrated Procurement”) framework agreements and the
informatization services (“Informatization Services”) framework agreement
for continuing connected transactions for 2022 to 2024. On December 29,
2023, the Company entered into another two new framework agreements
for continuing connected transactions with Xuyang Holding in relation to
the property management services (“Property Management Services”)
and sales of refined chemicals products (“Sale of Refined Chemicals
Products”) to be rendered from January 1, 2024 to December 31, 2024.
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Report of the Board of Directors (Co tin

Project Services Framework Agreement

The Company renewed project services framework agreement on
December 31, 2021 with Xuyang Holding, pursuant to which Xuyang
Holding Group will provide project design, construction management and
general contracting services to the Group in relation to various initiatives
to upgrade the Group’s energy saving and environmental protection
capabilities and improve the efficiency and quality of the Group’s
existing large-scale production facilities in light of the adoption by the
relevant PRC government authorities of more stringent energy saving and
environmental protection requirements. Relevant members of Xuyang
Holding Group may enter into separate contracts with the Group to set out
specific terms and conditions of the relevant services in accordance with
the principles provided in the Project Services Framework Agreement.

The term of the Project Services Framework Agreement and any separate
contracts entered into is subject to mutual written consent of the Company
and Xuyang Holding and approval in accordance with applicable laws,
regulations and the Listing Rules. The Group is free to contract with
other independent third parties for the relevant services if Xuyang Group
is unable to provide such services or the terms that Xuyang Group
offers become less favorable to the Group than those offered by other
independent third parties.

The Group conducts a public tender process for each project for which
we require project design, construction management and general
contracting services. Interested bidders would be selected on the bases
of the prices proposed, the technical specifications achievable, the
business model and background of the bidders, payment terms proposed
and the estimated delivery dates, and the bidder offering the best overall
terms would be awarded the project. As such, the fees for the services
provided by Xuyang Holding Group under the Project Services Framework
Agreement would be in line with the prices proposed by Xuyang Holding
Group in its submitted bids, and the Group would compare such bids
with the bids submitted by other independent third parties.

The amounts of fees charged by Xuyang Holding Group with respect
to the Project Services for the Reporting Period was approximately
RMB704,868,000 (tax-exclusive).
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Integrated Procurement Framework Agreement

The Company renewed integrated procurement framework agreement
on December 31, 2021 with Xuyang Holding, pursuant to which Xuyang
Holding Group shall provide the Group with water purification chemicals
and thermal coal for power and heat generation together with steel
products, building materials and catalysts according to the Group’s
operational requirements and development strategies as well as the
market conditions in accordance with the principles set out in the
Chemicals Procurement Framework Agreement.

The term of the Integrated Procurement Framework Agreements and
any separate contracts entered into is subject to mutual written consent
of the Company and Xuyang Holding and approval in accordance with
applicable laws, regulations and the Listing Rules. The Group is free to
contract with other independent third parties for the relevant services if
Xuyang Holding Group is unable to provide such services or the terms
that Xuyang Holding Group offers become less favorable to the Group
than those offered by other independent third parties.

The amount of fees charged by Xuyang Holding Group with respect to
the integrated procurement for the Reporting Period was approximately
RMB231,756,000 (tax-exclusive).

Informatization Services Framework Agreement

The Company entered into informatization services framework agreement
on December 31, 2021 with Xuyang Holding, pursuant to which Xuyang
Holding Group shall provide the Group with related information system
building services such as the construction of, among other things, smart
logistics systems, safety and environmental protection management
platforms and big screens of command centers in the course of its daily
production and operation in accordance with the principles set out in the
Informatization Services Framework Agreement.

The term of the Informatization Services Framework Agreements and
any separate contracts entered into is subject to mutual written consent
of the Company and Xuyang Holding and approval in accordance with
applicable laws, regulations and the Listing Rules. The Group is free to
contract with other independent third parties for the relevant services if
Xuyang Holding Group is unable to provide such services or the terms
that Xuyang Holding Group offers become less favorable to the Group
than those offered by other independent third parties.

The amount of fees charged by Xuyang Holding Group with respect to
the informatization services for the Reporting Period was approximately
RMB46,761,000 (tax-exclusive).
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Report of the Board of Directors (Continued)

Property Management Services Framework Agreement

The Company entered into a property management services framework
agreement on December 29, 2023 with Xuyang Holding, pursuant to
which Xuyang Holding Group shall provide the Group with property
management services in order to meet the needs of the fast-increasing
number of the Group’s production bases and provide high-quality
and tailor-made property management services guarantees for the
Group’s production bases, including safety and security of large scaled
production bases, indoor and outdoor cleaning, greening maintenance
and planting, as well as material support such as heatstroke and cooling
prevention and holiday welfare products, etc..

The Group conducts public tender for each of the production bases that
needs property management services. Interested bidders will be selected
on the basis of the proposed prices, the achievable quality specifications,
the business model and background of the bidders, the proposed
payment terms, the estimated services dates and the best overall terms
offered by the bidders for the awarded property management services. As
such, the fees to be charged by Xuyang Holding Group for the services
provided under the property management services framework agreement
shall be in line with the prices offered by Xuyang Holding Group in its
bids, and the Group will compare such bids with those submitted by other
independent third parties.

Refined Chemicals Products Framework Agreement

The Company entered into a refined chemicals products framework
agreement on December 29, 2023 with Xuyang Holding, pursuant to
which the Company will sell refined chemicals products to Xuyang
Holding Group, including 2-Amino-2-Methyl-1-Propanol, acetone oxime,
diphenylmethane products, etc.

The prices of refined chemicals to be sold by the Company to Xuyang
Holding Group shall be determined by agreement between the parties
with reference to market unit prices determined by third-party industry, so
as to adjust the selling prices of the Group’s products in a timely manner
and shall not be less favorable than those offered by independent third-
party customers under comparable conditions.
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sEgNE(E

Confirmation by the Independent Non-Executive
Directors

The Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company have reviewed
the aforementioned continuing connected transactions and confirmed
that the transactions have been conducted:

(a) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(b)  on normal commercial terms or better; and

(c) in accordance with relevant agreement governing the relevant
transactions, on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Confirmation by the Auditor

The auditors of the Company, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, have issued a
letter to the Board, confirming that for the year ended December 31, 2023,
in respect of the aforementioned continuing connected transactions,
nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe that:

1. the transactions have not been approved by the Board of Directors;

2. the transactions were not, in all material respects, in accordance
with the pricing policies of the Group; and

3. the amount of each of the transactions has exceeded its annual cap
mentioned above.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Note 40 to the Consolidated Financial Statements discloses the related
party transactions of the Company in accordance with IFRS. The
transactions disclosed therein between the Company and the following
parties constitute connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules: Mr.
Yang Xuegang, Ms. Lu Xiaomei, Texson and the entities controlled by Mr.
Yang Xuegang. During the Reporting Period, the Company has complied
with the requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Report of the Board of Directors (Con

COMPLIANCE WITH DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

On February 20, 2019, the Controlling Shareholders have entered into
a Deed of Non-competition, pursuant to which each of the Controlling
Shareholders agreed that, except for the supply of coal as described
above, (i) he or she or it will not engage in, participate in or assist others
to engage or participate in any business that competes or is likely to
compete, directly or indirectly, with our business within the PRC, Hong
Kong or any part of the world in which any member of the Group operates,
and will procure its subsidiaries (where applicable) not to engage in any
business that competes or is likely to compete, directly or indirectly, with
our business (the “Competing Businesses”) in the PRC, Hong Kong or
any part of the world in which any member of the Group operates; and
(i) he or she or it will inform us of any new business opportunities of the
Competing Businesses, and use his or her or its best efforts to procure
such opportunities be made available to us.

Each of the Controlling Shareholders have also undertaken in the Deed of
Non-competition that during the term of such agreement, he or she or it
will not, and will procure its subsidiaries (where applicable) not to:

° directly or indirectly engage in or participate in, or assist others
to engage in or participate in, any Competing Businesses in
any form (including but not limited to investments, mergers and
acquisitions, joint ventures, cooperation agreements, partnerships,
contractual arrangements or purchases of shares of listed or private
companies) within the PRC, Hong Kong or any part of the world in
which any member of the Group operates;

° assist any entity other than the Group to engage in any Competing
Businesses within the PRC, Hong Kong or any part of the world in
which any member of the Group operates; or

° engage in any Competing Businesses (directly or indirectly) in any
manner.

The independent non-executive Directors of the Company are responsible
for examining, reviewing, considering and determining whether to adopt
and accept the new business opportunities referred to the Company by
the Controlling Shareholders.

The Controlling Shareholders have confirmed that they complied with the
Deed of Non-competition during the Reporting Period. The independent
non-executive Directors of the Company have examined and reviewed the
implementation of the Deed of Non-competition and have confirmed that,
during the Reporting Period, the Controlling Shareholders fully complied
with the deed and there had no violation of the deed.
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ERgmE(E)

DISCLOSURE UNDER RULES 13.22 OF THE LISTING
RULES

In accordance with the requirements of Rule 13.22 of the Listing Rules,
the followings were the details of financial assistance given to affiliated
companies of the Group and guarantees given for facilities granted to
affiliated companies exceeded 8% under the assets ratio defined under
Rule 14.07(1) of the Listing Rules as at December 31, 2023.

BEETRAE13.2FEEE

==

b3

B FHREIE13.221& - T 5 AE E2023
F12A31HLEFE - NEBERETHB AT
W BENAR BB AR RETELAE
RBER ETRBIE1407(NIEFTRTENE
ELL R EBRI8% 2 515 -

The Group’s Guarantees for facilities
equity interestin  Loans and Advances Interest rate  granted to the affiliated
Name of affiliated company affiliated company  to affiliated company perannum  company Notes
TEERZEREAR  ATIEHE AZEHELR
BEARER phERER DNANERRER FRE  REFRELHER it
PT. De Tian Coking Co., Ltd. 24%  USD43.82 million (equivalent to 6%  USD197.32 million (equivalent 1,4
(“De Tian Coking")@ RMB306.74 million) to RMB1,381.24 million)
ERELER)RARAEREL)? 4% 43BBEEETEER 6% 197.32BEET(1EER 1,4
AR¥306 7458 T) AR¥138124 BETT)
Risun Wei Shan New Energy (Indonesia) 51%  USD155.96 million (equivalent to 6%  USD189.74 million (equivalent 2,4
Company Limited (“Risun Wei Shan”) RMB1,091.71 million) to RMB1,328.17 million)
)
JeBR LR (AR BRAR 51% 15596ABETRENARS 6%  189.74BEE TSR 2,4
(e ) 10017158 T) AR¥13281788T)
PT. KinXiang New Energy Technologies 20% - 6% or SOFR  USD63.80 million (equivalent 3,4
Indonesia (“KinXiang New Energy”)® (12 months) + 300BP% to RMB446.60 million)
HR SRR BR AL AT 0% - 6%%12EAEERN  6380EEFT(AEH 3.4
2= RRAA N ARB44660EET)

(TSOFR)+300/E£%;

Total  RMB1,398.45 milion
B ARK1308458ET

RMB3, 156.01 million
ARH3,156 01BET
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Report of the Board of Directors (Continued)

The Group invested in De Tian Coking in 2021, and pursuant to the
Cooperation and Investment Agreement dated June 30, 2021 in relation
to the establishment of De Tian Coking, the Group has injected USD59.52
million to the share capital of De Tian Coking, and shall provide guarantees
and/or shareholder loans of no more than USD285 million to De Tian
Coking for project financing purposes. Please refer to the Company’s
announcements dated June 30, 2021 and November 12, 2021 and circular
dated December 24, 2021 for details.

The Group invested in Risun Wei Shan in 2021, and pursuant to the Joint
Venture Agreement dated July 15, 2021 in relation to the establishment of
Risun Wei Shan, the Group has injected USD128.52 million to the share
capital of Risun Wei Shan, and shall provide guarantees and/or shareholder
loans of no more than USD538 million to Risun Wei Shan for project financing
purposes. Please refer to the Company’s announcements dated July 15,
2021 and November 12, 2021 and circular dated December 24, 2021 for
details.

The Group invested in KinXiang New Energy in 2021, and pursuant to the
Joint Venture Agreement dated July 16, 2021 in relation to the establishment
of KinXiang New Energy, the Group has injected USD43.6 million to the
share capital of KinXiang New Energy, and shall provide guarantees and/or
shareholder loans of no more than USD84 million to KinXiang New Energy for
project financing purposes. Please refer to the Company’s announcement
dated November 12, 2021 and circular dated December 24, 2021 for details.

The exchange rate between USD and Renminbi for the calculation in this
table is at USD1:RMB?7.
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Report of the Board of Directors (Continued)
EEgHE(E)

Pursuant to Rule 13.22 of the Listing Rules, a combined statement of
financial position of those affiliated companies with financial assistance
and guarantees given by the Group and the Group’s attributable interests
in those affiliated companies as at December 31, 2023 are set out as
follows:

BE EMRAIE13.221&  NEBBLTHH
& B R IR YRR BO B B A 12023 12 A 31
Az E6HPBHRAREANEEEIHZEES

DR ZHEREHNIT ¢

Combined statement of

Group’s attributable

financial position interests

SRR AR R R rEBEELER

RMB million RMB million

AREEET AREEET

Non-current assets JEMENEE 11,7645 3,985.2
Current assets MEEE 2,670.9 999.3
Current liabilities nREBEE 7,276.6 2,871.4
Total assets less current liabilities BREERTBEE 7.158.8 2,113.1
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 2,452.1 543.7
Net assets BEFE 4,706.7 1,569.4

The combined statement of financial position of the affiliated companies
was prepared by combining their statements of financial position, after
making adjustments to conform with the Group’s significant accounting
policies and re-grouping into significant classification in the statement of
financial position, as at December 31, 2023.

RETIREMENT AND EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Details of the retirement and employee benefits plans of the Group are set
out under Note 39 of the Consolidated Financial Statements.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

Please refer to “Corporate Governance Report — Compliance of the Code”
in this annual report for details.

PUBLIC FLOAT

When it applied for the listing of its Shares, the Company applied to the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange, and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange has
granted the Company a waiver that the minimum public float requirement
under Rule 8.08(1) of the Hong Kong Listing Rules be reduced and the
minimum percentage of the Shares from time to time held by the public
to be the higher of (i) 22.1%, the percentage of Shares to be held by the
public immediately after the completion of the global offering in March
2019 (assuming the over-allotment option is not exercised); and (i) such
percentage of Shares to be held by the public after the exercise of the
over-allotment option, namely 23.8%.
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Report of the Board of Directors (Continued)

Based on the Company’s publicly available information and to the best of
the Directors’ knowledge, as of the Latest Practicable Date, the number of
Shares in public hands were not less than 23.8% of the total issued share
capital of the Company.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

During the Reporting Period and as of the latest practicable date, the
Company (including but not limited to) had purchased and maintained
a group liability insurance for the Directors of the Company and its
associated companies (as defined for such term under the Companies
Ordinance).

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Company has reviewed the Consolidated
Financial Statements as for the year ended December 31, 2023 prepared
in accordance with IFRS.

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, Certified Public Accountants is appointed
as the auditor for the Consolidated Financial Statements as for the year
ended December 31, 2023 prepared in accordance with IFRS. Such
Consolidated Financial Statements prepared in accordance with IFRS as
stated herein this annual report have been audited by Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu, Certified Public Accountants and a standard unqualified audit
report has been issued.

For the past three years year ended December 31, 2023, there was no
change in the auditor of the Company.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu will retire at the forthcoming AGM and being
eligible offer themselves for reappointment.

By Order of the Board
Yang Xuegang
Chairman

Hong Kong, March 14, 2024
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERWMS

The Board of Directors has hereby submitted its Corporate Governance
Report during the Reporting Period to the Shareholders.

COMPLIANCE OF THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CODE

The Company is committed to high standards of corporate governance
for purposes of enhancing the value for shareholders and protecting
their interests. The Company has adopted provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code as set out in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules (the
“Corporate Governance Code”). The Company has established and
optimized the corporate governance structure in accordance with the
Listing Rules and the Corporate Governance Code and has set up a
series of corporate governance systems. During the Year, the Company
has been observing all mandatory provisions of the code as stipulated
in the Corporate Governance Code except for the provisions under
paragraph C.2.1 of Part 2 (please refer to below for detailed explanation).

The Board of Directors will continue to examine and review, from time
to time, the Company’s corporate governance practices and operation
in order to meet the relevant provisions under the Listing Rules and to
protect the Shareholders’ interests.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS CONDUCTED BY
DIRECTORS AND THE RELEVANT EMPLOYEES

Since the listing of the Company on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), the Board has adopted the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix C3 of the Listing Rules as its model code
for securities transactions by the Directors.

Upon specific enquiry conducted by the Company, all the Directors have
confirmed that during the Reporting Period, they fully complied with the
Model Code.

The Company’s employees, who are likely to be in possession of
unpublished inside information of the Company, are subject to the
Model Code. The Company has not been aware of any incident of any
employee’s non-compliance with the Model Code during the Reporting
Period and up to the Latest Practicable Date.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board of Directors

(@)

Composition of Board of Directors

The Board comprises nine Directors, including six Executive
Directors and three Independent Non-executive Directors. The
Directors have been appointed with a term of three years, subject to
retirement by rotation requirements under the Articles of Association
of the Company.

The Company has at least three Independent Non-executive
Directors (representing at least one-third of the Board), and among
whom, at least one Independent Non-executive Director must
possess professional qualifications or accounting knowledge
or professional knowledge related to finance management in
compliance with the provisions of the Listing Rules. Moreover, after
taking into consideration of the factors regarding the evaluation
of the independence of the independent non-executive Directors
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, and the written
confirmation of all Independent Non-executive Directors, the Board
of Directors believes that all Independent Non-executive Directors
are independent individuals.
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TEEARRE (E)

The Board of Directors of the Company comprises the following:

RAREFGHEKMT

Name Age Sex  Position Appointment Date
®E Fik MH B4 ZERHE
Mr. Yang Xuegang 59 M Executive Director, chairman of the Board and chief executive officer November 8, 2007
ZES il S HITEE EZTLIRERTBEH 2007F11A8H
Ms. Lu Xiaomei 60 F Executive Director April 1, 2024
BB/ MER L X WITES 2024%4A1R
Mr. Li Qinghua 60 M Executive Director and executive president of the Group April 1, 2024
FEERE 5 WOTEERASERNTER 2024%4A1R
Mr. Zhang Yingwei 52 M Executive Director and vice president of the Group July 24, 2009
(resigned with effect
from April 1, 2024)
REEEE(B520245 5 HITEERAEEREH 200947 248
471 BBEHE)
Mr. Han Qinliang 50 M Executive Director and vice president of the Group May 18, 2011
BY L 2 WOTEERASEE B 201165A18H
Mr. Wang Fengshan 65 M Executive Director and vice president of the Group September 29, 2018
(resigned with effect
from April 1, 2024)
FRILEAE(BE20245F e HITEERAEERER 20184F9 A 29H
4A1BBEHE)
Mr. Wang Nianping 61 M Executive Director and vice president of the Group September 29, 2018
TEFEE S HITEERAEEREHR 201859 A29H
Mr. Yang Lu 33 M Executive Director September 29, 2018
Bt £ WITES 201859 A29H
Mr. Kang Woon 61 M Independent Non-executive Director September 29, 2018
OB = BUFNTES 201859 H29H
Mr. Yu Kwok Kuen Harry 54 M Independent Non-executive Director September 29, 2018
REREEE S BUFNTES 201859 A29H
Mr. Wang Yinping 63 M Independent Non-executive Director September 29, 2018
FalFgs S BUFNTES 201859 H29H

The Directors may, at the Company’s expense, seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances. The Company
will provide separate independent professional advice to Directors
upon request to assist the Directors to discharge their duties to the

Company.

Before each Board meeting, the senior management will provide
relevant information pertaining to matters to be brought before the
Board for decision as well as reports relating to the operational and
financial performance of the Group. Where any Director requires
more information than is supplied by the senior management, each
Director has the right to separately and independently communicate
with the Company’s senior management to make further enquiries.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued

Job Duties and Authority of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors shall be accountable to the Shareholders
and have the duty to report to the General Meeting. The Board
of Directors is responsible for convening the General Meeting,
implementing the resolutions of the General Meeting, determining
the operational plan and investment proposals of the Company,
setting up the annual financial budget proposal, final accounts,
profit distribution proposal, proposal for increase or decrease of
capital and others, deciding on the establishment of the Company’s
management authority, determining the appointment or dismissal
of chief executive officer, chief financial officer and other senior
management officers, formulating the basic management system
of the Company and determining the establishment of the special
committees of the Board of Directors.

Job Duties and Authority of the Senior Management

The senior management is responsible for the specific
implementation of the resolutions of the Board of Directors and of
the daily business management of the Company, which includes
formulating (i) the Company’s operating plan and investment
proposal, (ii) the plan of establishing the internal management
authority, (iii) the basic management system of the Company and (iv)
the Company’s specific regulations.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

/\_I_I_/“-/-r\

1E3x /CI#&D(I' )

Meetings of Board of Directors and Members EEEERMKE
During the Reporting Period, the Company convened a total of seven RWEHR - ARRaHEREtRESTEE
Board meetings and one general meeting. The attendance of the ER—RRREAE  EFHEEHRBERED
meetings by the Directors is as follows: NN
Board meetings
EEee
Number of
meetings Number of Times of
should meetings Attendance attendance
Name Position attend attended rate by alternate
EhEes cSHEes R
% WAz "B Pé R Paé
Mr. Yang Xuegang Executive Director 7 7 100% -
BEmEEL WITES
Mr. Zhang Yingwei Executive Director 7 7 100% -
RRELE WITES
Mr. Han Qinliang Executive Director 7 7 100% -
BE LS WITES
Mr. Wang Fengshan Executive Director 7 7 100% -
TR %S WITES
Mr. Wang Nianping Executive Director 7 7 100% -
FTEFEE WITES
Mr. Yang Lu Executive Director 7 7 100% -
iy WITES
Mr. Kang Woon Independent 7 7 100% -
Non-executive Director
EEb BYIERITES
Mr. Yu Kwok Kuen Harry Independent 7 7 100% -
Non-executive Director
REREELE BYFERTES
Mr. Wang Yinping Independent 7 7 100% -
Non-executive Director
EaIFELE BYFERTES

2023 ANNUAL REPO
China Risun Group:



Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

ALl Al N

TEERRSE(E)

General meeting

BRAR
Number of
meetings Number of Times of
should meetings Attendance attendance
Name Position attend attended rate by alternate
BHEEE BHESE ErEHE
i B R RE HE= KB
Mr. Yang Xuegang Executive Director 1 1 100% =
HBEEELE WITES
Mr. Zhang Yingwei Executive Director 1 1 100% =
SRE(E T4 WITES
Mr. Han Qinliang Executive Director 1 1 100% -
BEELE WITES
Mr. Wang Fengshan Executive Director 1 0 0% -
ERWSEE HITES
Mr. Wang Nianping Executive Director 1 1 100% -
EETEE HITES
Mr. Yang Lu Executive Director 1 1 100% -
B EE HITES
Mr. Kang Woon Independent 1 1 100% -
Non-executive Director
FEB - BYFRTES
Mr. Yu Kwok Kuen Harry Independent 1 1 100% -
Non-executive Director
REEEE BYFRTER
Mr. Wang Yinping Independent 1 0 0% -
Non-executive Director
EaIFEE BYFRTER
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Yang is the chairman and chief executive officer of the Company. In
accordance with paragraph C.2.1 of Part 2 of the Corporate Governance
Code, the roles of the chairman and chief executive officer should be
separated and should not be held by the same person. With extensive
experience in the coke, coking chemicals and refined chemicals
industries, Mr. Yang is responsible for the overall management and
business development, the operations of the subsidiaries of the Company
and their corresponding production facilities and human resources of the
Group, and has been instrumental to the Group’s growth and business
expansion since its establishment in 1995. The Board considers that
vesting the roles of chairman and chief executive officer in the same
person has the benefit of ensuring consistent leadership within the Group
and enables more effective and efficient overall strategic planning for and
communication with the Group. The balance of power and authority is
ensured by the operation of the senior management and the Board, which
comprises experienced and high caliber individuals. During the Reporting
Period, the Board comprised of six executive Directors (including Mr.
Yang Xuegang) and three independent non-executive Directors and
therefore has a strong independence element in its composition.

Appointment, Re-Election and Removal of Directors

In accordance with the provisions of the Articles of Association of the
Company, the Directors have been appointed for a term of three years,
after which they may be re-elected. At each general meeting, one third
of the Directors for the time being (or if their number is not a multiple of
three, then the number nearest to but not less than one third) shall retire
from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement at an annual general meeting at least once every three years.

The Directors have the power to appoint any person as a Director either to
fill a casual vacancy on the Board or as an addition to the existing Board.
Any Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the
first general meeting of members after his appointment and be subject
to re-election at such meeting and any Director appointed as an addition
to the existing Board shall hold office only until the next following annual
general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.
The procedures and process of appointment and re-election of directors
are laid down in the Articles of Association. The Nomination Committee
shall be responsible for nominating new Directors and then submitting
such nomination to the Board of Directors for review and consideration.

A Director may be removed by an ordinary resolution of the Company
before the expiration of his period of office (but without prejudice to any
claim which such Director may have for damages for any breach of any
contract between him and the Company) and member of the Company
may by ordinary resolution appoint another in his place. Unless otherwise
determined by the Company in general meeting, the number of Directors
shall not be less than two. There is no maximum number of Directors.
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Training and Continuing Development of Directors

During the Reporting Period, the Directors of the Company actively
participated in seminars on the obligations and responsibilities required
to be fulfilled for being the directors of a listed company in Hong Kong,
as well as the obligations for the listing compliance of a listed company
in relation to the continuous professional developments in the following

manner:

i%kﬁr/\m#&m<n >

BEEMEINEEE

RIERA - ARAPEFHBRL2EEHEE
FHRARBEFABRTHNEBRBEAR LT
NAEERBEERER 2 LT ERBEBOH
e 2gHFBeT

Type of continuous professional
development programmes

Name Position (Note)

A B FESERRAEIER ()

Mr. Yang Xuegang Executive Director 2

HEMEE BITES

Mr. Zhang Yingwei Executive Director 2

REERE BITES

Mr. Han Qinliang Executive Director 2

BHYmkE WITEF

Mr. Wang Fengshan Executive Director 2

FRILEE BWITEF

Mr. Wang Nianping Executive Director 2

FFEFEE WITES

Mr. Yang Lu Executive Director 2

B FE WITES

Mr. Kang Woon Independent Non-executive Director 1&2

RBSESE B FRITESR

Mr. Yu Kwok Kuen Harry Independent Non-executive Director 1&2

REESEE B IFRITESR

Mr. Wang Yinping Independent Non-executive Director 1&2

E3IFEE B IFRITES

Notes: Htat -

1. Attending seminars/courses for development of professional skills and 1. 206 BB RIERERNBOWE R
knowledge. =

2. Reading materials in relation to regular update to statutory requirements, 2. BiEaETE e EAEER - ERAIR

listing rules and other relevant topics related to listed company.

In addition, Ms. Lu Xiaomei and Mr. Li Qinghua attended training and
received legal advice on director’s duties under the Hong Kong laws
from Latham & Watkins LLP, the Company’s Hong Kong legal adviser, in
March 2024 and prior to their appointments as required under Rule 3.09D
of the Listing Rules, and each of the two Directors has confirmed that she/
he has understood all the requirements under the Hong Kong laws and
Listing Rules applicable to her/him as a director of a listed issuer and the
possible consequences of making false statements or providing false
information to the Stock Exchange.

AR EAAER EREROM Y -

AN - PR2024F 3R - BN RFEE
A RE EMARRIZ3.09D6IE THIARE
NERR AT X HE RIS H BN EI RES
RRBEBE BN ERREMEERA
REAZETEABENEZERL MREZESE
EEMR  FETH®EBEER ETRAF
HAREEAEMBITAESNART
LA Ko Ty B 32 AT 1 1 R MR PR R SR R (R B R
VBEERR -
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Company Secretary and His Training

Mr. Ho Pui Lam Joseph acts as the company secretary and is responsible
for overseeing the Group’s financial and accounting operations and
internal controls, and provides financial and business advice to the Board
and senior management of the Group. Mr. Ho shall report significant
events to the chairman. The profile of Mr. Ho is stated in the section of
“Biographies of the Directors and Senior Management” of this Report.
During the Reporting Period, Mr. Ho undertook more than 15 hours of
professional training to update his skills and knowledge.

Meetings of the Board of Directors

Pursuant to the code provision A.1.1 of the Corporate Governance Code,
the Board should meet regularly and Board meetings should be held
at least four times a year at approximately quarterly intervals. Agenda
of board meetings are presented to the Directors for comments and
approval. The Board of Directors is provided with adequate, timely and
reliable information about the Group’s business and developments before
each board meeting at which the Directors actively participate and hold
informed discussions. A notice of regular board meeting shall be given to
all directors at least 14 days before the meeting is convened pursuant to
the requirements of the Code, and such notice shall state the date, time
and venue of the meeting to be convened and the format to be adopted
of such meeting. Other interim board meetings have reasonable notices
be delivered to all Directors.

In accordance with the provisions of the Listing Rules, the Company shall
publish an announcement at least 7 clear business days in advance
of the date fixed for any board meeting at which the declaration,
recommendation or payment of a dividend is expected to be decided or
at which any announcement of the profits or losses for any year, half-year,
quarter-year or other period is to be approved for publication.

The quorum for a board meeting shall be the presence of two Directors.
Directors may participate in any meeting of the Board by means of a
conference telephone or other communications equipment through
which all persons participating in the meeting can communicate with
each other simultaneously and instantaneously and, for the purpose of
counting a quorum, such participation shall constitute presence at a
meeting as if those participating were present in person. The company
secretary is responsible for preparing and safekeeping the minutes of the
board meetings and ensuring that the Directors can enquire about such
minutes.

During the Reporting Period, the Company has strictly complied, and will
continue to comply, with the provisions in relation to the meetings of the
Board of Directors.

2023 ANNUAL REP
China Risun Group:

NEIE M A

MHHREERERANE  BEEEAEH
BB R & AHEEIE A R N BB IR - (A
FEFESFERaRERBRHMBLER
o AIRERMEFEREEREMN < A%
EZE@%@B@ﬂSiﬁiF%%&%ﬁ&a@E
FE—80 - RIREHA - MERLEDETEB
NS VR ITFI DA R ELABE L AN

*ET)?ZTE%%E SPRIE)SFRMESCEA MR - &
2 ERLEEEORAEER
\%ﬁlﬂlu\ EUZ’JE%*}’/\" E=gedd
TRAEREERHBRLIE - BEAEE
EBREROEH  KELAEERERE
REFGEANRHTESTS  <EFTHE
B ERENEFERTH o RIETFRIER
FoEEerlesRtenNesdHER
B EDI4BRAMEESRM  ZBEe
IR AM B BRI RZEEAS
RANER -EFeHMRESIREEA
BIERATRMEERED -

R EWRABE  ARREEEAESS
SREEETEENESLETEEEAT
BRE  RELAIREEIR - EHESORN
B SR g EIEERFE  FFE - F
E R s M BN A E AT

2 o

HEEFEERNATREARSMUE
e é%"ﬁiﬂf‘ FHIEMBARES
HENEFSSH  BUABLESEN

}\iﬂulﬂ*ﬂﬂﬁwﬁﬁ/ﬁL HEFEEEA
HimE E%E//J\%(ﬂz.ﬁr SEgREEX
W BIRELEER ARWEREEE
ERrEEEERACHUNBRESISH
BRAgRLx -

bt L2 S

RIBERA - NRBISEBET BS#EE

?ﬁfﬁi% = 95 D%E/]{HKK °



Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS COMMITTEES

The Board of Directors delegates certain responsibilities to various
committees. In accordance with relevant laws, regulations and the
Articles of Association of the Company, we have formed three board
committees, namely the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee
and the Nomination Committee.

Audit Committee

The Company has established the Audit Committee in accordance with
Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and the Corporate Governance Code as
set out in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules and has expressly stated the
scope of job duties of such committee in writing. The Audit Committee
consists of three members, namely Mr. Yu Kwok Kuen Harry, Mr. Kang
Woon and Mr. Wang Yinping. All members of the Audit Committee are
Independent Non-executive Directors. Mr. Yu Kwok Kuen Harry is the
chairman of the Audit Committee.

The purpose of the Audit Committee is to assist the Board in ensuring that
the Company has an effective financial reporting, risk management and
internal control system in compliance with the Listing Rules, overseeing
the integrity of the financial statements of the Company, selecting, and
assessing the independence and qualifications of, the Company’s
external auditor, as well as ensuring effective communication between the
Directors and the internal and external auditors of the Company.

As for the selection, appointment and dismissal of external auditors or
resignation of auditors, the Board and the Audit Committee have reached
a consensus.

During the Reporting Period, five meetings were held by the Audit
Committee. The attendance record of each member of the Audit
Committee is set out below:

TEERRSE(E)

EEEREE

EEeRELZEgRTRBETETRE -
BEREBREARE APIRARRABERAL
BRI =—BREEEZEE  DHRERE
B FHZEerkikEZEE -

ifs)3

BEZLRE

ARATERIE E A RAIEI21 15K E TR
HEBCIB R EEATAIR T BHRESS -
GEETHREEROBERE - BXE8
EM=AREBAN  HRIBREBEL B
BRARTAITRE - BREBRHARKE
W ABIFNTES - REBELRBRE
BEER-

ERZEENENABIEFERERAAR
M HRE - BREIE R AR RRE R
BRAETHRA EERNRBMBEHRRNT
BN BEBEAQ R A IMNE R BEN LR B
TERER - WHEREEEARR] ARSI
TEZEE 2 B AERUBR -

RSN BEIHPE - ZERBRAEE
MEEEE EFGHRBRZEGCEN—
HER -

RIBEMA - BREBRCBTEARE -
SHEHEMHRERENTIMT -

Name of committee members

Number of meetings attended/should attend

Attendance rate

EEERENER BHE BHEEERE HE R
Mr. Yu Kwok Kuen Harry 5/5 100%
RERELEE

Mr. Kang Woon 5/5 100%
RB%A

Mr. Wang Yinping 5/5 100%
FalFRE
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During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee:
1. assessed the independence and objectivity of external auditors;

2. advised the Board on re-appointment of external auditors;

3. reviewed the internal control and risk management systems of the
Company;

4. reviewed the audited annual results for the year ended December
31, 2022;

(5}, reviewed the unaudited interim results for the period ended June
30, 2023; and

6. reviewed the audit plan 2023.

In addition to attending meetings, members maintain close and effective
communication amongst themselves through channels such as e-mail
and electronic communications to ensure the discharge of their duties.

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee in
accordance with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules and the Corporate
Governance Code as set out in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules, and has
expressly stated the scope of job duties of such committee in writing. The
Remuneration Committee consists of three members, namely Mr. Kang
Woon, Mr. Yu Kwok Kuen Harry and Mr. Wang Yinping. All members are
Independent Non-executive Directors. Mr. Kang Woon is the chairman of
the Remuneration Committee.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include establishing
and reviewing the Company’s policy and structure for the remuneration
of the Directors and senior management and making recommendations
to the Board on employee benefit arrangements. The Remuneration
Committee is also responsible for determining the vesting of the options
granted under the Share Option Scheme.
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During the Reporting Period, one meeting was held by the Remuneration
Committee. The attendance record of each member of the Remuneration
Committee is set out below:

ued)
EERME(E)

RBEHA - HFHZEECRIT—REH -
FMEZ B ETRNBHHFLEHIMT

Name of committee members

Number of meetings attended/should attend

Attendance rate

ZESRENRE BHiE EHEEERE HER

Mr. Kang Woon 11 100%

EB%AE

Mr. Yu Kwok Kuen Harry i 100%
REIRES &

Mr. Wang Yinping 11 100%
FalITFRE

During the Reporting Period, the Remuneration Committee: RIWERAA - FHEES -

1. reviewed the Company’s policy and structure for all Directors’ and
Senior Management’s remuneration; and

2. review and approve the remuneration proposals of individual
executive Directors and Senior Management, as well as non-
executive Directors for the Reporting Period, with reference to
the corporate goals and objectives formulated by the Board of
Directors.

Nomination Committee

The Company has established the Nomination Committee in accordance
with the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix C1 to
the Listing Rules, and has expressly stated the scope of job duties of
such committee in writing. The Nomination Committee consists of three
members, namely Mr. Yang Xuegang, Mr. Kang Woon and Mr. Yu Kwok
Kuen Harry. Except for Mr. Yang who is an executive Director, all other
members are independent non-executive Directors. Mr. Yang is the
chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board at least
annually and making recommendations on any proposed changes to
the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy, assessing
the independence of the Independent Non-executive Directors to
determine their eligibility, and making recommendations to the Board on
the appointment, re-election and removal of Directors and succession
planning for Directors.
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During the Reporting Period, one meeting was held by the Nomination
Committee. The attendance record of each member of the Nomination
Committee is set out below:

RIBERA - BREEZEGERT—REH -
g

N
RELZEGTRKNENHFLEHIIIT

Name of committee members

Number of meetings attended/should attend

Attendance rate

EEEHENRE BHE BEEESIAE HE=E
Mr. Yang Xuegang i7al 100%
BERERE

Mr. Kang Woon 11 100%
EB%AE

Mr. Yu Kwok Kuen Harry 11 100%
REREELE

During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee:

1. reviewed the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board;

2. made recommendations to the Board as to nomination of Directors
for re-election at the AGM,;

3. assessed the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors;

4. considered and assess the performance of the Board and consider
such performance against the boards of comparable companies;
and

5. monitor the implementation of, and review, the board diversity
policy of the Company.

In addition to attending meetings, members maintain close and effective
communication amongst themselves through channels such as e-mail
and electronic communications to ensure the discharge of their duties.
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NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS AND BOARD
DIVERSITY POLICY

In order to enhance the quality of the performance of the Board and
to support the attainment of the Company’s strategic objectives and
sustainable development, we have adopted a board diversity policy
(the “Board Diversity Policy”). Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy, we
seek to achieve Board diversity through the consideration of a number
of factors when selecting candidates to the Board, including but not
limited to gender, skills, age, professional experience, knowledge,
cultural and education background, ethnicity and length of service.
Appointments will ultimately be based on merit and the contributions the
selected candidates will bring to the Board. The Board believes that such
merit-based appointments will best enable the Company to service our
Shareholders and other stakeholders.

The Nomination Committee of the Board is responsible for reviewing
the structure, number of members, and composition of the Board of
Directors. In addition, the Committee makes recommendations to the
Board relating to the size and structure of the Board of Directors based
on the Company’s strategic plans, business operations, asset size and
shareholding structure. The Committee also discusses and reviews the
selection standard, the nomination and appointment process of relevant
Directors, and makes recommendations to the Board of Directors.
In identifying candidates, the Company solicits candidates through
recruitment agencies, referrals by existing directors, and recommendation
by shareholders of the Company in accordance with the Articles of
Association. The candidates will be approved by the Board of Directors.

The Board Diversity Policy needs to be followed when the Nomination
Committee of the Board makes recommendations on the candidates
or when the Board of Directors makes nomination. The Nomination
Committee of the Board is responsible for monitoring the implementation
of the Board Diversity Policy and reviewing it at the appropriate time to
ensure its effectiveness. The Nomination Committee will discuss any
amendments when necessary and make recommendations to the Board
of Directors for final approval.
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The Directors have a balanced mix of knowledge and skills, including in
overall management and strategic development, sales and marketing,
finance and accounting, law, consulting and corporate governance,
as well as experience in the coke industry. Our Directors also obtained
degrees in various majors including business administration, coal
chemistry, metallurgical engineering, industrial economy administration,
accounting, statistics, law, international trade and chemical engineering.
The Company has three Independent Non-executive Directors with
different industry backgrounds, representing one-third of the members
of the Board. Furthermore, the Board has a wide range of age, ranging
from 33 years old to 63 years old. Out of the nine Directors, Mr. Yang
Xuegang, Ms. Lu Xiaomei and Mr. Yang Lu are related. Taking into
account our existing business model and specific needs as well as the
different backgrounds and abilities of our Directors, the composition of
the Board satisfies the Board Diversity Policy, and with Ms. Lu Xiaomei
being appointed as an Executive Director, the Board has achieved its
gender diversity target by appointing at least one female director before
end of 2024.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the diversity of the
Board. The Nomination Committee monitored the implementation of the
Board Diversity Policy, and reviewed the Board Diversity Policy from time
to time to ensure its continued effectiveness. The Nomination Committee
also included in our annual corporate governance report a summary of
the Board Diversity Policy together with measurable objectives set for
implementing the Board Diversity Policy, the progress made towards
achieving those objectives, as well as the Board’s composition from a
diversity perspective.

During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee reviewed the
composition of the Board of Directors and concluded that the Company
had met the diversification requirements with regard to skills, age,
professional experience, knowledge, cultural and education background,
ethnicity and length of service. The Nomination Committee discussed
on the nomination work for a female director on or before the year end
of 2024. When making the appointment and re-appointment of Directors
in the future, the Nomination Committee will nominate new Directors
pursuant to the requirements of the Board Diversity Policy to achieve the
objective of diversity in Board members.

DIVERSITY AND INCLUSION

The Company is committed to building an aggressive corporate culture to
achieve its mission, vision and values, establishing a healthy, diverse and
inclusive culture and creating a working environment where employees
can express their true self, develop their potential and bring out their
best. The Company continuously pays attention to various issues, such
as gender equality, family responsibilities, and the rights and interests of
people of different abilities and cultural backgrounds.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued

The Company focuses on gender diversity in the workplace while
balancing the needs of corporate development. During the Reporting
Period, there were 1,326 female employees.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

It is the responsibility of the Board of Directors to ensure that the
Company maintains sound and effective internal controls to safeguard
our Shareholders’ investment and the Group’s assets at all times. In
order to ensure the internal control operate effectively, the Company has
adopted a series of internal control policies, procedures and programmes
designed to provide reasonable assurance for achieving objectives
including effective and efficient operations, reliable financial reporting
and compliance with applicable laws and regulations. The Board reviews
the risk management and internal controls annually. Highlights of the
Company’s internal control system include the following:

(a) Code of conduct. Our code of conduct explicity communicates to
each employee our values, acceptable criteria for decision-making
and our ground rules for behavior.

(b) Internal audit. Our internal audit team regularly monitors key
controls and procedures in order to assure our management and
the Board of Directors that the internal control system is functioning
as intended. The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors is
responsible for supervising our internal audit function.

(c) Compliance with Listing Rules. Our various policies aim to ensure
compliance with the Listing Rules, including but not limited to
aspects related to corporate governance, connected transactions
and securities transactions by the Directors.

(d) Enhanced internal control procedures to prevent the recurrence of
non-compliance incidents. The Company also adopted a number of
enhanced internal control procedures to prevent the recurrence of
noncompliance incidents.

We have established a set of risk management policies and measures to
identify, evaluate and manage risks arising from our operations. Our risk
management process starts with identifying the major risks associated
with our corporate strategy, goals and objectives. Each of our operating
departments is responsible for identifying and analyzing risks associated
with its function, maintaining a comprehensive risk register, preparing risk
mitigation plans, measuring effectiveness of such risk mitigation plans
and reporting the status of risk management. Our audit personnel, the
Audit Committee of the Board of Directors, and ultimately the Board of
Directors supervise the implementation of our risk management policy at
the corporate level by bringing together each operating department, such
as quality control, research and development and sales, to collaborate on
risk issues among different functions.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
rEREAWmE (B

The Board of Directors and the senior management are accountable for
the overall responsibility in respect of monitoring the implementation of
internal control and risk management procedures and other measures in
the Group. The Company’s risk management and internal control system
aims at managing but not eliminating the risk for not being able to achieve
the business objective. Moreover, only reasonable but not absolute
guarantee is made for materially untrue statement or loss. The Board of
Directors will conduct an examination on the Company’s risk management
and internal control system once per year. The Board of Directors has
confirmed that it has examined the effectiveness of the Company’s risk
management and internal control system as of December 31, 2023. The
Board believed that the Company'’s risk management and internal control
system is effective and sufficient. The Company’s risk management and
internal control system can effectively guide against such risks existing in
the operation.

We have appointed and renewed the appointment of external professional
advisors (including the auditor, legal or other advisors) for provision of
professional suggestions in respect of how we observe all applicable
related laws and regulations.

THE DIRECTORS’ LIABILITY TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company has not encountered with any significant and uncertain
events and circumstances that might produce significant doubts on the
Company’s capability of its continuous operation of business. The Board
of Directors has confirmed that it is responsible for the preparation of the
Group’s Consolidated Financial Statements as of December 31, 2023.

REMUNERATION OF AUDITOR

During the Reporting Period, the Company has appointed Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu, Certified Public Accountants, an international accounting firm,
to provide the Company with auditing service in accordance with IFRS
and the amounts of remuneration in connection to annual audit service
are RMB6.4 million. The responsibilities of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as
to the Consolidated Financial Statements are set out on pages 98 to 103
of this annual report.

Non-audit services provided to the Group during the year ended
December 31, 2023 of approximately RMB3.5 million represented the
fee for the assurance of the environmental, social and governance report
of the Company, the review of continuous connected transactions, the
agreed-upon procedure on preliminary announcement and interim fee for
review of the unaudited interim financial statements.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Shareholders have the Right to Initiate and Convene the
General Meeting

In accordance with the provisions of the Articles of Association of the
Company, the shareholders shall be entitled to the following right: Any
one or more shareholder of the Company holding at the date of deposit
of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
company secretary of the Company, to require an extraordinary general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two
(2) months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one (21)
days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting
the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of
the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at General
Meetings

Shareholders are welcomed to suggest proposals relating to the
operations, strategy and/or management of the Group at a general
meeting. Proposals shall be sent to the Board or the company secretary
in writing to the company secretary at the Company’s principal place
of business in Hong Kong at Room 2001, 20/F., Sino Plaza, No. 255
Gloucester Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong.

Shareholders are Entitled to the Inquiry Right

Shareholders are entitled to make enquiries to the Board by sending
written enquiries to the Company at its principal place of business in
Hong Kong at Room 2001, 20/F., Sino Plaza, No. 255 Gloucester Road,
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong. The Company will deal with all enquiries in a
timely and appropriate manner.
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PEREBRSE (B)

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company believes that effective communications with its
Shareholders is essential to enhancement of the relationship with
investors and enhancement of investors’ understanding of the Company’s
business and strategies. The Company highly values Shareholders’
opinions and suggestions, and actively organizes and conducts various
activities related to the relationship with investors in order to keep the
communications with Shareholders, and to timely satisfy the reasonable
demands of all Shareholders.

To enhance effective communication, the Company maintains its website
at http://www.risun.com where latest information on the Company’s
business operations and developments, financial information, corporate
governance practices and other information are available for public
access.

The 2023 annual general meeting (the “AGM”) of the Company will be
held on May 30, 2024. The notice of the AGM will be sent to shareholders
at least 20 clear business days before the AGM.

RELATIONSHIP WITH INVESTORS

The Company believes that good relationship with investors may help
build more stable and consolidated shareholder base. As a result, since
the Listing, the Company has been and will be dedicated to maintaining
a higher degree of transparency, observing the Listing Rules and timely
providing investors with comprehensive and accurate information, and
sustainably performing the obligation of disclosing the information as a
listed company. The Company will strengthen its communications with
investors and let investors understand corporate strategies and business
operation by organizing road shows, participating in investors summit,
voluntary information disclosure and others.

The Company will continue to maintain open-up and effective investors
communication policies for purposes of timely providing investors with
the latest information on the Company’s business when the Company is in
compliance with the relevant regulatory provisions.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

During the Reporting Period, upon approval by the shareholders at the
annual general meeting held on May 30, 2023, the Company has adopted
the amended and restated articles of association (the “Amended and
Restated Articles”) in substitution or and to the exclusion of the Articles
of Association, in order to, among other things, (i) bring the Articles
of Association in line with the Core Shareholder Protection Standards
set out in Appendix 3 (currently re-arranged as Appendix A1) to the
Listing Rules; (ii) introduce provisions to allow general meetings of the
Company to be held as a hybrid or electronic meeting; (iii) make house-
keeping amendments to the Articles of Association to clarify the existing
practices of the Company and to reflect certain updates in relation to the
applicable laws of the Cayman Islands (including under the Companies
Act (As Revised) of the Cayman Islands) and Listing Rules; and (iv) make
consequential amendments in line with the Proposed Amendments.
Please refer to the announcements dated March 31, 2023, May 30, 2023
and May 31, 2023 and the circular dated April 26, 2023 of the Company
for details of the articles amendments as well as the full text of the
Amended and Restated Articles.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT

During the Reporting Period, the Company has complied with the
provisions of “Comply or Explain” stated in the Environmental, Social and
Governance (“ESG”) Reporting Guide. Please refer to “Environmental,
Social and Governance Report” for details.

TEERRSE(E)

HEERAR

REEHA - ERER AR B R2023F5 A
S0EBRITHRFAFAE LHEE - AQF
RIS ET R BN AHMERMA([ &S
AT RACESMEAI]) - AR RIFBR B ERR
AR - LA(HAREIE) - (VEAMERMAIT
& EmRAIKIES = CREEF R F AHERAT)
FTE A D IR SRARBEAZLE ¢ (i) S #EERT AR
ARERELURAERE TSR NRITHIE
Bl : (i E A EREREITABIERT - A
BBEARRZBRITHME  WRMEBRSE
SHEBAEM(REREREESAREEE
R R EMBAZETERN  R(v)iREER
ERTHEITIHE ZEE] - BEBIFBURE
BEIREEHNMAEX - F2HEA R EBH
/202343 A31H ~ 202345 B30 H &% 2023
FE5A31H 2 AE - LAK2023F4H26H 238

B - @ RERERE

RIBERAR > ARBDETRE  HERE
A (TESG) & 5 5l &I T BT R AFIE 1Y

(=)
B o RHIFR2HIERE e RERRE] -

2023 3
BB EEBRAR

97



98

Independent Auditor’s Report
T N 17 B A R

Deloitte.

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA RISUN GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Risun
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) set out on pages 104 to 254, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 2023,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including material accounting policy
information and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
December 31, 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing (“ISAs”). Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ International Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (including International Independence
Standards) (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

B A2 BEN RS ()

ERETSEE(E)

Key audit matter

BRESE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EENETNMEERRETEE

Revenue recognition from contracts with customers

BEPAHIWaEHER

We identified revenue recognition from contracts with
customers attributable to the coke and coking chemicals
manufacturing segment as a key audit matter because
the amount and the increase in revenue are significant.
Furthermore, revenue from contracts with customers is a key
performance indicator of the Group and therefore there is a
high inherent risk of overstatement.
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As disclosed in note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group recognized revenue from contracts
with external customers attributable to the coke and
coking chemicals manufacturing segment amounting to
RMB18,077,005,000 for the year ended December 31, 2023,
and increased by RMB1,708,567,000 when compared with
that of prior year.
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1,708,567,0007T °

Our audit procedures in relation to revenue recognition from
contracts with customers attributable to the coke and coking
chemicals manufacturing segment included:
EREEREECERMEED BELNTF AR RTERD
nﬁif BE

. Understanding the key controls relevant to our audit
on revenue recognition from contracts with customers;

. THRERMHEFANREERETHREARRRIES

° Performing analytical procedures to assess the
reasonableness of the unit selling price, and compare
the quantity sales against the quantity production and
the quantity of freight charges;

. %ﬂﬁ ST TR B E B RS IR - WHHES ML
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° Obtaining confirmations for the sales to the major
customers; and

o MYUTIBRPHIHEEDKE

° Checking, on a sample basis, the recorded
transactions by examining the underlying supporting
evidences such as receipt notes, final settlements,
delivery notes, and sales contracts.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
B BN (48)

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
B Z AR E ()

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

2023 ANNUAL REPC
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Lam Kam Chiu.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
March 14, 2024
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

reBm AN EE RS

For the year ended December 31, 2023 #Z2023F 12 A31H ILF/E

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
iaE AR¥EFT AREFT
Revenue g 6 46,065,896 43,139,449
Cost of sales and services SHE R ARFER AR (42,740,946) (38,864,128)
Gross profit ER 3,324,950 4,275,321
Other income HAUA 7 507,618 274,398
Other gains and losses HAth Yrzs K 518 8 332,412 (1,136)
Impairment losses under expected TEEME AEAVIE T 2 B R 1E
credit loss model, net of reversal (FBRHEEE) 9 (111,245) 87,755
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEAX (1,185,064) (985,303)
Administrative expenses TERE X (1,060,768) (932,925)
Profit from operations KRR 1,807,903 2,718,110
Finance costs REE R AR 10 (1,349,745) (997,254)
Share of results of associates DMEEE AR ELE 89,552 59,137
Share of results of joint ventures DG EEEEA 134,038 423,490
Profit before taxation R AT F 11 681,748 2,203,483
Income tax credit (expense) FrSfiE e (Fx) 13 307,801 (343,992)
Profit for the year FREF 989,549 1,859,491
Other comprehensive income Hitt 2 mEiks
Item that may be reclassified HiZAJfE BT 7 2 ey E A
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising on BMEBINEEEMEN 58
translating foreign operations 17,908 29,852
Items that will not be reclassified to R T @B 72 B EH
profit or loss
Gain on revaluation of properties HihmERE=E 16 152,958 -
Income tax relating to revaluation of EE MY EBBRFTSE
properties 25 (38,240) -
Other comprehensive income for the FREMEE R
year 132,626 29,852
Total comprehensive income for FRAZHEKHEATE
the year 1,122,175 1,889,343

2023 ANNUAL REP!
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income (Continued)

freEm LA EER R (E)

For the year ended December 31, 2023 #ZE2023F 12 831HIEFE

2023 2022
2023F 20224
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
st AR¥TFT AREFT
Profit for the year attributable to: AR F R
Owners of the Company KAEHEB A 860,814 1,855,122
Non-controlling interests el g 128,735 4,369
989,549 1,859,491
Total comprehensive income BEFER2EKEEE
for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company KAEHEB A 993,440 1,884,974
Non-controlling interests el 128,735 4,369
1,122,175 1,889,343
Earnings per share (RMB) BRELEFALEET) 15
Basic AR 0.19 0.42
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e IR

At December 31, 2023 72023412 A31H

2023 2022
20234 2022%F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Hiat AR¥FT AREFT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W BE LB 16 26,897,389 22,168,357
Right-of-use assets FHEEE 17 2,217,125 1,989,362
Investment properties wEWE 18 176,380 =
Goodwill BES 19 232,435 232,435
Intangible assets mEE 20 1,280,705 764,124
Interests in associates b kNG [E o) - Fa 21 707,622 688,207
Interests in joint ventures NG B ER RS 22 2,952,096 3,207,426
Other long-term receivables and H A R EAFE U GRIB R FE IR
prepayments 23 1,214,254 723,515
Financial assets at fair value through BAREF ABR(RAAEE
profit or loss (“FVTPL”) Az EmEE 24 577,466 1,670,920
Deferred tax assets RIEFIEE E 25 144,336 128,333
Restricted bank balances SRR GIIRTTAE AR 28 - 356,000
Bank deposits IRITTFER 29 16,000 672,000
Amounts due from related parties FE WS R RS 5 308 40(c) 286,622 113,093
36,702,430 32,713,772
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 26 3,406,055 3,221,154
Income tax prepayments TERETSH 34,160 20,109
Other receivables b fE IR 27 6,585,017 4,607,036
Trade and bills receivables measured BEAnEFAEMmEEKE (1R
at fair value through other NAEFT AR ERE )
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) B 5 R BGRIE K BN E IR 27 976,187 861,432
Amounts due from related parties UK B RS 5 3B 40(c) 2,489,698 2,211,059
Financial assets at FVTPL BRAAEGFABEZNERMEE 24 11,581 65,820
Restricted bank balances ZRFIRITAERR 28 2,374,651 1,023,563
Bank deposits RITIFK 29 - 178,010
Cash and cash equivalents BeMREEEY 29 1,239,270 1,200,669
17,116,619 13,388,852
Assets classified as held for sale PEERFELENEE 30 17,200 -
17,133,819 13,388,852
Current liabilities REBEE
Financial liabilities at FVTPL BARESABZNSREE 24 3,838 201
Trade and other payables B S REAMEMNFIA 31 8,773,615 9,463,968
Contract liabilities aREE 32 2,401,064 2,011,202
Income tax payable FETERIS TR 379,834 713,047
Bank and other loans RITREME K 33 17,509,040 12,624,241
Lease liabilities HEAaE 34 60,485 49,331
Amounts due to related parties JE A~ BA S 5 508 40(c) 827,552 184,189
29,955,428 25,047,079
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continue

)
eI R (&)

At December 31, 2023

H2023%12H31H

2023 2022
2023 20224

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

Hiat ARKTFT ARETFT
Net current liabilities nEEEREE (12,821,609) (11,658,227)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERABAR 23,880,821 21,055,545
Non-current liabilities FEREBERE
Bank and other loans RITREMER 33 8,196,603 7,604,432
Lease liabilities HEAE 34 539,410 423,903
Deferred income TEIEUA 35 125,595 136,863
Deferred tax liabilities FELERIBAE 25 419,879 295,318
Trade and other payables B 5 R E M ERFIR 31 104,714 -
Amounts due to related parties JIE 1< B 5 SR 0E 40(c) 22,175 =

9,408,376 8,460,516
NET ASSETS EEFRE 14,472,445 12,595,029
Capital and reserves EeREE
Share capital R 36 382,246 382,246
Reserves ] 37 12,516,170 11,728,184
Total equity attributable to owners AATEEANELERERE
of the company 12,898,416 12,110,430

Non-controlling interests TR R 1,574,029 484,599
TOTAL EQUITY HRERS 14,472,445 12,595,029

The consolidated financial statements on pages 104 to 254 were

F104E 24 EFTH AV BHRREESTERN

approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on March 14, 2024F3A14B A RERETIELHUATA

2024 and are signed on its behalf by: TREEE -
Yang Xuegang Han Qinliang
BEM BEH=
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
3 EE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
FOEREBE

For the year ended December 31, 2023 #(ZE2023F12A31HIFFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FARAEARE
Foreign
currency Non-
Share  Treasury Share  Merger  Reserve Safety  transaction  Revaluation Oher  Retained controling Total
capial socks  premum  resenve fund fnd  reseve  reseve  reserve profits Totd  interests equiy
bk

Ba BRR BOEE oMER  BEEE RREE BBR  EGER  RMEE MR & MR SR
RWBUD)  AUBDDD  AMBOOO  AMBOLD  RWBLDD  AUBDDD  RMBOOO  RMBOD  AWBLD)  AUBDID  AWBOOO  AMBOD  AWBU)
ARETE ARETE ARBTE ARRTR ARETE ARETT ARETE ARRTR ARETR ARBTE ARETL ARRTR ARETR

Balance at I A1RES

January 1, 2022 (HEH)

(Restated) 383604 - 3053700 19869 1,167,172 48 (1811) - - 6324132 1097849 126765 11,004,614
Profi for the year ERE - - - - - - - - - 512 18BI2 439 1850491
Othercomprehensive 284G

income - - - - - - 8 - - - 08 - A
Net ransfer fo FEBERRES

safey fund - - - - - 1854 - - - (1.854) - - -
Transerforesenefund ~ ERZREFES - - - - 303788 - - - - (33789) - - -

Repurchast and BOR:HERG

cancelation of shares ~ (472236)

(note 36) (1.358) - (4654 - - - - - - - (470 - (479
Capial conrbutions~ SHERRRAEE

from non-controling

shareholders - - - - - - - - 11840 - 1180 48160 610000
Disposalof anonwholly  HE-FE A2 ENEAH

owned subsidary - - - - - - - - - - - (5869 (5,809
Acqustionofnon- WEFERER

controling nterests - - - - - - - - 118 - 718 (128826)  (121,69)
Dividends appropriaton ~ RE AR e 14)

(note 14) - - - - - - - - - (823459)  (823459) - (8234%9)
Balance al RUVEDRIIRER

December 31,

202 30226 - 307,156 19869 1470960 39337 11,741 - 1898 7050153 12110430 484599 12595029
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (Continued)
HOEREBE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2023 #ZE2023F12A31HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KOEREARL
Foreign
currency Non-
Share  Treasury Share  Merger  Reseve  Safety transaction Revaluation Other  Retained controlling Total
capital  stocks  premium  reserve fund fund  reserve  reseve  reseve  profits Total interests equity
ik

Br  EsR  BOEE GRE  BREE  RRBE ERRE EMBE  RMRE  REW St FEREE 48R
RMBOOO ~ RMBOOO ~ RMBUOO  RMBUOO  RMBUOO  RMBUOO  RMBUOO  RMBUO0  RMBUO0  RMBOO0  RMBOO0  RMBO00  RMBO00
ARRTr ABRTR ARRTL ARETR ARBTn ARRTL ARETn ARETT ARETG ARRTR ARBTT ARETL ARRTR

Balance at H0RERANRES

December 31,

2022 362,246 - 3,007,156 19869 1,470,960 39337 11,74 - 128968 705053 12110430 484599 12,595,029
Profitfor the year EREA = s e s o o o S - 860814 860814 128735 989,549
Othercompretensive A2 E%E

income - - - - - - 17908 114718 - - 1326% - 13262
Nettensferfosafely ~ SEHBEZ2ES

fund - - - - - 4725 - - - (4725) - - -
Transertoresenefnd ~ ERBZERES - - - - 109502 - - - - (19950 - - -
Repurchassof shares ~ EEREAERA

and pending for (W)

cancellation

(10e%) - mm - - - - - - - - mm - mm)
Capial conrbuons~ SEERRRAEE

from non-controling

shareholders - - - - - - - - 88,318 - 88,318 411682 500,000
Aequisiion of a WE-ENEL

subsidiary (oie 38) (%) - - - - - - - - - - - 63 6303
Diidend declared by~ HERFETRS

subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - - - (61,00)  (81,100)
Dividends appropriafion ~ REAE(HE4)

(note 14) - - - - - - - - - (256,599)  (266,599) - (256,599)
Balance at HOBEANRER

December 31,

023 32,46 (37,173) 3,007,156 19869 1,670,462 44,062 20649 114718 217286 7450141 12808416 1,574,020 14472445

2023 3
BI/BE S B AR AR

109



110

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

l\\/T\/\EE sz //ILE%

For the year ended December 31, 2023 #Z2023F 12 A31H ILF/E

2023 2022
2023%F 2022%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARHEFT AREFT
Operating activities KEER
Profit before taxation Br% AR A 681,748 2,203,483
Adjustments for: AT & IEFE
Finance costs BhE AL AN 1,349,745 997,254
Interest income 7’F‘J,§' A (161,863) (160,620)
Share of results of associates DI E N T EE (89,552) (59,137)
Share of results of joint ventures SMhEEREES (134,038) (423,490)
Gain on remeasurement of the equity DB ERTEEAIFEN
interest previously held upon a step g3zl
acquisition (251,158) -
Impairment losses under expected credit FEHEEEBER T 2 RERE
loss model, net of reversal B[O FEE 111,245 (87,755)
Depreciation of property, plant and ¥ - BE RERETE
equipment 2,074,754 1,191,910
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEAETE 128,776 124,627
Amortization of intangible assets B & ERH 130,615 108,297
Impairment of property, plant and M - BRE REERE
equipment 67,715 -
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, plant H&E¥E - BiE KR IENDEE,(WzS)
and equipment 5,988 (4,219)
Gain on disposal of right-of-use assets HEFAEEENNE - (415)
Deferred income released to profit or loss  f2H E 1828 VIEE WA (13,273) (12,761)
Change in fair value of investment BEMEDANEEE
property 177) -
Change in fair value of financial assets/  ZAMRBEFABZHEREE BEN
liabilities at FVTPL Afaﬁ?ﬁ 118,401 (57,052)
Foreign exchange (gain)/loss FE 5 (Wes), /518 (9,424) 91,400
Gain on provision for a legal arbitration  SEZ{REE S (154,606) -
Gain on settlement of a loan payable to a JEEEN —RIEEBA RN E R I
non-controlling shareholder (49,925) -
Operating cash flows before movements #iE&SE#BRIMLCERSTE
in working capital 3,804,971 3,911,522
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERD,(Em) 125,437 (1,033,976)
Increase in amounts due from JEL BAHSE 73 FRIEIE N
related parties (1,125,085) (1,321,408)
Increase in amounts due to JE 1~ BR RS 7 FRIEIE N
related parties 550,023 64,894
Increase in other receivables o fth fE U SR IE IS A (312,337) (477,420)
(Increase)/decrease in trade and bills BEAAEFAREMEZERETENE S
receivables measured at FVTOCI JE M R T e R R 4 (4500, (137,738) 117,373
(Decrease)fincrease in trade and B 5 REMENANZIBCORD), /1N
other payables (934,004) 2,619,963
Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilities & #I& &1, G 341,226 (241,545)
Decrease/(increase) in other long-term HEhRAFEWE IE&?EH RIBR A
receivables and prepayments (3&m) 34,108 (2,626)
Cash generated from operations KEMEES 2,346,601 3,636,777
Income tax paid, net of tax refunded Eﬁﬁﬁ S - HIBRIRTR (142,232) (473,069)
Net cash generated from operating RETHMBREFH
activities 2,204,369 3,163,708
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continue

AN N2
eI e

)
sXR(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2023 #ZE2023F12A31HILFE

2023 2022
20235 20224
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
HiaE AR¥EFT AREFT
Investing activities REEH
Purchase of property, plant and BEME  WEREE
equipment (1,930,098) (4,262,721)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - BREMEREFTSHRIA
plant and equipment 930 479
Purchase of right-of-use assets BECAREE (85,911) (91,474)
Proceeds from disposal of right-of-use HEFREEEMSRIE
assets 20,000 74,091
Purchase of intangible assets BEEFEE (53,490) (25,313)
Purchase of financial assets at FVTPL BERANE ABRNEE
BE (110,419) (1,153,686)
Loan to third parties ME=ZFREER (500,000) =
Repayment of loan to third parties ME=FEEEXK - 58,709
Payment for acquisition of a subsidiary Y& — R E QM - (2,901,000)
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets H&ER AN ET ABHENE B
at FVTPL BEMSIE 1,145,817 81,942
Net cash inflow on acquisition of a b — R B A RIMIR S RA
subsidiary FRE 38 1,358,889 -
Net cash inflow on disposal of HEMBARRRERAFEE
subsidiaries 11,494 27,342
Interest received EFILE 49,457 131,191
Government grants received B UL EX Y BRI B 29,501 25,167
Dividends received from a joint venture ~ 2 —FRASBEMAE 142,198 326,353
Dividends received from associates B U S AR E 47,391 59,710
Placement of restricted bank balances FAZR BRI TEE R (6,102,726) (4,168,279)
Withdrawal of restricted bank balances — 12EUSZ R HIiR1T4584 5,108,605 4,044,789
Placement of fixed deposits FAEHEFER (16,000) (850,010)
Withdrawal of fixed deposits IREUE BITF R 850,010 -
Deposits for other loans HMERNIES (297,191) (101,691)
Placement of loans to related parties LNkt Gol =6 (1,541,656) (69,858)
Withdrawal of loans to related parties TR B[R BB 7 MBI B 249,855 653,889
Investments in joint ventures AEEDERE (51,000) (880,265)
Investments in associates R NFIRE (38,265) (162,356)
Net cash inflow on disposal of a joint HE—HEELENRSRA
venture et - 2,358
Net cash used in investing activities RETEFMARSFE (1,712,609) (9,180,633)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)
melReangax(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2023 #Z2023F 12 A31H ILF/E

2023 2022
2023%F 20224F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
iaE ARMFIT AREFT
Financing activities RESEE
Capital contribution from non-controlling —&IEERIRR AT E
shareholders 699,680 610,000
Acquisition of non-controlling interests W I AR f 2 (106,698) (15,000)
Dividend paid to shareholders MR AR B IR (256,599) (823,459)
Interest paid ERFLE (1,283,466) (1,126,011)
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests A1 3F3 A& AL B HO A% B 5 R (48,000) =
Repurchase and cancellation of shares  B&[E & s #5015 36 - (47,902)
Repurchase of shares and pending for B[R & A 1FrE 5D
cancellation 36 (37,173) -
Proceeds from new bank and other loans #7877 &k Eth B FRAT1S FUE 16,126,035 17,179,835
Repayment of bank and other loans BEERITIEMER (15,401,609) (10,715,709)
Repayment of lease liabilities EBEHESRE (69,325) (135,823)
Decrease in amount due to a related JE 1 RRHSE 7 FRIER
party (78,000) -
Net cash (used in) from financing RETE (A EENESFE
activities (455,155) 4,925,931
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and ReRBLEEYEM CED)
cash equivalents FE 36,605 (1,090,994)
Cash and cash equivalents at the FENRSRRESEEY
beginning of the year 1,200,669 2,280,914
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [EREZ&HH)FE 1,996 10,749
Total cash and cash equivalents atthe FEXRAEERESESEBYWHRE
end of the year 1,239,270 1,200,669
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

=L pE e

For the year ended December 31, 2023 #ZE2023F12A31HILFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

China Risun Group Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961,
as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The shares
of the Company are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The
respective addresses of the registered office and the principal
place of business of the Company are stated in the section headed
“Corporate Information” section to the annual report.

The ultimate holding company and immediate holding company of
the Company is Texson Limited (“Texson”, the “Ultimate Holding
Company”), a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the
“BVI"), and ultimately controlled by Mr. Yang Xuegang (the “Ultimate
Controlling Shareholder”).

The principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 46.
The consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to the “Group”) are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”), which is the same as the functional currency of
the Company.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

At December 31, 2023, the Group had net current liabilities
of RMB12,821,609,000. The directors of the Company (the
“Directors”) are of the opinion that, taking into consideration the
availability of unutilized banking facilities of the Group amounting to
RMB7,072,458,000 at the report date, of which RMB6,502,458,000
is unconditional and RMB570,000,000 is the outstanding portion
of a syndicated loan for special purpose of construction of certain
production line, and the assumption that approximately 55% of
bank loans and other banking facilities at December 31, 2023 will
be successfully renewed upon maturity, the Group has sufficient
financial resources to meet in full its financial obligation when they
fall due for the next twelve months from the end of the reporting
period. Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements are
prepared on a going concern basis.

—fpEs

PEBSEBERAG (AR DIRE
HEBENRIAE22E (1961FE35%
ER - RERE RBET) EF 2 RS
BRI BEREBR AR o NABRG R
ERBARSIAERAT([HRA])E
RET c RABEMMERRETLE
HRE U A IR AR AR —ED o

EAUNCIE: v 2l ONCIS SR 22 NG
AERKRBRAR([FRRK] - [REE
BAR) EA-—RRNEBRZES
([EBELRS)EMKZNRE - I
A5 S i S A ([ SAIEAR AR R | ) Sk
i o

EARMERERRME46 - AR
AINEKE AR (SR A EE DisaRM
BHREUARE(TARE D27 - 81K
RREHEEEEER -

GANBRENEREE

M2023F12A31H * AEERNRHE
EFEAARE12,821,609,0007T ° A
PAEE(EE)RE  EEIAEE
RBEBBHAEANRITRESES
ANR#E7 072,458,0007C © EF AR
6,502,458,000L BE KM © BINAR
#570,000,000 T &t ELEE T L EL
BRIR®ZREERZ KEELH - B
R 202312 H31H + #155% KR
TER R HEMIRTTRE 1 TE B BARF B T
BH - AINEEBEB R ENVIBEER
A2 Em RN IRE BB AR+ =@
AREIEOMEET - AL - SRE07%
MRS E L EERR o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ire MR mR M (4E)

For the year ended December 31, 2023 #(ZE2023F12A31HIFFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)

New and amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily

effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new
and amendments to International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRSs”) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(“IASB”) for the first time, which are mandatorily effective for the
Group’s annual period beginning on January 1, 2023 for the

preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

IFRS 17 (including the June Insurance Contracts
2020 and December 2021
Amendments to IFRS 17)

Amendments to IAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single Transaction

Amendments to IAS 12

Amendments to IAS 12

Amendments to IAS 1 and
IFRS Practice Statement 2

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

Except as described below, the application of the new and
amendments to IFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group’s financial positions and performance for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these

consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended December 31, 2023 #ZE2023F12A31HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (Continued)

3.1

Impacts on application of Amendments to IAS 12
Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising
from a Single Transaction

The Group has applied the amendments for the first time in
the current year. The amendments narrow the scope of the
recognition exemption of deferred tax liabilities and deferred
tax assets in paragraphs 15 and 24 of IAS 12 Income
Taxes so that it no longer applies to transactions that, on
initial recognition, give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences.

In accordance with the transitional provisions:

the Group has applied the new accounting policy
retrospectively to leasing transactions that occurred on
or after January 1, 2022;

ii. the Group also, as at January 1, 2022, recognized
a deferred tax asset (to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary difference can be utilized) and
a deferred tax liability for all deductible and taxable
temporary difference associated with right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities.

The application of the amendments has had no material
impact on the Group’s financial position and performance,
except that the Group recognized both the deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities on a gross basis as stated in note
25 but it has no material impact on the retained earnings at
the earliest period presented.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e BHERNEE)
For the year ended December 31, 2023 & ZE2023F12A831HIEFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (Continued)

3.2 Impacts on application of Amendments to IAS 1 and
IFRS Practice Statement 2 Disclosure of Accounting
Policies

The Group has applied the amendments for the first time in
the current year. IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements
is amended to replace all instances of the term “significant
accounting policies” with “material accounting policy
information”. Accounting policy information is material if, when
considered together with other information included in an
entity’s financial statements, it can reasonably be expected to
influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements.

The amendments also clarify that accounting policy
information may be material because of the nature of the
related transactions, other events or conditions, even if the
amounts are immaterial. However, not all accounting policy
information relating to material transactions, other events or
conditions is itself material. If an entity chooses to disclose
immaterial accounting policy information, such information
must not obscure material accounting policy information.

IFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements (the
“Practice Statement”) is also amended to illustrate how an
entity applies the “four-step materiality process” to accounting
policy disclosures and to judge whether information about
an accounting policy is material to its financial statements.
Guidance and examples are added to the Practice Statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended December 31, 2023 #ZE2023F12A31HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 3. RN REETER MR

TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING HER ([ BRI R H %Al 1)
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (CONTINUED) (&)
New and amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily AN [ 0 ) A U2 FT AT MR
effective for the current year (Continued) 1EE] B B 5 R 5 25 R (48 )
3.2 Impacts on application of Amendments to IAS 1 and 32 EAEMETENF1IRRE
IFRS Practice Statement 2 Disclosure of Accounting BEBREEABERKRESE?2
Policies (Continued) HIETBEZEE I(EFTAX)
TE (&)
The application of the amendments has had no material FE R 2 S AT I M 3 7R 5 (B B 7S
impact on the Group’s financial positions and performance MARKRBERERTLE - D
but has affected the disclosure of the Group’s accounting HERNEEH NG M B HREW
policies set out in note 4 to the consolidated financial AN EEHBRHEE -
statements.
Amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet effective BB E MR ER 2 IS RT B
R S S AR
The Group has not early applied the following amendments to IFRSs NEFEWEIZZERA TS 2 BHER AR
that have been issued but are not yet effective: AR BUE RTBIRR B 7 5 22 A
Amendments to IFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an BBR T 75 R B BEEZBHBENT
and IAS 28 Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture' F10RLERE: AEEBNEE
BRFBHR(ETR)  HERTE
Amendments to IFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback? BpR B S R R ExMAnNHEEaRE
ERACCHES)
Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non- BB et ERIE15 MEFIERBEEND
current? CHEN 182
Amendments to IAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants? B e ERE15% A ZHEOIERD
CHEN BE
Amendments to IAS 7 Supplier Finance Arrangements? BEERETRE HEFRE TR
and IFRS 7 Giligupretall
ETH(ETR)
Amendments to IAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability® BReENE21% BB
CHEN
! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be 1 WEET HEIs 2 B A EE HAR
determined E0
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2024 2 H2024F1 1A 2 A ABKHFE
AR A
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2025 3 52?32521 A1Bs 2 ZHRBNFE
BAR AR
Except for the amendments to IFRSs mentioned below, the M TSPl 2 S 5T BB B 75 i 45 #E Bl
Directors anticipate that the application of all other amendments SN BETER  FERMEEMSEETE
to IFRSs will have no material impact on the consolidated financial BRI SR AR A T B R T2 Yigs
statements in the foreseeable future. IS HREREREATE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended December 31, 2023 #Z2023F 12 A31H ILF/E

3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

Amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current (the “2020 Amendments”) and Amendments
to IAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (the “2022
Amendments”)

For rights to defer settlement for at least twelve months from
reporting date which are conditional on the compliance with
covenants, the requirements introduced by the 2020 Amendments
have been modified by the 2022 Amendments. The 2022
Amendments specify that only covenants with which an entity
is required to comply with on or before the end of the reporting
period affect the entity’s right to defer settlement of a liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting date. Covenants which are
required to comply with only after the reporting period do not affect
whether that right exists at the end of the reporting period.

In addition, the 2022 Amendments specify the disclosure
requirements about information that enables users of financial
statements to understand the risk that the liabilities could become
repayable within twelve months after the reporting period, if the
entity classify liabilities arising from loan arrangements as non-
current when the entity’s right to defer settlement of those liabilities is
subject to the entity complying with covenants within twelve months
after the reporting period.

The 2022 Amendments also defer the effective date of applying the
2020 Amendments to annual reporting periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2024. The 2022 Amendments, together with the 2020
Amendments, are effective for annual reporting periods beginning
on or after January 1, 2024, with early application permitted. If an
entity applies the 2020 amendments for an earlier period after the
issue of the 2022 Amendments, the entity should also apply the
2022 Amendments for that period.
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For the year ended December 31, 2023 #ZE2023F12A31HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

Amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current (the “2020 Amendments”) and Amendments
to IAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (the “2022
Amendments”) (Continued)

As at December 31, 2023, the Group’s right to defer settlement for
bank loans of RMB1,770,042,000 are subject to compliance with
certain financial ratios within 12 months from the reporting date.
Except for a bank loan of RMB71,303,000 reclassified to current
liabilities due to the breach of certain financial covenants, other
bank loans with maturity over 1 year were classified as non-current
as the Group has no non-compliance as at December 31, 2023.
Upon the application of the 2022 Amendments, such borrowings
will still be classified as non-current as the covenants which the
Group is required to comply with only after the reporting period do
not affect whether that right exists at the end of the reporting date
and such borrowing will still be classified as non-current.

Except as disclosed above, the application of the 2020 and 2022
Amendments will not affect the classification of the Group’s other
liabilities as at December 31, 2023.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB. For the purpose of
preparation of the consolidated financial statements, information
is considered material if such information is reasonably expected
to influence decisions made by primary users. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MBHmRNE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2023 & ZE2023F12A831HIEFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company

and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved where the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more

of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statements of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control until

the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit

balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with the

Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group

are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately
from the Group’s equity therein, which represent present ownership
interests entitling their holders to a proportionate share of net assets

of the relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.
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For the year ended December 31, 2023 #ZE2023F12A31HILFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)
Changes in the Group’s interests in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do not result in
the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as
equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s relevant
components of equity and the non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries,
including re-attribution of relevant reserves between the Group and
the non-controlling interests according to the Group’s and the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted, and the fair value of the consideration paid
or received is recognized directly in equity and attributed to owners
of the Company.

Business combinations

A business is an integrated set of activities and assets which
includes an input and a substantive process that together
significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. The acquired
processes are considered substantive if they are critical to the
ability to continue producing outputs, including an organised
workforce with the necessary skills, knowledge, or experience to
perform the related processes or they significantly contribute to the
ability to continue producing outputs and are considered unique
or scarce or cannot be replaced without significant cost, effort, or
delay in the ability to continue producing outputs.

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognized
in profit or loss as incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MBHmRNE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2023 #Z2023F 12 A31H ILF/E

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

Business combinations (Continued)

The identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed must

meet the definitions of an asset and a liability in the Conceptual

Framework for Financial Reporting (the “Conceptual Framework”)

except for transactions and events within the scope of IAS 37

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets or IFRIC-Int

21 Levies, in which the Group applies IAS 37 or IFRIC-Int 21 instead

of the Conceptual Framework to identify the liabilities it has assumed

in a business combination. Contingent assets are not recognized.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the

liabilities assumed are recognized at their fair value, except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or assets related
to employee benefit arrangements are recognized and
measured in accordance with IAS 12 Income Taxes and |IAS
19 Employee Benefits respectively;

. liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to replace
share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree are
measured in accordance with IFRS 2 Share-based Payment
at the acquisition date;

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale
in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale
and Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance
with that standard; and

° lease liabilities are recognized and measured at the present
value of the remaining lease payments (as defined in IFRS
16 Leases) as if the acquired leases were new leases at the
acquisition date, except for leases for which (a) the lease
term ends within 12 months of the acquisition date; (b) the
underlying asset is of low value. Right-of-use assets are
recognized and measured at the same amount as the relevant
lease liabilities, adjusted to reflect favourable or unfavourable
terms of the lease when compared with market terms.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continue
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For the year ended December 31, 2023 #ZE2023F12A31HILFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net amount of
the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed as
at acquisition date. If, after assessment, the net amount of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the
sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the
excess is recognized immediately in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the relevant
subsidiary’s net assets in the event of liquidation are initially
measured at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of
the recognized amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets
or at fair value. The choice of measurement basis is made on a
transaction-by-transaction basis.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a business
combination includes a contingent consideration arrangement, the
contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair
value and included as part of the consideration transferred in a
business combination. Changes in the fair value of the contingent
consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments are
adjusted retrospectively. Measurement period adjustments are
adjustments that arise from additional information obtained during
the “measurement period” (which cannot exceed one year from the
acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date when the Group obtains
control), and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognized in profit
or loss or other comprehensive income, as appropriate. Amounts
arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date
that have previously been recognized in other comprehensive
income and measured under IFRS 9 would be accounted for on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had disposed directly
of the previously held equity interest.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ire M mAMNE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2023 & ZE2023F12A831HIEFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost
as established at the date of acquisition of the business (see the
accounting policy above) less accumulated impairment losses, if

any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or group of cash-
generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination, which represent the lowest level at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes and not

larger than an operating segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually or
more frequently when there is indication that the unit (or a group of
cash-generating units) may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an
acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit (or group
of cash-generating units) to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment before the end of that reporting period.
If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based
on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or group of cash-

generating units).

Interests in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not

control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing
of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the

parties sharing control.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued

)
e B mAMNE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2023 #ZE2023F12A31HILFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Interests in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates or joint ventures
are incorporated in the consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting, except when the investment
is classified as held for sale, in which case it is or the portion so
classified is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5. The
financial statements of associates and joint ventures used for equity
accounting purposes are prepared using uniform accounting
policies as those of the Group for like transactions and events in
similar circumstances. Under the equity method, an investment
in an associate or a joint venture is initially recognized in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognize the Group’s share of the profit or loss and
other comprehensive income of the associate or joint venture.
Changes in net assets of the associate/joint venture other than profit
or loss and other comprehensive income are not accounted for
unless such changes resulted in changes in ownership interest held
by the Group. When the Group’s share of losses of an associate or
a joint venture exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate or joint
venture (which includes any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate or joint
venture), the Group discontinues recognizing its share of further
losses. Additional losses are recognized only to the extent that
the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate or joint venture.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted
for using the equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate or a joint venture. On acquisition of the
investment in an associate or a joint venture, any excess of the
cost of the investment over the Group’s share of the net fair value
of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is recognized
as goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of the
investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment,
after reassessment, is recognized immediately in profit or loss in the
period in which the investment is acquired.
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For the year ended December 31, 2023 #Z2023F 12 A31H ILF/E

4,

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Interests in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence that
the interest in an associate or a joint venture may be impaired.
When any objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount
of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment
in accordance with IAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less
costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss
recognized is not allocated to any asset, including goodwill, that
forms part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of
that impairment loss is recognized in accordance with IAS 36 to the
extent that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an
associate or joint control over a joint venture, it is accounted for
as a disposal of the entire interest in the investee with a resulting
gain or loss be recognized in profit or loss. When the Group
retains an interest in the former associate or joint venture and the
retained interest is a financial asset within the scope of IFRS 9,
the Group measures the retained interest at fair value on the date
it lost significant influence or joint control over the investee and
the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition.
The difference between the carrying amount of the associate or
joint venture and the fair value of any retained interest and any
proceeds from disposing of the relevant interest in the associate
or joint venture is included in the determination of the gain or
loss on disposal of the associate or joint venture. In addition,
the Group accounts for all amounts previously recognized in
other comprehensive income in relation to that associate or joint
venture on the same basis as would be required if that associate
or joint venture had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognized in other
comprehensive income by that associate or joint venture would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets
or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to
profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) upon disposal/partial
disposal of the relevant associate or joint venture.

The Group continues to use the equity method when an investment
in an associate becomes an investment in a joint venture or an
investment in a joint venture becomes an investment in an associate.
There is no remeasurement to fair value upon such changes in
ownership interests.
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For the year ended December 31, 2023 #ZE2023F12A31HILFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Interests in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint venture
of the Group, profits or losses resulting from the transactions with
the associate or joint venture are recognized in the consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in the associate
or joint venture that are not related to the Group.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) are classified as held for
sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a
sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition
is regarded as met only when the asset (or disposal group) is
available for immediate sale in its present condition subject only
to terms that are usual and customary for sales of such asset (or
disposal group) and its sale is highly probable. Management must
be committed to the sale, which should be expected to qualify for
recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of
classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving disposal of
an investment, or a portion of an investment, in an associate or joint
venture, the investment or the portion of the investment that will be
disposed of is classified as held for sale when the criteria described
above are met, and the Group discontinues the use of the equity
method in relation to the portion that is classified as held for sale
from the time when the investment (or a portion of the investment) is
classified as held for sale.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held for sale
are measured at the lower of their previous carrying amount and fair
value less costs to sell.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Information about the Group’s accounting policies relating to
contracts with customers is provided in note 6.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended December 31, 2023 & ZE2023F12A831HIEFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)
Leases

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in

exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date of initial
application of IFRS 16 or arising from business combinations, the
Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease based on
the definition under IFRS 16 at inception or modification date. Such
contract will not be reassessed unless the terms and conditions of

the contract are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or more
additional lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis
of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the

aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.

The Group applies practical expedient not to separate non-lease
components from lease component, and instead account for the
lease component and any associated non-lease components as a

single lease component.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continue
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For the year ended December 31, 2023 #ZE2023F12A31HILFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option. It also
applies the recognition exemption for lease of low-value assets.
Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
are recognized as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use assets includes:
. the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received; and

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain to
obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end of the
lease term is depreciated from commencement date to the end of
the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the
lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the
definition of investment property as a separate line item on the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended December 31, 2023 & ZE2023F12A831HIEFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)
Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognizes and
measures the lease liability at the present value of lease payments
that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is

not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

° fixed payments less any lease incentives receivable;

° variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate;

and

o amounts expected to be paid under residual value

guarantees.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by

interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a corresponding

adjustment to the related right-of-use assets) whenever:

. the lease term has changed or there is a change in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case
the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the

date of reassessment.

° the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review, in which cases
the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the

revised lease payments using the initial discount rate.
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For the year ended December 31, 2023 #ZE2023F12A31HILFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessor
Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance
or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an
underlying asset to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance
lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating lease is recognized in profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset, and
such costs are recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term. Variable lease payments for operating leases
that depend on an index or a rate are estimated and included in the
total lease payments to be recognized on a straight-line basis over
the lease term. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an
index or a rate are recognized as income when they arise.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding after the related
asset is ready for its intended use or sale is included in the
general borrowing pool for calculation of capitalization rate on
general borrowings. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalization.

All other borrowing costs are recognized in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

BAETHEERN (M)
ME(E)
AEEERHAA

HEY 7R B

AEBEEREEANEES ERARMEM
o elE - EHENGREE LK
EARRAE E B AR A P RS K R
e AR - ZIAR AR ER
REMHE - rEHMEERRERKE
HE -

RERENESWARHBEEOERR
NEAOER B PR - B RTHHE
BHAOEENTMBEERAN - 5tAHHE
BEMNKREE  ZERANABLREER
EFHERAMAX - IIREREHS L X
HELLHEEN AT SEHEN - AiFE
SEAREEF NS LB ARERERHHE
ENFARET o THURNIEEEHL TR
AIEEENRREERTERRBLA

(NN

EERRBRUBEEREE(ELAR
—BEFREBENMEERERGIIHEE
MWEE)WERRAE - IAZEEEN
AR BEEBRERR LBZHETEE
REEERL

TR BREEREEREREIHE
BRIDREENFERK - SHA—RIERE
HAG R E—REERNERE
Ko UIFRIFRBREER ZHFER
RIEHE TR ERRHBRERAR S
BIRENMCAE R AR IR ©

P L fE A AN E £ IR Ry R s
W -

2023 3
BB EEBRAR

131



132
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For the year ended December 31, 2023 & ZE2023F12A831HIEFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognized until there is a reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching

to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognized in profit or loss on a systematic
basis over the periods in which the Group recognizes as expenses
the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Specifically, government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current
assets are recognized as deferred income in the consolidated
statement of financial position and transferred to profit or loss on
a systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of the related

assets.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognized in profit or loss in the period in
which they become receivable. Such grants are presented under

“other income”.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of current and deferred

income tax expense.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit before taxation because of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the end of each reporting period.
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For the year ended December 31, 2023 #ZE2023F12A31HILFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences
to the extent that is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognized
if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit and at the time of the transaction does not give rise to equal
taxable and deductible temporary differences. In addition, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognized if the temporary difference arises
from the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary
difference associated with investments in subsidiaries and interests
in associates and joint ventures, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and interests are
only recognized to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilize the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled
or the asset is realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of each reporting
period.
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For the year ended December 31, 2023 & ZE2023F12A831HIEFE

4,

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Taxation (Continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of each reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amounts of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be recovered
entirely through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted.
The presumption is rebutted when the investment property is
depreciable and is held within a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied
in the investment property over time, rather than through sale,
except for freehold land, which is always presumed to be recovered
entirely through sale.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing transactions
in which the Group recognizes the right-of-use assets and the
related lease liabilities, the Group first determines whether the tax
deductions are attributable to the right-of-use assets or the lease
liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are attributable
to the lease liabilities, the Group applies IAS 12 Income Taxes
requirements to the lease liabilities and right-of-use assets
separately. The Group recognizes a deferred tax asset related to
lease liabilities to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary difference
can be utilised and a deferred tax liability for all taxable temporary
differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied to the same
taxable entity by the same taxation authority.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continue

)
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For the year ended December 31, 2023 #ZE2023F12A31HILFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Taxation (Continued)

Current and deferred tax are recognized in profit or loss, except
when it relates to items that are recognized in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred
tax are also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from
the initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.

In assessing any uncertainty over income tax treatments, the Group
considers whether it is probable that the relevant tax authority will
accept the uncertain tax treatment used, or proposed to be used by
individual group entities in their income tax filings. If it is probable,
the current and deferred taxes are determined consistently with the
tax treatment in the income tax filings. If it is not probable that the
relevant taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment, the
effect of each uncertainty is reflected by using either the most likely
amount or the expected value.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes (other than properties under construction as
described below). Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost, less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any.
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For the year ended December 31, 2023 #Z2023F 12 A31H ILF/E

4,

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply
of goods or services, or for administrative purposes are carried
at cost, less any recognized impairment loss. Costs include any
costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management, including costs of testing whether the
related assets is functioning properly and, for qualifying assets,
borrowing costs capitalized in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy. Sale proceeds of items that are produced while
bringing an item of property, plant and equipment to the location
and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management (such as samples produced
when testing whether the asset is functioning properly), and the
related costs of producing those items are recognized in the profit
or loss. The cost of those items are measured in accordance with
the measurement requirements of IAS 2. Depreciation of these
assets, on the same basis as other property assets, commences
when the assets are ready for their intended use.

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land is presented as “right-of-use
assets” in the consolidated statement of financial position. When
the consideration cannot be allocated reliably between non-lease
building element and undivided interest in the underlying leasehold
land, the entire properties are classified as property, plant and
equipment.

If a property becomes an investment property because its use has
changed as evidenced by end of owner-occupation, any difference
between the carrying amount and the fair value of that item (including
the relevant leasehold land classified as right-of-use assets) at the
date of transfer is recognized in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in revaluation reserve. On the subsequent sale or
retirement of the property, the relevant revaluation reserve will be
transferred directly to retained profits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continue

)
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For the year ended December 31, 2023 #ZE2023F12A31HILFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is recognized so as to write off the costs (other than
properties under construction) less their residual values over their
useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful
lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in the profit
or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation. Investment properties also include leased
properties which are being recognized as right-of-use assets and
subleased by the Group under operating leases.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any
directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at fair value, adjusted to
exclude any prepaid or accrued operating lease income.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment
properties are included in profit or loss for the period in which they
arise.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately
are carried at costs less accumulated amortization and any
accumulated impairment losses (see the accounting policy in
respect of impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
below). Amortization is recognized on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortization
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with
the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a
prospective basis.
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For the year ended December 31, 2023 & ZE2023F12A831HIEFE

4,

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Intangible assets (Continued)
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
recognized separately from goodwill and are initially recognized at
their fair value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as their
cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in a
business combination with finite useful lives are reported at costs
less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses, on the same basis as intangible assets that are acquired
separately.

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets, and intangible assets other than
goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets,
intangible assets with finite useful lives to determine whether there is
any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss.
If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment, right-of-
use assets, and intangible assets are estimated individually. When
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount individually,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (the “CGU") to which the asset belongs.

In testing a CGU for impairment, corporate assets are allocated
to the relevant CGU when a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be established, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of CGUs for which a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be established. The recoverable amount is
determined for the CGU or group of CGUs to which the corporate
asset belongs, and is compared with the carrying amount of the
relevant CGU or group of CGUs.
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For the year ended December 31, 2023 #ZE2023F12A31HILFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets, and intangible assets other than
goodwill (Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset (or the CGU) for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is estimated to
be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
(or the CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. For corporate
assets or portion of corporate assets which cannot be allocated on
a reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-generating unit, the
Group compares the carrying amount of a group of CGUs, including
the carrying amounts of the corporate assets or portion of corporate
assets allocated to that group of CGUs, with the recoverable
amount of the group of CGUs. In allocating the impairment loss,
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets on a
pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit or a group of CGUs. The carrying amount of an asset is not
reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if
applicable), its value in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount
of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated
to the asset is allocated pro-rata to the other assets of the unit or a
group of CGUs. An impairment loss is recognized immediately in
profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or the CGU or the group of CGUSs) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognized for the asset (or the CGU or the group of CGUSs) in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized immediately in
profit or loss.
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For the year ended December 31, 2023 & ZE2023F12A831HIEFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents presented on the consolidated

statement of financial position include:

(a) cash, which comprises of cash on hand and demand
deposits, excluding bank balances that are subject to
regulatory restrictions that result in such balances no longer

meeting the definition of cash; and

(b) cash equivalents, which comprises of short-term (generally
with original maturity of three months or less), highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to a known amount
of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value and restricted deposits arising from pre-
sale of properties that are held for meeting short-term cash
commitments. Cash equivalents are held for the purpose
of meeting short-term cash commitments rather than for

investment or other purposes.

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents as

defined above.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value.
Costs of inventories are determined using weighted average cost
formula. Net realizable value represents the estimated selling price
for inventories less all estimated costs to completion and the costs
necessary to make the sale. Costs necessary to make the sale
include incremental costs directly attributable to the sale and non-

incremental costs which the Group must incur to make the sale.
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For the year ended December 31, 2023 #ZE2023F12A31HILFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4, BEAREFTHERER(E)
(CONTINUED)
Inventories (Continued) FE(E)

Properties for/under development which are intended to be sold
upon completion of development and properties for sale are
classified as current assets. Except for the leasehold land element
which is measured at cost model in accordance with the accounting
policies of right-of-use assets, properties for/under development/
properties for sale are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on a specific identification basis including
allocation of the related development expenditure incurred and
where appropriate, borrowing costs capitalised. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price for the properties less
estimated cost to completion and costs necessary to make the
sales. Costs necessary to make the sale include incremental costs
directly attributable to the sale and non-incremental costs which the
Group must incur to make the sale.

Properties for/under development for sale are transferred to
properties for sale upon completion.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation
(legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that
the Group will be required to settle that obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of
the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the
cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying
amount is the present value of those cash flows (where the effect of
the time value of money is material).
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For the year ended December 31, 2023 & ZE2023F12A831HIEFE

4,

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Provisions (Continued)
Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a present obligation arising from past events
but is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured
with sufficient reliability.

Where the Group is jointly and severally liable for an obligation, the
part of the obligation that is expected to be met by other parties
is treated as a contingent liability and it is not recognized in the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group assesses continually to determine whether an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits has become probable. If
it becomes probable that an outflow of future economic benefits will
be required for an item previously dealt with as a contingent liability,
a provision is recognized in the consolidated financial statements
in the reporting period in which the change in probability occurs,
except in the extremely rare circumstances where no reliable
estimate can be made.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognized and derecognized on a trade day basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts with
customers which are initially measured in accordance with IFRS 15
Revenue from Contracts with Customers. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial
liabilities at FVTPL) are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognized
immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continue

)
e B mAMNE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2023 #ZE2023F12A31HILFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts and payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Financial assets
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at amortized cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and

. the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

° the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both selling and collecting
contractual cash flows; and

. the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that at the date of initial recognition of a financial asset the
Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair
value of an equity investment in other comprehensive income (“OCI")
if that equity investment is neither held for trading nor contingent
consideration recognized by an acquirer in a business combination
to which IFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.
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For the year ended December 31, 2023 & ZE2023F12A831HIEFE

4,

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

A financial asset is held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
the near term; or

. on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not a designated and effective hedging
instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a debt investment
that meets the amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria as measured at
FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch.

Amortized cost and interest income

Interest income is recognized using the effective interest method
for financial assets measured subsequently at amortized cost and
receivables subsequently measured at FVTOCI. Interest income
is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of a financial asset, except for financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-impaired (see below). For
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired,
interest income is recognized by applying the effective interest rate
to the amortized cost of the financial asset from the next reporting
period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired,
interest income is recognized by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following the determination that
the asset is no longer credit-impaired.

2023 ANNUAL REPC
China Risun Group:

EXETHERES (&)

SRTEA(E)
SREE(H)

EHEENBREHE(H)

TREER NBRARHERS

o WENIZEMRREMELE
R+ 3

. ROEBRESERAREANE
BHEBEIL M TAMLAH—
5 L ABRHER SRR
EaE

. WIEEBIETE A WL T A
PTAETE -

SN - REE R ARG EE T A
HAARRIR AR B AR MR E Wt
AW EBIRE RIRAREF ABmE
E(WELRADERIBER D ST
fc)

BB AR FIEA

HRIE KA EN S REERHR
BASERT AR 2 W AR IR
R ERNZERERFBIA o FBU
ANBBHERNEREAREREENR
REERE  EREHREEREDN
EREERINE T - REEKDHR
EERENEREEMS @ MEKAT
FEBRBRNEERRT — RS H
ERVEERH I TRER © IR
EERENERITANEERBRA N
Z NBRZEREETHRREER
18 - BN BHA TS B B R & fE
REEZEETHBHREERERDER
THYz eREENRRHEETHE

7
o8



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continue

)
e B mAMNE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2023 #ZE2023F12A31HILFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

Receivables classified as at FVTOCI

Subsequent changes in the carrying amounts for receivables
classified as at FVTOCI as a result of interest income calculated
using the effective interest method, are recognized in profit or
loss. All other changes in the carrying amount of these receivables
are recognized in OCI| and accumulated under the other reserve.
Impairment allowance are recognized in profit or loss with
corresponding adjustment to OCI without reducing the carrying
amounts of these receivables. The amounts that are recognized in
profit or loss are the same as the amounts that would have been
recognized in profit or loss if these receivables had been measured
at amortized cost. When these receivables are derecognized,
the cumulative gains or losses previously recognized in OCI are
reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being measured at
amortized cost or FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with any fair
value gains or losses recognized in profit or loss. The net gain or
loss recognized in profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest
earned on the financial asset and is included in the “other gains
and losses” line item.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended December 31, 2023 #Z2023F 12 A31H ILF/E

4,

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under IFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss (“ECL”) model on financial assets (including other long-
term receivables, other receivables, trade and bills receivables
measured at FVTOCI, amounts due from related parties, restricted
bank balances, bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents)
and financial guarantee contracts which are subject to impairment
assessment under IFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated at the end
of each reporting period to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL") represents the portion of
lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the end of each reporting period.
Assessments are done based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors,
general economic conditions and an assessment of both the
current conditions at the end of each reporting period as well as the
forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognizes lifetime ECL for trade receivables
and amounts due from related parties arising from contracts with
customers. The ECL on these assets are assessed collectively using
a provision matrix with appropriate groupings except that significant
balances are assessed individually.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance
equal to 12m ECL, unless there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition, in which case the Group
recognizes lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL
should be recognized is based on significant increases in the
likelihood of risk of a default occurring since initial recognition.
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For the year ended December 31, 2023 #ZE2023F12A31HILFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under IFRS 9 (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the end of each reporting
period with the risk if a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the date of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the
Group considers both quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account when
assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in the financial
instrument’s external (if available) or internal credit rating;

. significant deterioration in external market indicators of credit
risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread, the credit
default swap prices for the debtor;

. existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or
economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating
results of the debtor;

. an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of the
debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group
presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information
that demonstrates otherwise.
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For the year ended December 31, 2023 #Z2023F 12 A31H ILF/E

4,

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under IFRS 9 (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk on
a financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial
recognition if the debt instrument is determined to have low credit
risk at the end of each reporting period. A financial instrument is
determined to have low credit risk if (i) it has a low risk of default, (ii)
the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow
obligations in the near term and (iii) adverse changes in economic
and business conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual
cash flow obligations. The Group considers a debt instrument to
have low credit risk when it has an internal or external credit rating
of ‘investment grade’ as per globally understood definitions.

For financial guarantee contracts, the date that the Group becomes
a party to the irrevocable commitment is considered to be the date
of initial recognition for the purposes of assessing impairment. In
assessing whether there has been a significant increase in the
credit risk since initial recognition of financial guarantee contracts,
the Group considers the changes in the risk that the specified
debtor will default on the contract.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used
to identify whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are
capable of identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.
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For the year ended December 31, 2023 #ZE2023F12A31HILFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under IFRS 9 (Continued)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an event
of default occurs when information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay all
amounts due in accordance with the contractual terms.

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default has
occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days past due
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information
to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of
that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset
is credit-impaired includes observable data about the following
events:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

o a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

° the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, having
granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider;

. it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganization.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended December 31, 2023 #Z2023F 12 A31H ILF/E

4,

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under IFRS 9 (Continued)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty and
there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the counterparty
has been placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings. Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery procedures,
taking into account legal advice where appropriate. Any recoveries
made are recognized in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of default,
loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default)
and the exposure at default. The assessment of the probability
of default and loss given default is based on historical data and
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that is determined with the
respective risks of default occurring as the weights. The Group
uses a practical expedient in estimating ECL on trade receivables
using a provision matrix taking into consideration historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for forward looking information that is
available without undue cost and effort.

Generally, the ECL is estimated as the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continue
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For the year ended December 31, 2023 #ZE2023F12A31HILFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under IFRS 9 (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

For a financial guarantee contract, the Group is required to make
payments only in the event of a default by the debtor in accordance
with the terms of the instrument that is guaranteed. Accordingly, the
ECL is the present value of the expected payments to reimburse
the holder for a credit loss that it incurs less any amounts that the
Group expects to receive from the holder, the debtors or any other

party.

For ECL on financial guarantee contracts for which the effective
interest rate cannot be determined, the Group will apply a discount
rate that reflects the current market assessment of the time value of
money and the risks that are specific to the cash flows but only if,
and to the extent that, the risks are taken into account by adjusting
the discount rate instead of adjusting the cash shortfalls being
discounted.

Lifetime ECL for certain trade receivables and other receivables are
considered on a collective basis taking into consideration past due
information and relevant credit information such as forward looking

macroeconomic information.

For collective assessment, the Group takes into consideration the
following characteristics when formulating the grouping:

. Past-due status;

° Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

. External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure the

constituents of each group continue to share similar credit risk
characteristics.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MBHmRNE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2023 #Z2023F 12 A31H ILF/E

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to

impairment assessment under IFRS 9 (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

For financial guarantee contracts, the loss allowances are
recognized at the higher of the amount of the loss allowance
determined in accordance with IFRS 9; and the amount initially
recognized less, where appropriate, cumulative amount of income

recognized over the guarantee period.

Except for trade and bill receivables measured at FVTOCI and
financial guarantee contract, the Group recognizes an impairment
gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception of other receivables
where the corresponding adjustment is recognized through a loss
allowance account. For trade and bill receivables measured at
FVTOCI, the loss allowance is recognized in OCI and accumulated
in the other reserve without reducing the carrying amounts of these
debt receivables. Such amount represents the changes in the other

reserve in relation to accumulated loss allowance.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognizes a financial asset only when the rights
to receive cash flows from the assets expire, or when it transfers
the financial assets and substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the assets to another entity. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the transferred financial asset,
the Group recognizes its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognize the
financial asset and also recognizes a collateralized borrowing for

the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable is recognized in profit or

loss.
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For the year ended December 31, 2023 #ZE2023F12A31HILFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

On derecognition of an investment in a debt instrument classified as
at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in
the other reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Debt and equity instruments that are issued are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of
the contractual arrangement.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognized at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method or at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial

liability is (i) held for trading, or (ii) it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial liability is held for trading if:

o it has been incurred principally for the purpose of
repurchasing it in the near term; or

° on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified

financial instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

. it is a derivative that is not a designated and effective hedging
instrument.
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For the year ended December 31, 2023 & ZE2023F12A831HIEFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued)

Financial liabilities at amortized cost

Financial liabilities at amortized cost, including trade and other
payables, amounts due to related parties and bank and other loans,
are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs. Financial
liabilities at amortized cost are subsequently measured at amortized

cost using the effective interest method.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer
to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when
due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial
guarantee contract liabilities are measured initially at their fair

values. It is subsequently measured at the higher of:

o the amount of the loss allowance determined in accordance

with IFRS 9; and

° the amount initially recognized less, where appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognized over the guarantee

period.

Foreign exchange gains and losses

For financial liabilities that are denominated in a foreign currency,
not part of a designated hedging relationship and measured at
amortised cost at the end of each reporting period, the foreign
exchange gains and losses are recognized in the '‘Other gains
and losses’ line item in profit or loss (note 8) as part of net foreign

exchange gains/(losses).

The fair value of financial liabilities, denominated in a foreign
currency and not part of a designated hedging relationship, is
determined in that foreign currency and translated at the spot rate
at the end of the reporting period. For financial liabilities that are
measured as at FVTPL, the foreign exchange component forms part
of the fair value gains or losses and is recognized in profit or loss.
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For the year ended December 31, 2023 #ZE2023F12A31HILFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognizes financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognized and the consideration paid and payable is
recognized in profit or loss.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value at the date when
derivative contracts are entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of the reporting period. The
resulting gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss.

Offsetting a financial asset and a financial liability

A financial asset and a financial liability are offset and the net
amount presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position when, and only when, the Group currently has a legally
enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts; and intends
either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended December 31, 2023 & ZE2023F12A831HIEFE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 4, the Directors are required to make estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The
estimates and underlying assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.

Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized
in the period in which the estimates is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if

the revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following is the critical judgement, apart from those involving
estimations (see below), that the Directors have made in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies and that
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the

consolidated financial statements.

Revenue recognition

Application of various accounting principles related to the
measurement and recognition of revenue requires the Group to
make judgements and estimates. Specifically, significant judgments
include determining whether the Group is acting as the principal in
a transaction. The Group is a principal in a transaction if the Group
obtains control of the products sold or services provided before
they are transferred to customers. When the Group is primarily
obligated in a transaction, is subject to inventory risk, has latitude
in establishing prices and selecting suppliers, or has several but
not all of these indicators, the Group records revenues on a gross
basis. Otherwise, the Group records the net amount earned as

commissions from products sold or services provided.
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For the year ended December 31, 2023 #ZE2023F12A31HILFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of each reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next twelve
months are as follows:

Useful life and impairment of property, plant and equipment

In determining whether an asset is impaired, the management
requires an estimation of recoverable amount of an individual asset
or the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs, and has
to exercise judgement and make significant degree of estimation
in determining the recoverable amount of the assets, particularly
in assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred or any indicators
that may affect the asset’s value; (2) whether the carrying value of
an asset can be supported by the recoverable amount, in the case
of value in use, the net present value of future cash flows which
are estimated based upon the continued use of the asset; and
(3) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in estimating
the recoverable amounts including cash flow projections and an
appropriate discount rate. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the assets
belong.

Changing the assumptions selected by management to determine
the level of impairment, including product price, volume of sales
and growth rate, gross profit ratio or discount rate assumptions in
the cash flow projections, could materially affect the net present
value used in the impairment test.

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses
as at December 31, 2023 was RMB26,897,389,000 (2022:
RMB22,168,357,000).
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For the year ended December 31, 2023 & ZE2023F12A831HIEFE

5.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment of interests in associates

The Group assesses whether there is any objective evidence of
impairment of interests in associates at the end of each reporting
period. Test for impairment is required when there is an objective
evidence that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. For
the interests in associates, an impairment exists when its carrying
value exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its
fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The value in
use calculation for the interests in associates requires the Group to
estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the associates
and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value. Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected,
or change in facts and circumstances which results in downward
revision of future cash flows, a material impairment loss may arise.
The carrying amount of interests in associates as at December 31,
2023 were RMB707,622,000 (2022: RMB688,207,000).

Estimated impairment of doubtful receivables

The Group recognizes lifetime ECL for trade receivables, using
a provision matrix based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors,
general economic conditions and an assessment of both the current
as well as the forecast conditions at end of the reporting period. In
addition, the Group recognizes lifetime ECL for other receivables
when there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. The amount of the impairment loss based on ECL
model is measured as the difference between all contractual cash
flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at
the effective interest rate determined at initial recognition. Where
the future cash flows are less than expected, or being revised
downward due to changes in facts and circumstances, a material
impairment loss may arise. Further details are included in note 42.
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For the year ended December 31, 2023 #ZE2023F12A31HILFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Taxation

Determining tax provisions involves judgement on the future
tax treatments of certain transactions. The Group carefully
evaluates tax implications of transactions and tax provisions are
set up accordingly. The tax treatments of such transactions are
reconsidered periodically to take into account of all changes in tax
legislations.

The recognition of deferred tax assets require formal assessment by
the Group of the future profitability of related operations. In making
this judgement, the Group evaluates, amongst other factors, the
forecast financial performance, changes in technology and future
assessable profits or taxable temporary differences. Where the
expectations are different from the original estimates, a reversal or
further recognition of deferred tax assets may arise, which would be
recognized in profit or loss for the period in which such estimates
are changed. Further details are included in note 25.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation
of the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (or group of
cash-generating units) to which goodwill has been allocated, which
is the higher of the value in use or fair value less costs of disposal.
The value in use calculation requires the Group to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit
(or a group of cash-generating units) and a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value. Where the actual future cash
flows are less than expected, or change in facts and circumstances
which results in downward revision of future cash flows or upward
revision of discount rate, a material impairment loss may arise.

As at December 31, 2023, the carrying amount of goodwill
is RMB232,435,000 (2022: RMB232,435,000). Details of the
recoverable amount calculation are disclosed in note 19.
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For the year ended December 31, 2023 #Z2023F 12 A31H ILF/E

6.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

During the year, the Group’s revenue represents the amount
received and receivable from the sales of goods to external
customers arising from the coke and coking chemicals, refined
chemicals, operation management services, trading and sales of
properties arising from property development.

Revenue from the sales of goods directly to customers is recognized
when control of the goods has been transferred, being when the
products are accepted by the customers at the customer’s specific
destination or the Group’s plants. The customers have full discretion
over the products, and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could
affect the customers’ acceptance of the products. A receivable
is recognized by the Group when the goods are delivered to the
customers as this represents the point in time at which the right to
consideration becomes unconditional, as only the passage of time is
required before payment is due. Customers have no right to return
the products purchased once accepted.

Revenue from the management service provided to customers is
recognized over time when services are provided.

Revenue from sales of properties is recognised at a point in time
when the completed property is transferred to customers, being
at the point that the customer obtains the control of the completed
property and the Group has present right to payment.

For contracts where the period between payment and transfer of
the associated goods or services is less than one year, the Group
applies the practical expedient of not adjusting the transaction price
for any significant financing component.

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or services to a
customer, the Group determines whether the nature of its promise is
a performance obligation to provide the specified goods or services
itself (i.e. the Group is a principal) or to arrange for those goods
or services to be provided by the other party (i.e. the Group is an
agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good or service
before that good or service is transferred to a customer.
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For the year ended December 31, 2023 #ZE2023F12A31HILFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Principal versus agent (Continued)

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is to arrange for
the provision of the specified good or service by another party. In
this case, the Group does not control the specified good or service
provided by another party before that good or service is transferred
to the customer. When the Group acts as an agent, it recognizes
revenue in the amount of any fee or commission to which it expects
to be entitled in exchange for arranging for the specified goods or
services to be provided by the other party.

Operating segment

Information reported to the executive directors, being the chief
operating decision maker (the “CODM”"), for the purpose of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses on
types of goods or services delivered or provided.

During the year, the Group identified property development as a
new reportable segment. As the property development commenced
its revenue generation from this year, its assets and liabilities
information was included in unallocated assets and liabilities in prior
year. Prior year segment disclosures have been represented to
conform with the current year’s presentation.

Specifically, the Group’s reportable segments under IFRS 8
Operating Segments are as follows:

o Coke and coking chemicals manufacturing segment: the
production and sale of coke and a series of coking chemicals
from externally sourced coking coals processed at the
Group’s coking facilities;

o Refined chemicals manufacturing segment: the purchase
of coking chemicals from the Group’s coke and coking
chemicals manufacturing segment and third parties, and
processing such coking chemicals into refined chemical
products at the Group’s refined chemicals facilities, as well as
marketing and selling such refined chemicals;

° Operation management segment: the operation management
service provided to the third-party plants, providing of raw
materials and the sale of coke, coking chemicals and refined
chemicals produced by these plants under the management
service agreements and commissioned processing contracts ;

° Trading segment: the sourcing of coke, coking chemicals and
refined chemicals from third parties and the marketing, sale
and distribution of such coal chemicals; and
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ire M mAMNE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2023 #Z2023F 12 A31H ILF/E

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

Operating segment (Continued)

° Property development segment: developing and selling

commercial and residential properties.

The CODM reviews operating results and financial information
for each operating company separately. Accordingly, each
operating company, including associates and joint ventures held
by the relevant operating company, is identified as an operating
segment. Those operating companies are aggregated into coke
and coking chemicals manufacturing segment, refined chemicals
manufacturing segment, operation management segment, trading
segment and property development segment respectively for
segment reporting purpose after taking into account that those
operating companies are operating in similar business model with
similar target group of customers, similar products and similar
methods used to distribute their products. The accounting policies
of the reportable segments are the same as the Group’s accounting

policies described in note 4.

Segment results, assets and liabilities

The CODM monitors the results, assets and liabilities attributable to

each reporting segment on the following bases:

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable segments
with reference to sales generated by those segments and the
expenses incurred by those segments or which otherwise arise
from the depreciation or amortization of assets attributable to those

segments.

All assets are allocated to segment assets other than unallocated
head office and corporate assets. All liabilities are allocated to
segment liabilities other than unallocated head office and corporate

liabilities.

To arrive at segment results, the Group’s earnings are adjusted
for unallocated head office and corporate expenses which are not

specifically attributable to individual segments.

In addition to receiving segment information concerning segment
results, management is provided with segment information
concerning revenue (including inter segment sales and share of
profits or losses of associates and joint ventures), depreciation,
amortization and additions to non-current segment assets used by

the segments in their operations.

Inter-segment sales are priced with reference to prices charged to

external parties for similar orders.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Contin

ued)
IRE BTSRRI ()

For the year ended December 31, 2023 #ZE2023F12A31HILFE

ed
:I:
=

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. WERKkDIBER(HE)
(CONTINUED)

Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued) DEEE BENBE(E)
The following is an analysis of the Group’s results, assets and LNTAREBRAI2mMIBEE - BER
liabilities by reportable segments: BES

Year ended/as at December 31, 2023
BENBF12ABLEE/RER

Coke and
Coking Refined
Chemicals Chemicals Operation Property
Manufacturing ~ Manufacturing  Management Trading  Development Total
ERREL BRI
ER4E ER4E Eegn g5 nERR @it
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB’000
AR ARETR AEETR AR ARETR AR
Revenue from contracts with external HEPANNE
customers
Sale of coke and coking chemicals HEERRENER 18,077,005 - - - - 18,077,005
Sale of refined chemicals HERBIIER - 18,680,876 2,013,254 - - 20,694,130
Trading g% - - - 7,168,375 - 7,168,375
Management services BB - - 3,507 - - 3,507
Sales of properties HEME - - - - 122,789 122,789
18,077,005 18,680,876 2,016,851 7,168,375 122,789 46,065,896
Inter-segment revenue Pl 1,792,586 188,079 - - - 1,080,665
Reportable segment revenue 2RI BUE 19,869,591 18,868,955 2,016,851 7,168,375 122,789 48,046,561
Reportable segment results T2RANER 395,487 459,005 (33,166) (172518) 18,405 667,213
Unallocated head office and corporate FORERERRAAF
expenses (236,623)
Gain on remeasurement of the equity interest Mﬂ%%ﬁﬁ\%& TRENE
ina Joint venture upon acquisition of eEhERE NE
additional interests (nofe 8) ( /Z/fﬁifﬂ) 251,158
Profit before taxation BH AR 681,748
Reportable segment assets EE k-1
(including interests in associates and joint ~ (BEREEATR
ventures) ABLENES) 21,337,867 21,601,809 858,751 8,466,736 624,281 52,889,444
Reportable segment liabilities T2HAHER 13,518,610 15,082,920 683,253 9,579,997 295,778 39,160,558
Other information: &R
Additions to non-current segment ERERBAPEELN
assets during the year 1,140,530 813,962 182,112 100,574 14 2,231,212
Share of results of associates PEBEDTEE 40,930 48,622 - - - 89,552
Share of results of joint ventures NMEAELERE 134,038 - - - - 134,038
Depreciafion and amortization for the year ~~ EMFER 1,073,599 1,192,737 20,853 15,541 46 2,302,776
Impairment losses on property, plantand ~ NEZRRENE - BRE
equipment recognized in proft or loss RREREEE - 67,715 - - - 67,715
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

irRe IR s (&)
For the year ended December 31, 2023 #(ZE2023F12A31HIFFE

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. WERDHBER(E)

(CONTINUED)
Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued) DEFEE  BEENRBEHE)
Year ended/as at December 31, 2022
BE02F12A31 B LER/HEA
Coke and
Coking Refined
Chemicals Chemicals Operation Property
Manufacturing ~ Manufacturing ~ Management Trading  Development Total
ERREN A
ERiE ERiE EEER 25 IELES it

RMB00 RMB00 RMB00 RMB00D RMB00D RMB00D
ARRTE  ARRTL ARRTL ARRTL ARETL ARETX

Revenue from contracts with HPEPANNE
external customers
Sale of coke and coking chemicals HEERRENER 16,368,438 - - - - 16,366,438
Sale of refined chemicals HERMLIER - 15,430,291 54,870 - - 15,485,161
Trading 25 - - - 11,223,815 - 11,223,815
Management services BRI - - 62,035 - - 62,035
16,368,438 15,430,291 116,905 11223815 - 43,139,449
Inter-segment revenue AiEE 1,770,247 26778 - - - 1,997,025
Reportable segment revenue TERIPhE 18,138,685 15,657,069 116,905 11223815 - 45,136,474
Reportable segment results EES i E+ | 1,839,562 552,625 15,539 168,892 - 2576618
Unallocated head office and RORBHERRAAFL
corporate expenses (373,135)
Profit before taxation BB AR 2203483
Reportable segment assets IEHANEE
(incluing interests in associates and (REREELER
joint ventures) RELEMER) 16,040,600 20,771,733 35,000 7,200,134 626,945 44674412
Reportable segment liabilities I2RIFER 10,575,209 12,982,490 - 7,276,708 594,758 31,429,165
Other information: &R
Additions to non-current segment FRERGATEEEN
assets during the year 706,284 6,258,583 - 191,870 - 7,156,737
Share of results of associates HEBELTEE 3275 55,862 - - - 50137
Share of resuls of oint ventures MEAELEEE 423490 - - - - 423490
Depreciation and amortization for the year ~~ FRAELZH 626,861 747,038 - 11,189 - 1,385,088
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continu d
T (48

)
e B mAMNE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2023 #ZE2023F12A31HILFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6.

(CONTINUED)

Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

Wk o 2R E R (&)

Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue, results, assets and 2Ryl - ¥E - BERAGERN
liabilities. HER o
Year ended/as at December 31,
HZE12A31ALFE R&A
2023 2022
20235 2022%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FTT ARETFT
Revenue Wz
Reportable segment revenue A 23R bk 48,046,561 45,136,474
Elimination of inter-segment revenue I 85 7 BB A Uk = (1,980,665) (1,997,025)
Consolidated revenue e e 46,065,896 43,139,449
Results %?ﬁ
Reportable segment results WD WEE 667,213 2,576,618
Gain on remeasurement of the equity interest EALBZ@%%EM\% mRBFTE
in a joint venture upon acquisition of S ERE 2 W (H778)
additional interests (note 8) 251,158 -
Unallocated head office and corporate ROMBHERRARIMY
expenses (236,623) (373,135)
Profit before taxation BRTE AR T 681,748 2,203,483
Assets EE
Reportable segment assets Wy EE 52,889,444 44,674,412
Unallocated head office and corporate assets EK [IRR R = S E/NCI = = 946,805 1,428,212
Consolidated total assets IRAEBEMRE 53,836,249 46,102,624
Liabilities ﬁﬁ
Reportable segment liabilities Wy aE 39,160,558 31,429,165
Unallocated head office and corporate ﬂi B ERERARAE
liabilities 203,246 2,078,430
Consolidated total liabilities A BEBRE 39,363,804 33,507,595
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ire M mAMNE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2023 & ZE2023F12A831HIEFE

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

Geographic information

Except for interests in joint ventures and an associate amounting
to RMB1,331,798,000 (2022: RMB1,331,800,000) and
RMB219,467,000 (2022: RMB265,919,000) respectively, and share
of results of the abovesaid investees amounting to RMB17,250,000
(2022: 409,000) which were operated in Indonesia, and 3% (2022:
6%) of the Group’s revenue which were derived from external
customers incorporated outside the PRC, the Group’s revenue and
profit were derived from the PRC and all principal assets employed
by the Group are located in the PRC during the reporting period.

Major customers

No individual customer had transactions exceeding 10% of
the Group’s revenue for both periods presented. Details of

concentrations of credit risk are set out in note 42.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e BEHERMEE)

For the year ended December 31, 2023 #ZE2023F12A31HILFE

7. OTHER INCOME 7. HMEWA

Year ended December 31,
BZ12A31HLEE

2023 2022
20234F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARKTFT AREFT

Interest income FESA 161,863 160,620
Value-added Tax (“VAT”) concession (Note a) 3&{ER: ([1L1EF: |)EHR(Hfita) 196,909 =
Production waste sales FEBRIEE 24,443 15,801
Equipment rental income REESUA 6,062 7,808
Government grants (Note b) BT B (A7aEb) 78,953 60,914
Others HAtb 39,388 29,255

507,618 274,398

Notes: Mzt -

a. During the year ended December 31, 2023, certain subsidiaries of a. RE22023F 12 A31HIEFE » K
the Company are qualified as “Advanced Manufacturing Enterprises”, RNEIETHEBARMAI T RER
which are eligible for an extra 5% VAT deduction based on their EIFER - AJR2023F1A1BE
deductible input VAT during the period from January 1, 2023 to 2027 H12 A31 8 IEHAERIBEE AT 0
December 31, 2027. I ETERTE - ZHEIN%EH

BERE -

b.  Government grants were received from several local government b. AEERERHRERE  SHOERER
authorities as subsidies for the Group’s contribution to the Bl - HNEIIRE R AR BB
environmental protection, energy conservation recycling resources, i 1 2% (& 3th, 75 R T #7935 BUBR AT
foreign investment and infrastructure construction. B o

2023 F 3k 167

RBIESEE G R AR




168

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MBHmRNE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2023 & ZE2023F12A831HIEFE

8. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

8. HfthmRER

Year ended December 31,

BZE12A31BLEE
2023 2022
2023F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARKTFT AREFT
Fair value (loss) gain of financial assets/ RAREFABENEREE,
liabilities at FVTPL: BENAEEER)RE
— Listed equity securities — R AES (38,578) (34,669)
— Unlisted equity securities — I LMRAFES 1,673 38,160
— Private equity investment funds —AERAEEES (43,927) 20,718
— Futures contracts —HEEH 37,170 1,824
— Derivative financial instruments —TESmIT A (39,488) 40,820
— Other non-derivative financial assets —HuE TR B E 1,919 (7,977)
Gain on settlement of a loan payable to a EHEMNEZERBRRER 2 W
non-controlling shareholder (Note a) (Hifzta) 49,925 -
Impairment losses of property, plant and Y% - B kR ERERIE
equipment (note 16) (KizE16) (67,715) -
Loss on foreign exchange, net HINEE 518 R (65,945) (83,353)
(Loss) gain on disposal of: HENTFIEN (B8 ) W
— right-of-use assets —(AEEE - 415
— property, plant and equipment —W% - BFE REE (5,988) 4,219
Gain on remeasurement of the equity RUIBREIMER R EFTESE
interest in a joint venture upon acquisition R 2 e (HMfatb)
of additional interests (Note b) 251,158 -
Decrease in provision for a legal arbitration — SE2{PE B R A (K15Ec)
(Note c) 154,606 -
Compensation for operation shutdown 1RERE (M7
(Note d) 68,369 -
Others Hth 29,233 18,707
332,412 (1,136)
Notes: Mzt -
a. In May 2023, the Group acquired a subsidiary, Huhhot Risun China a. RNEMMP2023F5 A UE T —HHEB

Gas Energy Limited (“Risun China Gas”), as detailed in note 38.
Pursuant to the agreement made between Risun China Gas and one
of its shareholders Huhhot China Urban Gas Development Co., Ltd
(“China Gas”) in 2019, the amount of shareholder’s loan payable to
China Gas will vary based on the closure date of a relevant production
line.

In September 2023, the production line was closed down earlier than
expected at the acquisition date. Risun China Gas and China Gas
entered into a supplementary agreement in December 2023, pursuant
to which the remaining balance of shareholder’s loan was settled and
a gain of RMB49,925,000 was recognized to other gains and losses
accordingly.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Contin

ed
:I:
=

ued)
IRE BTSRRI ()

For the year ended December 31, 2023 #ZE2023F12A31HILFE

OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

b.

During the year ended December 31, 2023, the Group further
acquired 12% equity interests in Risun China Gas as set out in
note 38, the difference between the fair value of the equity interest
previously held of RMB613,000,000 (note 38) and its carrying value of
RMB361,842,000 (note 22) on the acquisition date was recognized as
other gains.

Since the year 2021, a provision of RMB276 million, including accrued
interest, was made by the Group based on the judgement made by
the arbitration court in favor of the then contractor (the “Contractor”).
During the current year, the Group finalized the negotiation and
entered into a settlement agreement with the Contractor. According to
the agreement, the Group need to pay RMB200 million in instalment
till the end of 2026 , for the purchase of certain property, plant and
equipment valued at RMB67 million and the settlement of the amount
due to the Contractor. Thus, a decrease in provision amounting to
RMB155 million, including the imputed interest of the amount payable
to the Contractor amounting to RMB12 million, was recognized during
the current year.

The amount mainly represented a compensation receivable from
the local authority in relation to the termination of a project under
development due to a change of regulation in 2021. A compensation
agreement dated August 2023 was entered and the compensation will
be paid in instalments till April 30, 2025 based on the compensation
agreement signed by both parties.

IMPAIRMENT LOSSES UNDER EXPECTED
CREDIT LOSS MODEL, NET OF REVERSAL

8.

9.

Hp Wz & e iR ()
Wit < (4)

b. REFE2023F12A31HIEFE © &
S — IR JBIG  R 1 2% AR 4
FERMIFESS o ERIIFEREAALMEA
R #613,000,0007T (Fi5E38) E2 UL %
A HBRmEE A R#361,842,0007T (Ff
§E22) Z M E R AE A

c. H20214F 8 + AEBERIEFEITIAR
BRARE((AER]) AZEAME
HARIFR - TR T ARM27T6E BT
KB (R IEERTFIR) « KFE - K
SEEADEEEARAGLR Wi
TR o RIBZ W ® - AREA
2026 F FIK AT HiZ 7 AR 200
BET UEEME2EAARKE?
BETNETYE  BEREE U
LB ERMNFRBENIE - Bl - A
FEBRRTBERDARB15588
T BEBNABENHEEREAR
BI2EETT °

d. LT BIE021FRPIET - EH
BERERFPIBBEHLILMESNELLSE
AERRHES - MEHRDR2023F
8ARIN o IRIBFFTNEFETOHE
ek - BB ERER20254 830
=158 i Fa i

AHEEBRER T HRERS
5 HRED

Year ended December 31,

BZ12A31BLEE
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTFT AREFT

Impairment losses recognized UTEA NS RER(EE)RE
(reversed) on: =1

Trade and other receivables B 5 Rk E A R IE 75,127 (60,990)
Other long-term receivables H At R AR FE W IE (1,439) (23,159)
Amounts due from related parties JE s A 37,557 (3,606)
111,245 (87,755)

AR H RIS ENTRE42

Details of impairment assessment are set out in note 42.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ire MR mR M (4E)

For the year ended December 31, 2023 #(ZE2023F12A31HIFFE

10. FINANCE COSTS

10. BER A

Year ended December 31,

HZ12A31HILEE

2023 2022
20234F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARKTFT AREFT

Interest on bank loans RITERR S 911,791 734,647
Interest on other loans HMERFR S 371,675 249,470

Interest on unpaid consideration for I I A RIARERRERF S
acquisition of a subsidiary - 74,600

Finance expenses on bills receivable ERNREWRER IS ER

discounted 120,583 67,294
Finance charges on lease liabilities HEaENITBER 34,305 13,279
1,438,354 1,139,290

Less: Amount capitalized in construction in -~ & : fEIZ T2 NEMEAEEE
progress (Note) (K15%) (88,609) (142,036)
1,349,745 997,254

Note: The finance costs were capitalized at annual rates of 4.75%-9.20%
per annum during the year ended December 31, 2023 (2022: 4.75%—

9.35%).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e BEHERMEE)

For the year ended December 31, 2023 #ZE2023F12A31HILFE

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging:

11.

BRBL A R

B A FIAEFNER

Year ended December 31,

BZE12A31BLFE
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT AREFT
Staff costs (including directors’ remuneration) 8 TN (5= EHE)
Salaries, wages and other benefits e LEREAMEN 1,053,642 904,378
Contributions to retirement benefits scheme  EAREFIFHEI K 96,973 91,076
Total staff costs B TR A 4a%E 1,150,615 995,454
Capitalized in construction in progress FREIBERE (98,030) (133,370)
Capitalized in inventories GFEERE (594,189) (445,752)
458,396 416,332
Depreciation of property, plant Y - BERERETE
and equipment 2,074,952 1,194,647
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 128,776 124,627
Amortization of intangible assets | EEEHE 130,615 108,297
Total depreciation and amortization e R 2,334,343 1,427,571
Capitalized in construction in progress EETRERERNE (198) (2,737)
Capitalized in inventories FEERE (2,015,851) (1,228,779)
318,294 196,055
Auditors’ remuneration (including ZERMFHM(BREMB AR Z
subsidiaries’ auditors) 1ZEAD) 12,069 15,779
Gross rental income from investment WEMEZHE WAL
properties 1,527 -
Research and development costs recognised R AR ARTEE K R (GFATTER
as an expense (included in administrative REMFS)
and other expenses) 213,793 231,648
Cost of inventories recognized as an expense /A S A1F SR 42,354,655 38,822,815
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e BHERNEE)
For the year ended December 31, 2023 & ZE2023F12A831HIEFE

12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 12, X X E5ERESEHS
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

Year ended December 31, 2023

BZ2023F 123N BLLFE
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefits
Directors’  and benefits  Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
e 28 RIKER
ok RENER EERA HE 5 st

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T ARETT AREFx AREFRT AREFT

Executive directors YTES

Yang Xuegang E - 5,694 - 63 5,757
Zhang Yingwei RAE - 800 400 63 1,263
Han Qinliang BEE - 800 400 63 1,263
Wang Fengshan FEWL - 800 400 - 1,200
Wang Nianping FEF - 800 400 - 1,200
Yang Lu g - 940 400 46 1,386
Subtotal Nat - 9,834 2,000 235 12,069
Independent non-executive BYFHTEE

directors

Wang Yinping F5F 381 - - - 381
Yu Kwok Kuen Harry REIHE 381 - - - 381
Kang Woon B 381 - - - 381
Subtotal Nt 1,143 - - - 1,143
Total it 1,143 9,834 2,000 235 13,212
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IRe SRR (&)

For the year ended December 31, 2023 #ZE2023F 12 831HIEFE

12. EE - FESEREEMNS

12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(%)

Year ended December 31, 2022

HE2020F12A31BLLFE
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefits
Directors’ and benefits  Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
e 28 RINER
2 REWER HETEA AR Mt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETT AREFT ARETFT AEETT
Executive directors YTES
Yang Xuegang 5E - 5,627 - 58 5,685
Zhang Yingwei RAE - 775 600 58 1,433
Han Qinliang Y5 - 775 1,000 58 1,833
Wang Fengshan FEWL - 775 800 - 1,575
Wang Nianping FEF - 775 600 42 1,417
Yang Lu 15 - 925 660 28 1,613
Subtotal Nt - 9,652 3,660 244 13,556
Independent non-executive BIUEHTES
directors
Wang Yinping F5F 375 - - - 375
Yu Kwok Kuen Harry REIHE 375 - - - 375
Kang Woon B 375 - - - 375
Subtotal et 1,125 - - - 1,125
Total it 1,125 9,652 3,660 244 14,681

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the
Company and the Group.

The emoluments of independent non-executive directors shown
above were for their services as Directors.

Directors are entitled to bonus payments which are determined
based on the duties and responsibilities of the Directors as well as
the operating results of the Group.

Neither the chief executive nor any of the directors waived any
emoluments during the reporting period.

ERBITEFHE RREFREEARA
RASEEHRERBOME -

FRBIIFRTEEHE RREFELTE

EBE -

EFARBBIZESRE B EARA
KEEEREE TN -

RE#HR - TRAERIERNERTR

MEEFAME -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e BHERNEE)
For the year ended December 31, 2023 & ZE2023F12A831HIEFE

12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 12. E  FESEREEMS

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED) (#&)

Five highest paid individuals hEmEEHAL

The seven (Note) highest paid individuals of the Group during HE2023F12A31BIEFE - A& E
the year ended December 31, 2023 included six Directors (2022: tHR(MF)ESHFATBRE ERES
three Directors), whose emoluments are disclosed above. The (20225 : =%EF)  BEMER L
emoluments in respect of the remaining highest paid individuals NHEE o NIEEA - BESR TR
during the reporting period are as follows: ATHBEIT

Year ended December 31,

HBZE12A310LEE

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMFTT AT T

Salaries and other emoluments FekEMmpe 1,200 3,551
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RIRRFIF SR - 91
1,200 3,642

Note: During the year ended December 31, 2023, two directors and one Kzt - REE2023F12A31HILFE © W
employee were all with the same remuneration and ranked as the fifth BEER—REEHEERBEHH - R
highest paid individuals. EEEHFATZFHEER -

The remunerations of the seven highest paid employees (including tEERHEL(RIEES)FBE U

Directors) are within the following bands: TEENA

Year ended December 31,

BZE12A31BLEFE
2023 2022
20234 20224
Number of Number of
employees employees
EEAHK EEAH
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7L 21,500,000/ 7T 5 -
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7L 22,000,000/ 7T 1 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7c 22,500,000/ 7T - 3
HK$6,000,000 to HK$6,500,000 6,000,001 7C 26,500,000/ 7T 1 1
During the reporting period, no amount was paid or payable by the REREHA - A E I E A ES R
Group to the Directors or any of the five highest paid individuals as REEEH AT N ENFIBIEAS
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation 2 AN AR NN AR 52 ] Iy 1) 2 RD Sk B B
for loss of office. (e o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continue

)
e B mAMNE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2023 #ZE2023F12A31HILFE

13. INCOME TAX (CREDIT) EXPENSE

13. FiEH (BRI

Year ended December 31,

BZE12A31BLEE
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARKTFT ARETFT
Current tax (credit) expense BIHABiE () B
PRC income tax for the year FARBIFTSH 126,144 349,748
Reversal of income tax payable (Note) B e ER(AZE) (365,824) =
Deferred tax (credit) (note 25) BRI E (R ) (f/7725) (68,121) (5,756)
(307,801) 343,992

Note: In June 2023, three of the Group’s wholly-owned subsidiaries which
were acquired through acquisition of Wuhu Shunri Xinze Equity
Investment Partnership (LP) (“Shunri Xinze”) in 2021, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, transferred all their businesses
to another wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and completed
the necessary corporate tax closing procedures in compliance with
the relevant rules and regulations and deregistered in July 2023.
The Group recognized a reversal of income tax payable amounting
to RMB365,824,000 in profit and loss based on the outcome of the
corporate tax closing procedures.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands and the
BVI, the Group did not earn any income subject to any income tax
in these jurisdictions during the reporting period.

The Group’s subsidiaries in Hong Kong had no assessable profits
for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, and no provision
for taxation is made.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate
applicable for PRC group entities is 25% for the reporting period,
except for certain subsidiaries which enjoyed tax rate of 15% due to
relevant incentive policies.

During the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, certain
subsidiaries of the Company are qualified as “High and New Tech
Enterprises”, which are subject to PRC enterprise income tax at
the preferential rate of 15% of the estimated assessable profit as
determined in accordance with relevant tax rules and regulations in
the PRC. This preferential rate could be applied for three years, and
the subsidiaries are eligible to apply the tax concession again upon
expiry of the three-year period.

Bfat - 120236 A REB MK 2021FF
BUEERIEREERERESR
TrEERGBE)TIEREEZ] A2
ANEEMBAR)KBH=M2E
MEBARKEMAEEEETARR
S—EE2EMBAR - LARIRIEEE
R RIRGIRTHE BT R E
EBEHFE - WR202347 ABUH
T o AEERBCFEH FENLE
R RIESHERBEEEMFIEHAR
#365,824,0007T °

REMAEHENRBRLE BRI
P AL E R RS HIR I REVAS
MR EREEERMSHAOEMKA -

H E2023F N 2022F 12 A31 B [FF
& AEEBTBHB AR T ERER G
F - B EIER TR IEEAE -

RIEFRE S EMSTE(BEMER
E D REEMGSEEBRIED - REI%E
EEENREHAAMNEARER25% -
BaETHEBASHARERBEREX
FHEAE15%Ih ©

B 2 2023F M 2022F 12 A31 H IEF
[ ARAINETHBARER S35
B 1E8E - AREBEPEMEETE
MOEMFETE 2 B RPN ZH
15%H) R B EFTSIESTE o ItE
BREAHRA=F [WBARR=F
BffE MRS R B ERENRBEHG

T e

2023 3
BB R E G R AR

175




176

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

= A BTSRRI ()

wIN [ 7

For the year ended December 31, 2023 & ZE2023F12A831HIEFE

13. INCOME TAX (CREDIT) EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 13.

Certain subsidiaries of the Company operating in the PRC are
eligible for tax holiday and concession. Pursuant to the relevant
tax rules and regulation in the PRC, revenue from comprehensive
utilization of resources (“&JR&Ra A MA") is eligible for additional tax
deduction.

Income tax (credit) expense for the year can be reconciled to the
profit before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income as follows:

Fris®i (%) B < (&)

ARABRPELENETHEARNE
BRZEERBHEBERR - RiEH
BEAMBRAER - BEREEFA
BEEZ W s BERERFRIMAIRITRE

KERFTER (E %) Bx s A8
RE b2 TSR BT F A B
T

Year ended December 31,

BZ12A31BLEE
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTFT ARETFT
Profit before taxation PR 50 A1 7 681,748 2,203,483
Tax at the PRC tax rate of 25% R EIH E25%t E R TIIE 170,437 550,871
Tax effect on: AT EIEHMRETZE
Share of results of associates and joint DR ENTI REE RS
ventures (55,897) (120,657)
Non-deductible expenses AR B 11,091 11,792
Unused tax losses and temporary REERARB) AT BB R
differences not recognized bect ) 138,517 129,874
Utilisation of tax losses previously not B A BEARERNTIERE
recognized (13,928) (18,948)
PRC tax concessions R IER (192,197) (208,940)
Reversal of income tax payable (Note) BRI E PSR (ML) (365,824) -
Income tax (credit) expense for the year FEMBH KR A (307,801) 343,992

2023 ANNUAL REPO
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continue

14. DIVIDENDS

)
e B mAMNE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2023 #ZE2023F12A31HILFE

14. IRE
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FT ARETIT

Dividends recognized as distribution during

FRARDIRZEE

the year:
2023 Interim, paid — RMB4.9 cents 2023FHH - B —BR
per share ANREE4L.9% 216,782 =
2022 Final, paid — RMB0.9 cents 2022 KHA - BN —BR
per share AR¥0.9% 39,817 =
2022 Interim, paid - RMB12.3 cents 2022 HHA - BN —BR
per share AR¥12.3% S 544,306
2021 Final, paid - RMB6.3 cents 20215 KRE - B — 8K
per share AR6.35 - 279,153
256,599 823,459

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the final dividend
in respect of the year ended December 31, 2023 of RMB1.2 cents
per ordinary share, equivalent to HK1.32 cents per share, with
total amount of RMB53,090,000 (equivalent to HK$58,510,000) has
been proposed by the Directors and is subject to approval by the
shareholders in the forthcoming annual general meeting.

RFEHRE  EFEEHBREE
202312 A1 AIEFERBKRETR
LEBARE1 20 (HBEREZRK1.3278
Il) - BEE# A AR S53,090,0007T (7
£7458,510,000/8 L) + BRI FE
[ERREBEFRG EHERB T AIER ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MBHmRNE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2023 & ZE2023F12A831HIEFE

15. EARNINGS PER SHARE 15.

Basic earnings per share for the years ended December 31, 2023
and December 31, 2022 are calculated by dividing the profit
attributable to the owners of the Company by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares issued.

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to the ordinary shareholders of the Company is based
on the following data:

BEREF

HE2023F 12 A31H £ 20224 12 A 31
B IFFEREREREF TR AN A B
BAEISFGRAF R TR
T EETE -

ARREBRRREESRERNLEE
BT TEEE

Year ended December 31,

BZ12A31HLEE
2023 2022
20234 20224
Earnings EF
Profit attributable to the owners of the RARVHEE AT
Company (RMB’000) (AR¥For) 860,814 1,855,122
Number of shares BOEE

Weighted average number of ordinary shares FtEREARE T = L@
for the purpose of basic earnings per share  AliEF 198

4,422,693,814 4,431,225,321

Basic earnings per share (RMB) GIREARBN (ALK T)

0.19 0.42

No diluted earnings per share was presented for both years as
there were no dilutive potential ordinary shares in issue for both
years.

2023 ANNUAL REPOF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continue
Yoo A

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

)
w3 /\ﬁﬁ%i&% BTjE\I ( lii‘,%ii >
For the year ended December 31, 2023 #ZE2023F 12 831HIEFE

16. Y% - MERRHE

Machinery
and Motor Office Construction
Buildings  equipment vehicles  equipment  in progress Total
BF  HBERRE RE BAERE  REBIR @t
RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000
AREFT  AREFL  ABEFT  AREFT  ARETT  AREFI

Cost RE
At January 1, 2022 1202246 1R1R 6,731,715 12,108,078 53,282 104,550 2942667 21,940,292
Additions B - 8,120 11,092 20,843 6,674,481 6,714,536
Transfer from construction in BRakRIR 445,728 831,193 - - (1.276921) S

progress
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-RHBAR (1,397) - - - (2.453) (3.850)
Disposals e (24,289) (16,446) (7,672) (1,916) = (50,323)
At December 31, 2022 2022412318 7,161,757 12,930,945 56,702 123477 8337,774 28,600,655
Additions AE - 7,831 14,185 48,894 1863373 1,934,283
Transfer from construction in HEOTRETR 7050530 6,489,764 - - (13,540,294) -

progress
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 38) W —TMB LA (M58 503,676 254,416 5,288 1136 4204849 4,969,365
Transfer to investment properties ~ BBERENE(H/i#18) (60,610) - - - - (60,610)

(note 18)
Disposals e (2,748) (19,577) (9,078) (1,568) - (32971)
At December 31, 2023 12023124318 14,642,605 19,663,379 67,097 171,939 865,702 35,410,722
Depreciation and impairment RERAE
At January 1, 2022 1202251718 1,578,051 3,608,321 35,407 58,162 - 5279941
Depreciation e 327,789 840,654 10,900 15,304 - 1,194,647
Disposals L& (23,529) (13,607) (3,644) (1,510) - (42,290)
At December 31, 2022 120224124318 1,882,311 4,435,368 42,663 71,956 - 6,432,298
Depreciation e 632,132 1,413,980 10,055 18,785 - 2,074,952
Impairment WA 14,639 53,038 - 38 - 67,715
Transfer to investment properties ~ ERERENE(H/i£18) (37,365) - - - - (37,365)

(note 18)
Disposals HE (982) (15,658) (6,185) (1,442) - (24,267)
At December 31, 2023 120235124318 2490735 5,886,728 46,533 89,337 - 8513333
Carrying amounts kEE
At December 31, 2023 12023124318 12,151,870 13,776,651 20,564 82,602 865,702 26,897,389
At December 31, 2022 20225124318 5260446 8495577 14,039 51,521 8,337,774 22,168,357
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MBHmRNE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2023 & ZE2023F12A831HIEFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16.

(CONTINUED)

The above items of property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress, after taking into account their estimated

residuals, are depreciated on a straight-line basis as follows:

Buildings 20-30 years
Machinery and equipment 5-30 years
Motor vehicles 3-12 years
Office equipment 2-15 years

Details of the pledged property, plant and equipment are set out in

note 45.

During the year ended December 31, 2023, the Group recognized
impairment losses of RMB67,715,000 based on the fair value less
costs of disposal related to property, plant and equipment of the
hydrogen peroxide production line which was damaged due to a

fire accident in September 2023.

During the year ended December 31, 2023, buildings with amount
of RMB176,203,000 (2022: nil) after revaluation was transferred
to investment properties upon end of owner-occupation and a
corresponding increase in fair value of RMB152,958,000 was

recognized to other comprehensive income.

ME - BERRE(E)

BRERTRIN - EE  BERRE
BB R R E G RISREBERIRESE
WEWMT :

BF 20ZE30%F
MR N5 57304
A 3E124F
F N 2154

BRI - WE MR EHFBEHRM
545 ©

R2023F 12 A31HILFE - AEER
BRRMER 202349 A HE R A
MEXENEEKREESNDE BE
DBz AERRERIAARE
67,715,0007T ©

MR2023F 12 A31B ILFE » EfE S
58 5 N R #176,203,0007T (20224
ENEFEORPAREERERE
W WSHENRSEEMARE
152,958,000 T FERR Efth 2 T Uk 2 o

17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 17. EREEE

Leasehold Office and
lands equipment Total
Carrying amount BREE HETi WAERRE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTFIT ARBTFT ARBTFT

(Note)

(K17)
As at January 1, 2022 202251 518 1,505,709 216,765 1,722,474
Additions NE 8,332 408,556 416,888
Disposals & (174) (15,421) (15,595)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—RKBAR (9,778) - (9,778)
Depreciation charge TEXH (39,387) (85,240) (124,627)
As at December 31, 2022 2022612 A31H 1,464,702 524,660 1,989,362
Additions NE 70,679 178,760 249,439

Acquisition of a subsidiary U B8 — R BT B A &)

(note 38) (H7:£38) 107,100 - 107,100
Depreciation charge WEX N (34,248) (94,528) (128,776)
As at December 31, 2023 #2023F 12 A31H 1,608,233 608,892 2,217,125
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e BEHERMEE)

For the year ended December 31, 2023 #ZE2023F12A31HILFE

17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (CONTINUED) 17. EREEE(E)
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FT ARETIT

Expense relating to short-term leases and EEHHEREEEEEHRE

leases of low-value assets k= 3,975 3,937
Total cash outflow for leases HERe R B 73,300 139,760
Note: For both years, the Group leases various offices, warehouse Bt - RZmEEE  AEERESERQ

properties, equipment for its operations. Lease contracts are T EEMERRERNES - A
entered into for fixed terms of 12 months to 6 years. Lease terms EE5 1128 A Z6F W EFEHEAET
are negotiated on an individual basis and contain different terms S o HERRRIHIEE BB FEr
and conditions. In determining the lease term and assessing the BIETRGR R R o PREERER
length of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the definition AT HESENRER - A5
of a contract and determines the period for which the contract is JEFE KR E Z I ETE S B AT 38 6l
enforceable. TTHIERR -
18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 18. BEWE
During the year ended December 31, 2023, the Group leased out MR2023F 12 A31B IEFE - AEEKE
various offices under operating leases with fixed rentals payable KEHEBETHEZHRNARE - Hed
monthly. The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as a BET - BEAXN - ARAEHEEY
result of the lease arrangements, as all leases are denominated in LEEEREANEEEE &A%
the respective functional currencies of group entities. The lease B mEEE L HEmmEEINE R - 8
contracts do not contain residual value guarantee and/or lessee’s EEHNITEDSFBEAERK Pk
option to purchase the property at the end of lease term. TAARHEIE R S YRR
2023
20234
RMB’000
ARETFT
Fair Value ARE
As at January 1 B1A1H -
Transfer from property, plant and equipment wEEYE - BEREREHZE16)

(note 16) 176,203
Net increase in fair value recognized in RN BEM A ERFIE N

profit or loss 177
As at December 31 124318 176,380
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MBHmRNE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2023 & ZE2023F12A831HIEFE

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 18. BWEWX (&)
The fair value of the Group’s investment properties as at December AEBIREYEEE2023F12H31H
31, 2023 has been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out B A E TR IR B A AR (B I MR RS 60
by an independent qualified professional valuers not connected TABREEGEMRAEZLRME
to the Group using direct comparison valuation technique. The fair FEEITRHESE - AREREER
value measurement is categorised into Level 3 fair value hierarchy. REEBHRD B=H - FTfERNERT]
The significant unobservable inputs used is market unit rate taking B AR ATISEMER - B
into account the recent transaction prices for similar properties KBTS E& (REBEWE
adjusted for conditions of the properties. An increase in the market RIIEREITHRAE) - FIERAMNMSEN
unit rate used would result in an increase in fair value, and vice BREINEERAAEEN - K2
versa. N e
19. GOODWILL 19. HE
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT
Acquisition of Cangzhou Risun Chemicals R MIERSt THR AT
Limited (“Cangzhou Risun”) (MANER]) 31,808 31,808
Acquisition of Shunri Xinze LB JIE B 200,627 200,627
232,435 232,435

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill generated from the
acquisition of Cangzhou Risun is attributable to its caprolactam
production line, and goodwill generated from the acquisition of
Shunri Xinze is allocated to a group of coke and refined chemical

production lines, each of which constitutes a CGU.

As of December 31, 2023, the Group prepared cash flow projection
for Cangzhou Risun and Shunri Xinze based on financial budgets
approved by management covering a 5-year period, and pre-tax
discount rate of 11.3% (2022: 11.9%) and 13.4% (2022: 14.3%),
respectively. The cash flow beyond the 5-year period was a steady
2.0% (2022: 2.0%) growth rate. Other key assumptions for the value
in use calculations related to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows
which include budgeted sales and gross margin, such estimation
is based on Cangzhou Risun and Shunri Xinze’s past performance
and management’s expectations for the market development.
Management believes that any reasonably possible change in
any of these assumptions would not cause the aggregate carrying
amount to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount of Cangzhou

Risun and Shunri Xinze.

2023 ANNUAL REPC
China Risun Group:

AEITRERNE - WERIMNIBEELH
BERBNECAMRAER  MKE
BB E2EEMmEDBLE —HAIEE
MEREBACIEMEER  SE1H
BCREEREN -

HZE20235FE12A310 » "EEREE
BREAENS TNV BEERRT
ENERE RIE R FTERIR e RETRR
5 B % 11.3% (20224F  11.9%) &
13.4%(20224F : 14.3% ) HFL AT AL IR &
FESH - BBSFHRMESRED
#2.0% (20224 : 2.0% ) MIEEE R
EHESE - FREBFENEMEER
BHRERSHEARHAEETEE - 2
FREHEBNERNE - WEMGER
BB RIERFERTRIRLEERE
HminENEN - BRERE - £
ZEBINEMAEEEHSTEE
BURINBRS B A ¥ 2/ AR FEE A
EINNERS R IE B $mE A ] el 4258 o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continue

)
e B mAMNE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2023 #ZE2023F12A31HILFE

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 20. BREE
Year ended December 31,
BZ12A31BLEE
2023 2022
20234 20224F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMEFT ARBTT
Cost: A :
As at January 1 ®1A1H 1,064,067 1,038,754
Additions NE 53,490 25,313
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 38) Ik B — R B A B (H7£38) 593,706 =
As at December 31 ®12A31H 1,711,263 1,064,067
Accumulated amortization and ATt EEREE
impairment:
As at January 1 ®1A1H 299,943 191,646
Charge for the year FAZH 130,615 108,297
As at December 31 W12A31H 430,558 299,943
Carrying amounts: SRTEIME :
As at December 31 »12A31H 1,280,705 764,124

The intangible assets are mainly coking capacity indicators which
was acquired as part of the business acquisition and patented
use rights of techniques. The coking capacity indicators acquired
as part of the business acquisition are amortised on a straight-
line basis based on the useful life of coke production line, other
intangible assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over the
patented periods ranging from 5 to 10 years, based on the shorter
of the period of their contractual rights or expected useful life.

BVEETZRSERETUWE D
P UL SR L EE RE SR AR R B R 1T {52

7 o EREFWE A0 mATRIBREIE

EREEREREEGNAERFHR
DNEARES  MEMEBREEREY
1 I HABR =X T8 BB AT {8 AR F HAR A 0
ERSE10FENENEBANA B LS
8 o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

eV BHRRME(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2023 #(ZE2023F12A31HIFFE

21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

21. REE QT NER

As at December 31,

M12A31H
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TFT ARETIT

Cost of investments TERA 799,339 824,725
Share of post-acquisition profits and other R B W FE U AR B
comprehensive income, net of dividend AEUEBE M)
received and receivable Hfbh 2 129,191 84,390
Less: impairment (Note) B OREA ) (220,908) (220,908)
707,622 688,207

Note: As at December 31, 2023 and 2022, impairment of RMB220,908,000
was recognized against 30% equity interest in Yangmei Group
Shouyang Jingfu Coal Co., Ltd. (“Jingfu Coal”) held by the Group
mainly due to the coal price below the expectation at the initial

investment.

2023 ANNUAL REPOR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
ire MR HRR N (&)

For the year ended December 31, 2023 #ZE2023F12A31HILFE

21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 21. REfEQATRER(E)

Details of principal associates at December 31, 2023 and 2022 20234 [k 2022F 12 431 B E EHt &
were as follows: ANRFBOT -

Country of

incorporation/  Proportion of ownership  Proportion of voting

Date of principal place interest held rights held Principal

Name of entities establishment  of business by the Group by the Group activities

AMRLER/ — AEERENES EEEFE
EELR 3 BH TEEEHY 2RHLA RERELLBI TEER

2023 2022 2023 2022

2023%F 20224 20235F 20224

Hebei Jinniu Risun Chemicals March 28,2008  The PRC 50% 50% 50% 50%  Production
Limited (“Jinniu Risun of refined
Chemicals”) (T3t & 4B/ chemicals
TAERAR]) (Note a)

Al & B TERAR 200837288 HE EERBIIER
([&4 MBI (Hizta)

Cabot Risun Chemicals (Xingtai) ~June 23,2011 The PRC 40% 40% 40% 40%  Production of
Co. Ltd. (“Cabot Risun carbon black

Chemicals") (FERERET
(Fe&) BB AF]) (Note a)

FEEEREI(RE)ERAR 201166A238  +E EERE
([FEEBBT))(Hita)

Jingfu Coal (FEEESHSE  June 27,1992 The PRC 30% 30% 30% 30%  Mining of coal
KEERNA) (Note a)

GREESEREREERAR  199246A27H  HE BRI
(Hiita)

PT KinXiang New Energy August 27,2021  Indonesia 20% 20% 20% 20%  Under
Technologies Indonesia construction
(“KinXiang New Energy”)

ENE SRR IRRHR 202158A278  HIfE BR
([eHHER])

Note: Wit -

a. The English translation of the names of the above associates are for a. Ll AR BN R EEERS

reference only. The official name of the entities are in Chinese. =z BRMNEXEGWAFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ire MR mR M (4E)

For the year ended December 31, 2023 #(ZE2023F12A31HIFFE

21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 21. RAEE QRS (E)
In the opinion of the Directors, none of the individual associates EERA - SEBEREAREAEER
materially affected the results or net assets of the Group. To give WEEIEEFEEEATE - EFZR
further details of the associates of the Group would, in the opinion R E-SREAEEBREATNER
of the Directors, results in particulars of excessive length. HHERERHBRITR o
Aggregate information of associates that are not individually FEMERIE A& A RIRAREE AR}
material:

Year ended December 31,

HZ12A31HILEE
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TFT AEETIT

Profit and total comprehensive income FERNEEEKAERE
for the year 239,906 118,898
Group’s share of profit of associates REEDEFERE QT 5
for the year 89,552 59,137
Dividends declared by associates FREE QR T IR E
for the year (47,391) (59,710)
22. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 22. REELENER
As at December 31,
M12831H
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARKTFT ARBTFT
Cost of investments EKA 1,496,548 1,445,548
Share of post-acquisition profits and other MR E W R AR B
comprehensive income, net of dividend DEUEBE 5 M)
received and receivable HEih 2wk 1,817,390 1,761,878
Deemed disposal of a joint venture (Note b) RIEHE—BE&EDE M Eb) (361,842) -

2,952,096 3,207,426
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
ire MR HRR N (&)

For the year ended December 31, 2023 #ZE2023F12A31HILFE

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED) 22. AEEDEIRER(HE)

Details of the material joint ventures as at December 31, 2023 and R20234F 2 2022F 12 A31HE KA &
2022 were as follows: REFIBNAT

Country of

incorporation/  Proportion of ownership  Proportion of voting

Date of principal place interest held rights held Principal

Name of entities establishment  of business by the Group by the Group activities

AMRLER/ AEERENEERE EEEFE
BEEsR =L TEEXBHY el RERELH TEER

2023 2022 2023 2022

2023F 20224 20235 20225

Hebei China Coal Risun Energy ~ November 21, The PRC 45% 45% 45% 45%  Production of coke
Limited (“CNC Risun Energy”) 2003 and coking
(AL ERG s RER chemicals
‘X&) (Notes a and ¢)

AR RBSERERAR(HE 20035114218 HE EEERR
1BI588R ) (Histake) ELER

Huhhot Risun China Gas Energy  June 15,2018 The PRC - 55% - 55%  Production of coke
Limited (“Risun China Gas”) and coking
(FAVEE BRI RER A chemicals
&) (Notes b and ¢)

WREREGRRERERAR 201866158 & EEERR
([arziRaeiR ) (AstoRe) ELER

PT. RISUN WEI SHAN November 9, Indonesia 51% 51% 51% 51%  Under
INDONESIA (“Risun Wei Shan”) 2021 construction
(Note d)

HEBBEL(TBESEL]) 2021F11A9R  EIfE R
(Hiztd)

PT. DE TIAN COKING September 29,  Indonesia 24% 24% 24% 24%  Under
(“De Tian Coking”) (Note d) 2021 construction

BEREL(E)RHAF 2021F9A29R  EIfE ZRT
([ERE ) (Hita)

2023 3
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MBHmRNE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2023 & ZE2023F12A831HIEFE

22. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

Notes:

The Group, China Coal and Coke Holding Limited (“CNC Coke”), an
independent third party, and another independent third party, hold
45%, 45% and 10% equity interest in CNC Risun Energy, respectively.
Pursuant to the agreement dated January 1, 2007, the Group has
the right to appoint two out of five directors which is responsible for
making decisions on the financing and operating activities of CNC
Risun Energy, where these decisions require a minimum resolution
of two-third of the voting right of the board of directors. Accordingly,
the Group and CNC Coke who is also entitled to appoint two directors
share joint control over CNC Risun Energy. In this regard, CNC Risun
Energy is accounted for as a joint venture of the Group.

During the year ended December 31, 2023, the Group further
acquired 12% equity interests in Risun China Gas as set out in note
38, upon which the Group took control over Risun China Gas.

The English translation of the name of the above joint ventures are for
reference only. The official name of the entities are in Chinese.

The Group entered into joint venture agreements with third parties
in 2021, pursuant to which all the parties agreed to jointly invest and
establish Risun Wei Shan and De Tian Coking. As at December 31,
2023, the Group has injected capital of RMB953.2 million (2022:
RMB953.2 million) and RMB378.6 million (2022: RMB378.6 million)
in Risun Wei Shan and De Tian Coking, respectively. The remaining
subscribed contribution will be injected according to the payment
notices to be issued by the board of directors of these two joint
ventures.

According to investment agreement of Risun Wei Shan, the Group has
the right to appoint three out of five directors which is responsible for
making decisions on the financing and operating activities. Several
reserved matters, including but not limited to purchase, sale and
lease of land, appointment and removal of senior management,
procurement of fixed assets or raw materials with transaction amount
over US$5 million and disposal of assets, require unanimous consent
by the board of Risun Wei Shan. In this regard, Risun Wei Shan is
accounted for as a joint venture of the Group.

Pursuant to the investment agreement of De Tian Coking, several
reserved matters, including but not limited to annual operating and
financial budget, procurement of fixed assets with transaction amount
over US$5 million, procurement of raw materials with amount over
US$20 million and financing decision, require unanimous consent of
all the shareholders. Therefore, De Tian Coking is accounted for as a
joint venture of the Group.

2023 ANNUAL REPC
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22. RNE

a.

g (E)

RNEE - — BB = REE
BREREEREN(FEEED - AR
R—RBIE=T  DRBEREE
[58ETREV45%ARAE -« 45%AXHE 2 10%
A% 4 o RIE2007F1 A1 BRI LA
FOAEEEREARBRESTHAN
% BERTPHEBEGERNEE KL
EIREMELRATE MEERERBHE
EehEL=Sr —HRERKER
HER - Al AEBEKRAEERE
EMBEEHP RS ERIESI P E
JBFGEENR - SRt s - FAETERZRER
IAAEENEEDE -

ANM FE38FTE, - MEIE 20234 12
A31BIEFE - AEBE#E—DWER
ISR RREETR12%AME - Hig - A%
EXAS 5 NB RS AR R B TR RO 128 )4 o

o

biteEhEAWORBEERS
Z-R"

LM EABREAT -

REENR2021FHRE=FRILEE W
OB BRI ARERRIRE
KA NBRS{E 1L R E © 1R2023
F12A318 - AEEE D R A B E
IR ERETE ARSI 2HE
To(2022%F « ARMO532HE L) &
ARM378.6 EEIL(2022F : AR
3786HEET) - B T RELEBIRE
FAGER=S-UNGIE =48 Sl ok b
BATLUEA ©

REBSELNIRERZ - AEEE
RZELLESTHO=F AEME
EREBEBEYELRE - ETRE
B(BEETRRBEE - HEREE
i FREREEE  KEZXS
BEBsSAEE I EEAER RN
BOHEEES)BEBBEILES
E—HRAE - st E - SR LE
REEENAEREAS -

REBAKCNRERZ  FTRE
=R(BREENRNFEZERYH
BE  HBRXSLEEBSASET
MEEEE RBSEBB0AEE
TTHRME - BERARE)RE2E
BER-EHRAE - Bt - BRELIA
ARENREDRE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
ire MR HRR N (&)

For the year ended December 31, 2023 #ZE2023F 12 831HIEFE
22. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED) 22, REELENER(E)

Summarized financial information of CNC Risun R BRGRE R B BT IS B RH 2
Energy

As at December 31,
M12831H

2023 2022
2023F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARHETFT AREFT

Non-current assets IEMEBEE 2,661,155 3,155,834
Current assets MBVEE 4,199,379 1,443,383
Current liabilities mBaE 2,917,991 837,504
Non-current liabilities JERBIBE 584,589 588,436
Net assets BEEFE 3,357,954 3,173,277
The above amounts of assets and liabilities include the following: TMEERBBESEARFEAUT

As at December 31,

M12A31H
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMFT AT T

Cash and cash equivalents ReRBSEEY 346,126 161,621
Current financial liabilities (excluding trade  REIE@MEBE(TEEES X

and other payables and provisions) E AP SUE R ) 270,000 170,000
Non-current financial liabilities (excluding FEnBeRaE(TERES R

trade and other payables and provisions) LAt B R IE [ ) 569,000 570,000

Year ended December 31,

HE12A318LLFEE
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARKTFT AR¥TIT

Revenue & 6,677,577 8,081,089
Profit and total comprehensive income FEaMREmBa5E

for the year 230,128 696,788
Dividends received from the joint venture W B & & ERRE 91,198 326,353
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A SR (E)
For the year ended December 31, 2023 #(ZE2023F12A31HIFFE
22. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED) 22, REEENER(E)

Summarized financial information of CNC Risun R BIGRE R IS E R E
Energy (Continued) (%&)

The above profit for the year includes the following: FRFEEFBIEAT ¢

Year ended December 31,

BZE12A31HLEEE
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FTT AER¥TT
Depreciation and amortization ITE RESH 225,080 208,729
Interest income FEHA 15,570 10,526
Interest expense FER% 36,072 38,819
Income tax expense s> 32,491 91,296
Reconciliation of the above summarized financial information to the il E R 2 EN RS SRR
carrying amount of the interest in CNC Risun Energy recognized in HERE R EES LR E R IR E B E
the consolidated financial statements: AR -

As at December 31,

M12A31H
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARH T AR¥TIT

Net assets of CNC Risun Energy R TBRS RER M E =R E 3,357,954 3,173,277

Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest AN E AR K BIGEERHY
in CNC Risun Energy WA R L 45% 45%

Carrying amount of the Group’s interest in REERFHBISEERED
CNC Risun Energy AR EE 1,511,079 1,427,975
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued
e M mR T (&

)
)

For the year ended December 31, 2023 #ZE2023F12A31HILFE

23. OTHER LONG-TERM RECEIVABLES AND

23. HitRHBEWRIERFANRE

PREPAYMENTS
As at December 31,
M12831H
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AREFT
Prepayments for property, plant and Y - B &R BTN IE

equipment 162,032 319,216
Loan receivables (Note a) RWE R (Hita) 600,000 -
Prepayments for land use right T b fE R RER TR RUE 65,540 50,308
Receivables for relocation compensation B mE R (M itb)

(Note b) - 109,091
Deposits for other loans EMERZS 316,270 241,867
Others At 109,881 43,941
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEEIERE (39,469) (40,908)

1,214,254 723,515

Notes:

Included in loan receivables was a 3-years entrusted loan to a third
party through a licensed financial institution amounted to RMB300
million, which carries interest at 5.75% per annum and payable semi-
annually. During the year ended December 31, 2023, the Group
entered into a supplementary agreement with the borrower pursuant
to which both parties agreed to extend the maturity date from July
2023 to July 2026 with other contractual terms unchanged.

During the year ended December 31, 2023, the Group entered into
another entrusted loan amounted to RMB500 million to a third party
through a licensed financial institution, which carries interest at 5.20%
per annum and payable semi-annually. The principal will be repayable
by instalments from June 2024 to December 2026, of which RMB200
million will be repayable in 2024 and therefore presented as current
assets.

Receivables for relocation compensation represents the compensation
in relation to the relocation of one of its plants between locations in
Dingzhou City, of which RMB20 million has been received during
the year. As at December 31, 2023, after negotiation with local
government, the remaining compensation of RMB109 million was
expected to be paid in 2024 and therefore presented as current
assets.

EWERBIEAREI0EETA
BRA—ZXPBESBEBLETE=

FHIBEHRFEER - ZEFIEM K
5.75%:t 5 AEFFFEE - NEE

2023F12A31H L FE - ANEER
fERAFT ST W - IR - RTHIEE
I RBREIEER2023F7 AR E
202697 A - MHEME DR TE -

REFE2023F12A31HIEFE © &
SRV S —HARES0EE LA
B-REFEERERLETE=F
MZETLER  ZE IR E5.20%5t
B BAEYFHEE - ~N&i§R2024
F6AZE2026F 12 A D HIEE -
Hh ARB2008E BT 20248
# AHnEZIAERBEE -

BBHERKZBAE —MBEHET
MR 2 IR BRME - EP
ERFARAKBARB20EET - K
2023F 12 A318 - & HE BT iE
e B THEAREI109E &LHE
G 2024F 14 - FAFIIERENE
F,{ o

2023 3
BI/BE S B AR AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MBHmRNE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2023 & ZE2023F12A831HIEFE

24. FINANCIAL ASSETS/LIABILITIES AT FVTPL

24 BEAREFABENEHE
/Al

As at December 31,

M12831H
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT ARETFT
Non-current assets B EE
Listed equity securities LETRAES 121,718 118,246
Unlisted equity investment FEEMRAKE 111,670 114,182
Private equity investment funds (Note a) LERTIRERES (Hita) 224,457 1,320,580
Wealth management product IBBAE S 119,621 117,912
577,466 1,670,920
Current assets MEEE
Futures contracts HEAH 833 1,062
Held-for-trading non-derivative FESBEHFITESRMEE
financial assets 9,416 23,938
Derivative financial instruments (Note b) PTHESMT AN D) 1,332 40,820
11,581 65,820
Current liability MEBEE
Futures contracts HEEH (3,838) (201)
(3,838) (201)
585,209 1,736,539

Notes:

During the year ended December 31, 2023, the Group redeemed the
entire investment amounting to RMB 1,000 million from Wuhu Changyu
Investment Centre (Limited Partnership).

In addition, the Group subscribed for a private equity investment
funds with initial investment principal of RMB25 million in September
2023. The fair value of these funds as at December 31, 2023 were
RMB25 million.

The Group is exposed to exchange rate risk mainly arising from
various bank loans denominated in United States Dollars (“USD”").
To manage and mitigate the foreign exchange exposure, the Group
entered into various forward contracts with certain financial institutions.
As at December 31, 2023, the forward contracts have total notional
amounts of USD248 million (2022: USD199.5 million), of which the
maturity dates match to the maturity dates of these banks loans. The
future contracts are not designated as hedging instruments. The fair
value was RMB1 million as at December 31, 2023 and an unrealized
gains of RMB1 million was recognized as change in fair value during
the year ended December 31, 2023.
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TEREEREARE1000E6E T °
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2023 F 9 BARMSHETT ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e BEHERMEE)
For the year ended December 31, 2023 #ZE2023F12A31HILFE

25. DEFERRED TAX 25. EELEBIE

As at December 31,

M12831H

2023 2022

20234 20224

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARKTFT AEETT

Deferred tax assets EEHEEE 144,336 128,333
Deferred tax liabilities BEEHEAE (419,879) (295,318)
(275,543) (166,985)

The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognized in
the consolidated statement of financial position and the movements

RAFELBEFENGERBEARRE
REOBELEHEEE (AE)EXEH

thereon during the current and prior years are as follows: KRBT
Temporary
difference on
;?;e;‘g Flairvalue
equipments, adjustment
inangible Impairment on
Impairment  assetsand  losseson acquisition of
losseson investment  interestin  Right-of-use Lease  subsidiaries
receivables  properties  an associate assets liabilities (Note) Others Total
% BER Reke
B EVEE M-3R HEATN
EhsE  RREMRN  A9ER DRESR
WREER  EWEE  MWEER GRREE  HESR () B it
RIBOGO RMBOOO RVBOOO  AMBOOO  AMBOWO  AMBOOO RvBOoO  AMBOOO
NREFT  ARETT AREFT ARETT AREFT ARETT AREFT ARETR
At January 1, 2022 R0 A1A 0730 19,665 5,221 (54,191) 5191 (2929%4) 14,601 (172741)
(Charged)credited to proft orloss (i) /3 ABE (11,388) (28.259) - (1573) 64117 3% 8632 5756
At December 31, 2022 H0E12AMA 19,342 (8.594) 5221 (129923) 118,308 (264,578) 48283 (166,985)
(Charged)creditet o profor loss (Rke)/3AEa 11982 0412 - (21023) 31675 32653 (15%) 68 121
Acquistion of a subsiciary (note 39) Ye-EnER W) - - - - - (1%4%) N ]
Charged o other comprehensive income Thaiizing - (38.240) - - - - - (38.240)
At December 31, 2023 R03E12A318 31,274 (26,422) 55,22 (150946) 149,983 (370,364) 35,705 (275,543)

Krat - ARBERN AR EHEELTIER
BIETEBEBEENODE  BER
iR EAREENREVAENARL
B -

Note: Deferred tax liabilities of fair value adjustment recognized by the
Group represented the fair value adjustment on property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets arising from the
business acquisitions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e BHERNEE)
For the year ended December 31, 2023 & ZE2023F12A831HIEFE

25. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

The use of the tax losses is subject to the agreement of the tax
authorities and compliance with certain provisions of the tax
legislation of the PRC. The unrecognized tax losses will expire in
five years after they are incurred. No deferred tax assets has been
recognized due to the unpredictability of future tax profit streams.
The unrecognized tax losses declared will expire in the following

25. JEREBIIE(E)

ERZERABRACHBEKERZL
BFPRBETOENE THRE ° RERHIEA
BEENELRAFAIIE - WEZE
BIETIREE - ThH AR R BIRAE FR
BRI FERIE o AREERBIREIRAS A
TEEDH

years:
As at December 31,
M12831H
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMEFT ARBTT
2023 20234 - 11,461
2024 20244 77,727 77,727
2025 20254 382,920 392,490
2026 20264 720,435 766,577
2027 20274 519,496 519,496
2028 20284 554,068 -
2,254,646 1,767,751

As at December 31, 2023, the Group has other deductible
temporary differences of approximately RMB224.9 million (2022:
RMB162.8 million), which are mainly arising from unrealized profits
arising from impairment of trade and other receivables of certain
subsidiaries. No deferred tax asset has been recognized in relation
to such other deductible temporary differences as it is not probable
that taxable profit will be available for offset against which the

deductible temporary differences can be utilized.

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries
from January 1, 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has not been
provided for in the consolidated financial statements in respect of
temporary differences attributable to retained profits of the PRC
subsidiaries amounting to RMB10,864,768,000 as at December
31, 2023 (2022: RMB10,342,265,000), as the Group is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and
it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the

foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
ire MR HRR N (&)

For the year ended December 31, 2023 #ZE2023F12A31HILFE

26. INVENTORIES 26. 7€

As at December 31,
M12A31H

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥FT AEETT

Raw materials AR 2,106,173 1,718,645
Finished goods B 544,840 506,053
Trading stocks Bo51FE 294,408 507,064
Properties under development FERYIE 460,634 489,392
3,406,055 3,221,154
Details of the pledged inventories are set out in note 45. BERFERF BRI FE45 o

27. OTHER RECEIVABLES/TRADE AND BILLS 27. HtEWRIE RO AEFA

RECEIVABLES MEASURED AT FVTOCI Htt2HEHKENE S EKRFIE
REWRE
As at December 31,
M12H31H
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARKTFT AR¥TIT

Trade receivables measured at FVTOCI BAREFAEMEZERENE S
JEN R IR 503,982 302,656
Bills receivables measured at FVTOCI R SERTAE M 2 E G H K
37 472,205 558,776
Trade and bills receivables measured at EBAAEFAEMEZERENE S
FVTOCI JEHURRIE I FE I R 1R 976,187 861,432
Prepayments for raw materials [RAMEL B TR RIE 3,217,465 2,192,611
Other deposits, prepayments and other Hitnize - EIFEREMEK
receivables A 599,800 248,014
Loan receivables (note 23) R E R (H17#23) 200,000 300,000
Receivables for relocation compensation B EEWRIE (M 23)
(note 23) 109,091 20,000
Prepayments on behalf of third parties asa ~ {EAZSHRERERE=FTENFE
trading agency 2,061,346 1,403,312
Deductible input Value Added Tax and AT AR E R S TR B A IR
prepaid other taxes and charges MEA 477,528 471,168
Less: impairment o RE (80,213) (28,069)
Other receivables H b fE W FRI8 6,585,017 4,607,036
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MBHmRNE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2023 & ZE2023F12A831HIEFE

27. OTHER RECEIVABLES/TRADE AND BILLS
RECEIVABLES MEASURED AT FVTOCI

(CONTINUED)

As at January 1, 2022, trade and bill receivables from contracts with

customers amounted to RMB951,378,000.

The customers usually settle the sales by cash or bills. The credit
period granted to the customers who settle in cash is usually no
more than 30 days, interest free with no collateral. Aging of trade
receivables based on invoice dates, which approximated the
respective revenue recognition dates, net of allowance for credit

losses, are as follows:

27.

HitEW IR R A AERA
Ht2EW s E 5 EBWRE
RERELE (&)

R2022F1A1H - RKERFAEHMN
EoRWAENEREEAEARYE
951,378,0007T °

BERPBENRSREREEFRNEE -
ARBETURSHEENTPNEER
HEE T HEEI0H (& 8 kil EIK#
M) RBEEAMEYNE S EWIE
(KR EEFIBRME) IR (BEE K=
WREEBBEE)WT

As at December 31,

M12A831H
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARTFT
Within one month 1EAMN 481,279 243,956
1 to 3 months 12318 A 10,133 42828
3 to 6 months 3=61EA 3,641 5,590
6 to 12 months 6&121E A 8,929 10,282
503,982 302,656

No credit period is offered for sales to be settled by bills, carrying
interest at market rates. Bills receivable are bank acceptance notes
and the average aging based on the maturity date is from 90 days

to 360 days.

Details of impairment assessment of trade and bills receivables are

set out in note 42.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continue

)
e B mAMNE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2023 #ZE2023F12A31HILFE

27. OTHER RECEIVABLES/TRADE AND BILLS

RECEIVABLES MEASURED AT FVTOCI
(CONTINUED)

The following bills receivable as at December 31, 2023 and 2022
were transferred to banks or suppliers by discounting, pledging
to banks or endorsing those receivables on a full recourse basis.
As the Group has not transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards relating to these receivables, it continues to recognize the
full carrying amounts of the receivables and the corresponding
liabilities are included in secured borrowings or trade payables,
whichever is appropriate. These financial assets are carried at
FVTOCI.

27.

HAPEWRIR, A RERA
Ht2EW s E 5 EBWRE
RERELE (&)

LA A1220234F & 2022F 12 A31HE
BN 2 AR REEENTR - KEZ
ZRWGIATIRITH S EZSEKFIR
MEE TRITHPENNEWERE - B
T 52 [ O 88 R 27 S R GRRIE D 4R K
o e O3 - HAZERER e G IE
HEEREELEEE BT AGERE
FKBSENRIB(ABRERE) - Z
ZERMEERAANERAEMEZEK

o

Ik

As at December 31,

M12A831H
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT AREFT
Carrying amount of transferred assets EEEEAERAE 56,559 416,406
Carrying amount of associated payables to  1BREEHL ERFUEREE
suppliers (note 31) (H17#31) (56,559) (349,371)
Carrying amount of associated loans R ERERmE - (67,035)

At December 31, 2023, bills receivable issued among subsidiaries
of the Group for intra-group transactions have been discounted with
full recourse to secure bank loans amounting to RMB3,939,034,000
(2022: RMB2,532,610,000) (note 33), and these bills receivable
have been eliminated in these consolidated financial statements.

7202312 A31H » REBH B R A
2 ESEERNATER ST ERE
BENEZHBRELEMITAAA
R #3,939,034,0007T (2022%F : AR
#2,5632,610,0007T ) HY IR T B SR AEHE $
(FI#E33) - MZERUREBRERZSE
RS ERER LS
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MBHmRNE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2023 & ZE2023F12A831HIEFE

RECEIVABLES MEASURED AT FVTOCI
(CONTINUED)

During the reporting period, the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards relating to certain bills receivable
discounted to banks or endorsed to suppliers even if the banks
and suppliers have the right of recourse. The Group’s obligations to
the corresponding counterparties were discharged in accordance
with the commercial practice in the PRC and the risk of the default
in payment of the endorsed and discounted bills receivable is
remote because all endorsed and discounted bills receivable
are issued and guaranteed by reputable banks in the PRC. As a
result, the relevant assets and liabilities were derecognized and
no longer included in the consolidated financial statements. The
maximum exposure to the Group that may result from the default of
these endorsed and discounted bills receivable at the end of each
reporting period are as follows:

27. OTHER RECEIVABLES/TRADE AND BILLS 27. HAEWFIE RAREFA

Ht2EW s E 5 EBWRE
RERELE (&)

R|EHPN - AEEEEZEEE T
BATRITHEE THEBNREEED
BRE D BB K B R (B IR1T R4
BHERE) FAEBEHREIZHT
WEBCRRHBEHEENRE 25
ERERBRERRENNFENRR R
WFEN - ARAECEERCRRE
WRE TR B A EERITEITRE
& B - HEAEENRBECK TR
BETHERRGEEUBRET - RER
HEHR - AEERZEESEREMER
JE W R IR E 40 7] Be E B & KRz an
T

As at December 31,

M12A831H
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT
Discounted bills for raising cash BAREBRNESERE 3,201,502 569,913
Endorsed bills for settlement of payables to & ZZ 5 AE M ERH i ERS
suppliers KIB 1,445,191 1,777,386
Outstanding endorsed and discounted bills ~ EFBRENHARIIFEEER
receivable with recourse B AL IR R 4,646,693 2,347,299

The outstanding endorsed and discounted bills receivable will be
matured within 12 months from the end of the reporting period.

2023 ANNUAL REPO
China Risun Group Li

HAZIHNE B E R R ERRIEAS
BAREHARE12[E AR -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e BEHERMEE)

For the year ended December 31, 2023 #ZE2023F12A31HILFE

28. RESTRICTED BANK BALANCES 28. ZPRFIBITAER
The carrying amounts of the Group’s restricted bank balances ARBERAEBSIEABNAEEZR
placed to secure various liabilities of the Group are as follows: HIERITASHBREENT ¢

As at December 31,

M12831H
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FT ARETIT

Restricted bank balances to secure: FRYEERRZ IR BRI TAE &4 -
Bills payable and letters of credit (Note) ENERRERENE) 1,398,127 833,578
Bank loans RITER 940,986 429,495
Futures contracts HEAH 35,538 116,490
2,374,651 1,379,563
Analyzed for reporting purpose as: AITEZ AL -

Non-current assets ERBEE - 356,000
Current assets mEEE 2,374,651 1,023,563
Note: Certain restricted bank balances were placed to secure bills issued et - S ZRHRITEBRARIERAER

among subsidiaries of the Group for intra-group transactions MEARRERANARBR S HEN

which have been discounted with full recourse to secure bank 2R ZEZBEETHE - MEZE

loans of RMB3,939,034,000 as at December 31, 2023 (2022: BRI - LARR2023F 12 431 HIKH

RMB2,532,610,000). Further details of which are set out in notes 27 FEHLA R ¥ 3,939,034,000 7T (2022

and 33 respectively. & AR#2532,610,0007T) HERTT

B - BEHHIERMEE277133 ©

Restricted bank balances are bank deposits mainly in the PRC ZPRHIRITERE ERTF R F AR
and the remittance of these funds out of the PRC is subject to the T T S0 A BEAS S BB
exchange restrictions imposed by the PRC government. These FEAN A BE SRR HIFTHRIR © 2 F 1T
bank deposits carry interest at market rates ranging from 0.01% to FIRM SRR - 72023F 12 A 31
5.78% per annum as at December 31, 2023 (2022: 0.002% to 3.85% HEFFZENF0.01%=E5.78% (2022
per annum). & FF|ZE0.002%E3.85%) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MBHmRNE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2023 & ZE2023F12A831HIEFE

29. BANK DEPOSITS/CASH AND CASH 29. RITER RERRESEEY
EQUIVALENTS
Bank balances, included bank deposits that have a maturity of R2023F 128318 @ BITE£(BIEE
longer than three months, carried interest at market interest rate R B =8 A MRITEZ)IET ST
ranging from 0.002% to 2.5% (2022: from 0.01% to 3.50%) per #£0.002% £2.50% (20224 : 0.01% %
annum as at December 31, 2023. Bank balances and cash as at 3.50% )& 8. ° 20234 & 2022F 12 A 31
December 31, 2023 and 2022 were mainly denominated in RMB HWIRTHEB AR ETEUARKER
which is not a freely convertible currency in the international market B MAREWIEBRETIS LR EHE
and the remittance of these funds out of the PRC is subject to the BB  ZZFESELPRZENRF
exchange restrictions imposed by the PRC government. B ATHINEEF) -
Denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of AR E BRI B N EHE
relevant group entities: a8 -
As at December 31,
M12A831H
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT
usD ETT 94,416 98,182
Hong Kong Dollars (“HKD”) BB rl) 13,315 3,230
Others (Note) Hub(Hfat) 2,125 2,307
109,856 103,719
Note: Others mainly contain Japanese Yen (“JPY”) and Singapore dollar. Biat - %ﬁﬂ}g@% HE(HE]) RinE
P
30. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE 30. HEHEEE

On September 19, 2023, the Group resolved to dispose of the
Group’s entire interests in an associate, Pingxiang Anyuan Glass
Co., Ltd. (“Pingxiang Anyuan”), to another shareholder (“Buyer”)
of Pingxiang Anyuan at the consideration not less than its net book
value. The associate is expected to be sold within twelve months
and has been classified as a held for sale and are presented

separately in the consolidated statement of financial position.

On February 20, 2024, The Group entered into an agreement
with the Buyer to dispose Pingxiang Anyuan at a consideration of
RMB17.2 million. The total consideration has been received on

February 22, 2024.

2023 ANNUAL REPO
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continue

31. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

)
e B mAMNE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2023 #ZE2023F12A31HILFE

31. EZREMENRE

As at December 31,

M12A831H
2023 2021
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARKTFT AREFT
Trade payables B SN RIE 2,601,768 2,216,347
Payables to be settled by the endorsed bills & E U1 E B & KB
receivable (note 27) (Biet27) 56,559 349,371
Bills payable EANE 1,046,755 1,007,968
Payables for construction in progress ERIREMNTE 2,870,371 2,617,620
Payables on behalf of third parties as a ERBHSRERKRE=FENKIEA
trading agency 824,536 1,396,825
Advances from customers on behalf of third  {EAB SRIBARE=ZHAKREF
parties as a trading agency KIA 570,064 789,414
Other tax payables HAb fERBIE 103,433 216,202
Payroll payables N Ee 132,987 172,652
Other payables and accruals (Note) H e~ FE N e ST B A (4a) 671,856 697,569
8,878,329 9,463,968
Analyzed for reporting purposes as: AITEZ2 WAL -
Current liabilities mENEE 8,773,615 9,463,968
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 104,714 -

Note: Included in other payables and accruals were payables in relation

to an arbitration with a contractor as detailed in note 8. Pursuant to
the settlement agreement, the balance will be repaid by instalments
till December 31, 2026, of which RMB105 million will be repaid after
2024 and therefore presented as long-term payables, the remaining

balance was presented as current liabilities.

All trade and other payables are due within one year. The average
credit period on purchases of goods is 30 to 90 days.

7 BN EES P EE AL - M E MR IR

LEEAG  BEE—ZEREHE
TR A RBOEMNFUE - RIEMERD
& BREHER 20266 12A31H
ZRIDEEE EPARBI06EE
TLHERR20244F 2 14188 - BUL25 A
REAEA A - BRI 27 ARVE
B1E -

B8 5 REAMEN TR —FAE2
H - BERRNFHEEHRRI0EN
X o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e BHERNEE)
For the year ended December 31, 2023 & ZE2023F12A831HIEFE
31. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (CONTINUED)

The following is an aging analysis of trade payables based on the

invoice date at the end of each reporting period:

31. BEZREMENREGE)

TR RERRREZAHANE S
e FIRRRER DT

32.

As at December 31,

M12831H
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AR¥TFr
Within 3 months 3MEAA 2,238,794 2,003,227
3to 6 months 32618 A 157,961 68,086
6 to 12 months 6= 121E A 94,599 59,536
1to 2 years 15224 68,012 53,521
2to 3 years 2E3F 15,030 5574
More than 3 years 3FLA L 27,372 26,403
2,601,768 2,216,347

CONTRACT LIABILITIES 32. AR
As at December 31,

M12A31H
2023 2022
20234 20224F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARBTFT
Sales of products EmiEE 2,119,656 1,726,119
Sales of properties Y E 281,408 285,083
2,401,064 2,011,202

Contract liabilities primarily represent advance from customers
and are expected to be settled within one year. For the contract
liabilities from sales of products as at January 1, 2023, the entire
balances were recognized as revenue to profit or loss in the current
year. While for the contract liabilities from sales of properties as at
January 1, 2023, revenue recognized in the current year amounted
to RMB122,789,000.

All contract liabilities are expected to be settled within the Group’s

normal operating cycle and are classified as current.

As at January 1, 2022, contract liabilities amounted to
RMB2,252,747,000.

2023 ANNUAL REPO
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continue

)
e B mAMNE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2023 #ZE2023F12A31HILFE

33. BANK AND OTHER LOANS 33. RITRHEMER
The analysis of the carrying amount of bank and other loans is as RITREMERNRERABEI AT :
follows:
As at December 31,
M12831H
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FIT AR¥TFr
Bank loans IRITER
Secured HEM 8,193,983 9,532,525
Unsecured giigt 8,163,912 4,677,063
Other loans HMER
Secured HEM 4,990,986 3,188,292
Unsecured I 417,728 298,183
Discounted bills financing (note 27) AR IR @A (Hf7227)
— Discounted bills receivable from —REARRRMEARZ
subsidiaries of the Company ALIR BB FEGRIE 3,939,034 2,532,610
25,705,643 20,228,673

At the end of each reporting period, the bank and other loans were
repayable as follows:

As at December 31,

M12A31H
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT ARETIT

Within 1 year 1R 16,789,043 12,624,241
After 1 year but within 2 years 1FEBEBER2FER 6,355,445 4,621,556
After 2 years but within 5 years 2F B ENEFER 1,377,644 2,982,876
After 5 years 5% 1% 463,514 -
24,985,646 20,228,673

Repayable on demand due to breach of loan FiE [ B M EE ESKIER
covenants (shown under current liabilities) (EENEIBEETIIR) 719,997 -
25,705,643 20,228,673

2023 3
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e BHERNEE)
For the year ended December 31, 2023 & ZE2023F12A831HIEFE

33. BANK AND OTHER LOANS (CONTINUED)

33. |ITREMERE)

As at December 31,

M12831H
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT AR¥TFr

Analyzed for reporting purpose as: RMEBWPNAE

Current liabilities mEaE 17,509,040 12,624,241
Non-current liabilities JEmBAE 8,196,603 7,604,432
25,705,643 20,228,673

During the year, in respect of bank loans with a carrying amount of
RMB719,997,000 as at December 31, 2023, the Group breached
certain of the terms of the bank loan, which are primarily related
to the net debt to EBITDA ratio of the Group. On discovery of the
breach, the Directors informed the lenders and commenced a
renegotiation of the terms of the loan with the relevant bankers. As
at December 31, 2023, those negotiations had not been concluded.
Since the lenders have not agreed to waive its right to demand
immediate payment as at the end of the reporting period, the loans
have been classified as current liabilities as at December 31, 2023.
Up to the date of approval for issuance of the consolidated financial
statements, the negotiations are still in progress. The Directors
are confident that their negotiations with the lenders will ultimately
reach a successful conclusion. In any event, should the lenders
call for immediate repayment of the loans, the Directors believe that
adequate alternative sources of finance are available to ensure that

there is no threat to the continuing operations of the Group.

Bank and other loans denominated in currencies other than the

functional currencies of respective entities are set out below:

RAFE » REEER T R2023F12
A31HEAEEAARMT19,997,0007T
RERTTERM A TR - EEXEBHEAE
B/ B F R BT E I AT
(EBITDA) R B - #IMENR  EF
ERAMERA - WEEMRITHER
1RREFTHEITH ] » 2023512 A 31
H - BREIAHMAKRER - ARERAM
RABMENRE BARE R AERH
R - R2023FE12A31H - BRER
BHEAIBEE - BEHBTEES
BIIsRER B - BRARHADEELEIT - &
EEEL  HERAERANKH RS
B4R o Mimafa - WEZRAZSKAD
REEER  EFTRAEMES KR
RUBRASENFELEETSZIE

-

BB AN EEERHERER
NEAEFREIIT

As at December 31,

MW12A831H
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AEBTFT
Usb ETT 1,105,344 1,883,753
JPY B 673 2,096
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e BEHERMEE)

For the year ended December 31, 2023 #ZE2023F12A31HILFE

33. BANK AND OTHER LOANS (CONTINUED) 33. |ITRHMERK(E)
The carrying amount of the bank and other loans and the range of $R1T R EM B SR A BRI (A & | = 5 [E 40
interest rates are as below: S e

As at December 31,

M12A31H
2023 2022
20234F 20224
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
ARETFT % ARKTFIT %

Fixed rate bank and other loans EEFIEEITREMEF 18,363,513 1.70-9.00 13,306,653  1.17-12.00

Floating rate bank and other SFENFRRIT REAMER

loans (Note) (Hfat) 7,342,130  1.58-8.40 6,922,020 1.58-8.00
25,705,643 20,228,673
Note: Included in floating rate bank and other loans was USD dominated Bfat - R EF BT REMERBIE N
bank borrowings of RMB204,416,000 (2022: RMB1,039,980,000) ELATETIRA EZERREREE R
carried at secured overnight financing rate (SOFR). The remaining K (SOFR)FT EMIRITIERARKE
floating rate bank and other loans are carried at loan prime rate (LPR) 204,416,000 7T (2022 F : A R #&
issued by the People’s Bank of China. 1,039,980,0007T) © #& N F BN FIER

TREMERIIZPBEARRITEM
MBS REFE(LPR)FTE. °

The secured other loans represent loans from the licensed finance BEMEM BTSRRI TSR TR
companies secured by property, plant and equipment and AYE -~ BB MR MR i A
leasehold lands, as well as loans from licensed financial institutions RIEF - LANF S & RO 5 pal AR
secured by the Group’s bank deposits. SERTERRHERNER -

Details of the assets pledged for securing the banking facilities of BREABNALERITREMERNE
the Group are set out in note 45. EREHEEMIEE45 -

As at December 31, 2023, except for the bank and other loans R2023F 12 A31H © BREIEE 5 &R
guaranteed by the related parties as detailed in note 40(d), bank RYER1T M E A B B (FF il A BT 3E40(d))
loan of RMB673,000 (2022: RMB2,096,000) is fully guaranteed by SN RITE AR ¥ 673,000 (2022
an independent company. & AR¥2,096,00070) BB AR R

REIEIR o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A SR (E)
For the year ended December 31, 2023 #(ZE2023F12A31HIFFE

34. LEASE LIABILITIES 34. HEARE

Lease liabilities payables: HEaBEEMNRE :

As at December 31,

M12831H
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FT ARETIT

Within 1 year —FR 60,485 49,331
After 1 year but within 2 years 1A E1B2F A 49,544 55,794
After 2 years but within 5 years 2F LA E1B5F A 37,762 59,850
After 5 years 5%+ 452,104 308,259

599,895 473,234

Less: Amount due for settlement within 1 year & : i BEE NAMEREE
shown under current liabilities Epfea-t] (60,485) (49,331)

Amount due for settlement after 1 year shown 3JERENBEE NEMFEEHR

under non-current liabilities ot 539,410 423,903
The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied to lease FERREE B BRI 8 S E KA
liabilities range from 2.69% to 6.32% (2022: 2.69% to 6.34%). R F2.69%%£6.32% (20224 :2.69%

%6.34%) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continue

)
e B mAMNE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2023 #ZE2023F12A31HILFE

35. DEFERRED INCOME 35.

EFEWA
Year ended December 31,
BZ12A31HLEE
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TFT ARETIT

Government grant related to assets at the V)R E B R B8V #6 B)

beginning of the year 149,472 137,066
Additions NE 2,624 25,167
Released to profit or loss R EEE (13,273) (12,761)
At the end of the year RER 138,823 149,472
Analyzed for reporting purposes as: AITEZ WAL ¢

Current liabilities (included in other mEBEGIAHMEFIE)

payables) 13,228 12,609

Non-current liabilities EREEE 125,595 136,863

138,823 149,472

Deferred income arising from government grants relating to assets
represents the government subsidies obtained in relation to the
purchase of the land use rights and the infrastructure construction,
which was included in the consolidated statement of financial
position as deferred income and credited to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on
a straight-line basis over the expected useful life of the relevant
depreciable assets.

B A B BT /B E £ RRERA
A BB E D A R AR RIEER
PrEBUTREL - MR A IR R AR
SRR - AE R ERA R T
BERENTER A ERFHF AGGEE
REAMEERER

2023 3
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ire MR mR M (4E)

For the year ended December 31, 2023 #(ZE2023F12A31HIFFE

36. SHARE CAPITAL 36. B
As at December 31, As at December 31,
W12A31H RW12A31H
2023 2022 2023 2022
2023F 2020 2023F 20224
Number of Number of
shares shares HK$000 HK$'000
RiTHA Rz E FET FAET
Authorised EE
Shares of HKD0.10 each FAR0. 108 TR 1D
Authorized ordinary shares: FELER
At beginning and end of the year RETRER 10,000,000,000 10,000,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid of ERTRBRZLER
ordinary shares:
At the beginning of the year REA] 4,424,126,000  4,440,000,000 442,413 444,000
Share repurchased and cancelled EEEREHERR
(Note b) (Hizb) - (15,874,000) - (1,587)
At the end of the year RER 4,424,126,000  4,424,126,000 442,413 442,413
As at December 31,
M12H831H
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARETFT
Presented in the consolidated statement of AR &SRR EN A ¢
financial position as:
At the beginning of the year REA] 382,246 383,604
Share repurchased and cancelled BREE & EFFHE KD - (1,358)
At the end of the year RER 382,246 382,246

2023 ANNUAL REPOF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Contin
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IRE BTSRRI ()

For the year ended December 31, 2023 #ZE2023F12A31HILFE

36. SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

Notes:

a. During the year ended December 31,
repurchased its ordinary shares as follows:

2023, the Company

36. MAs(#)
Hitt -

a. B ZE2023F12A318LEFE - AR
AIEEI R L @RAFFBENT -

Price per share

Aggregate

Number of SREME consideration

Month of ordinary shares Highest Lowest paid
repurchase =68 A 4 ZRKRA BS B S ENRE
‘000 HK$ HK$ HK$'000

FR T T FET

November 114 12,591 3.31 3.17 40,526

As at December 31, 2023, the entire ordinary shares repurchased
were pending for cancellation. The aggregate consideration paid for
the repurchase was HK$40,526,000, equivalent to RMB37,173,000.

b. During the year ended December 31, 2022, the Company
repurchased and cancelled 15,874,000 ordinary shares with
aggregate consideration of HK$55,993,000, equivalent to
RMB47,902,000.

37. RESERVES

Share premium

Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands,
amount included in the share premium account of the Company
is distributable to the shareholders of the Company provided that
immediately following the date on which the dividend is proposed to
be distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts
as and when they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents the difference between the nominal
value of the share capital issued/consideration paid by the
Company and the aggregate capital of the subsidiaries acquired
pursuant to the group reorganization, accounted for as capital
contribution from/distribution to ultimate holding company under
merger basis of accounting.

H2023F 128318 © FrER & 250
LBARB S o BERMFT TR
1A (8 540,526,000/8 7T © FHERA
R#37,173,0007T °

b. HZE20220F12A31BILFE » AR
A)HE O 5T $515,874, 0008 L @M% -
(8 555,993,000/8 7 © HERA
R#47,902,0007T °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e BHERNEE)
For the year ended December 31, 2023 & ZE2023F12A831HIEFE
37. RESERVES (CONTINUED)

Reserve fund

The Articles of Association of certain PRC subsidiaries require the
appropriation of 10% of their profit after tax each year, based on
their statutory audited financial statements, to the reserve fund until
the balance reaches 50% of the registered capital of the respective
PRC subsidiaries. The reserve fund may be capitalized as the paid-

in capital of these subsidiaries.

Safety fund

Pursuant to relevant PRC regulation, the Group is required to
transfer 1.5% on revenue generated from the core business into a
designated fund. The fund will be used for installation and repair
and maintenance of safety facilities. The movements in the reporting
periods represent the difference between the amounts provided
based on the relevant PRC regulation and the amount utilized

during the year.

Foreign currency transaction reserve

The foreign currency transaction reserve comprises the foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations with functional currency other than

RMB.

Revaluation reserve

Revaluation reserve represents the difference between the carrying
amount of the investment property and its fair value at the date of

transfer from property, plant and equipment.

Other reserve

Other reserve represents the difference between consideration and
change of ownership interests in subsidiaries in equity transactions

with non-controlling shareholders.

During the year ended December 31, 2023, the Group entered
into an agreement with a third party, pursuant to which the third
party injected RMB500 million by cash to the Group’s subsidiary,
Dingzhou Tianlu New Energy Limited (“Dingzhou Tianlu”). Upon
the completion of the capital injection, the proportion of ownership
interests and voting rights held by the non-controlling shareholder

was increased to 34.90%.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continue

)
e B mAMNE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2023 #ZE2023F12A31HILFE

RESERVES (CONTINUED)

Other reserve (Continued)

In July 2022, Risun Group Limited, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into an investment agreement
with a third party, pursuant to which the third party agreed to
make additional capital injection to acquire 7.39% equity interests
of Hebei Risun Energy Limited (“Hebei Risun Energy”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Risun Group Limited, at a consideration of
RMB6E00 million, and the amount of RMB121.8 million recognized in
other reserve represented the difference between the consideration
and the ownership interests in Hebei Risun Energy the third party
acquired at the acquisition date.

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

On May 26, 2023, the Group entered into a capital contribution
agreement with another two joint venture partners. According to
the agreement, the Group agreed to contribute further in cash
amounting to RMB600.32 million for an additional 12% equity
interest in Risun China Gas, and the other two joint venture partners
agreed to contribute further in cash amounting to RMB199.68 million
collectively. This additional capital was intended to accelerate the
launch of coking project of Risun China Gas.

Prior to this additional acquisition, the Group held a 55% equity
interest in Risun China Gas, which was accounted for as a joint
venture of the Group. On May 31, 2023, the transaction was
completed, and the Group holds a 67% equity interest in Risun
China Gas. Pursuant to the revised articles of association, the Group
is able to direct the relevant activities of Risun China Gas which
will be decided by simple majority voting rights in shareholders’
meeting, and the Group has obtained control over Risun China
Gas. Accordingly this transaction was accounted for as a business
combination.

37.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ire M mAMNE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2023 & ZE2023F12A831HIEFE

38. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (CONTINUED)

W hE — BB A = ()

Assets and liabilities recognized at the date of acquisition: R AR EERBIE -
RMB’000
ARETFT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BB R&E 4,969,365
Right-of-use assets EREEE 107,100
Intangible assets BEE 593,706
Other long-term receivables and Hth R EAFE U S TR 5B
prepayments 113,131
Pledged bank deposits EHEPRITIFR 967
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 376,278
Other receivables HAtb fEGRIA 142,533
Amounts due from related parties FE s RS 5 3RIR 1,050,060
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBRSFED 1,358,889
Current liabilities nREEE
Trade and other payables H 5 R EMER IR (739,342)
Contract liabilities aHBaE (48,636)
Income tax payable FERTPRISHR (33,748)
Bank and other loans RITREME K (750,871)
Amounts due to related parties FE 1~ A HS 75 3RIR (2,206,660)
Non-current liabilities FEREBEE
Bank and other loans IRITREME TR (2,786,443)
Amounts due to related parties FE < A HS 5 3RIR (98,457)
Deferred tax liabilities mLTRIE'EJf (138,439)
Net assets acquired CWEFEEE 1,909,433
The other receivables acquired with a fair value of RMB142,533,000 REBEEH  2A22BEARARE

at the date of acquisition had gross contractual amount of
RMB142,533,000. The best estimate at acquisition date of the
contractual cash flows not expected to be collected was nil.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
ire MR HRR N (&)

For the year ended December 31, 2023 #ZE2023F 12 831HIEFE

38. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (CONTINUED) 38. WiE— KB AR (E)

Non-controlling interests

The non-controlling interest in Risun China Gas recognized at the
acquisition date was measured by reference to the proportionate
share of the net assets of Risun China Gas amounting to
RMB630,113,000.

FEIERAE R

FUKEE B BRRER B TBRS P A RE IR A FEE
RS HE 28 T 48 22 1 L B Al JB IS 7R R BE
TRE B EFE AR 630,113,000 T 5

=
= °

Goodwill arising on acquisition WHEE AR HE
RMB’000
AREFT
Consideration RIE
Capital injection by the Group AEETE 600,320
Contingent consideration payable (Note) FETSRAREB (A7) 66,000
Fair value of 55% equity interests IRE BRI B I55%HER A B (F1728)
previously held by the Group (note 8) 613,000
Plus: Non-controlling interest N SERERR R 630,113
Less: Net assets acquired B BB E S (1,909,433)

BEELENEE -

Gooduwill arising on acquisition

Het - BT E W - AREERSINEE
BRERX S EIMEE S H BB L
TR ER K - RARE RS -
BRARHIDEETH - BASARE
RARKGOHE T - NiEEERER
FHEGHMESE -

WIEELRNBESRAFRE

Note: Pursuant to the capital contribution agreement, an additional
compensation payable by the Group to the other two shareholders will
be subject to negotiation and agreement by all parties involved. As at
the date of this report, the negotiation is still ongoing. The contingent
consideration payable amounting to RMB66 million represents the
Directors’ best estimate.

Net cash inflows arising on the acquisition

RMB’000

AREFT

Consideration paid in cash TR ERE -
Less: Cash and cash equivalents acquired &l : CWER S KBS EHEY 1,358,889
1,358,889
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MBHmRNE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2023 & ZE2023F12A831HIEFE

38.

39.

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (CONTINUED)
Impact of acquisition on the results of the Group

Included in the profit for the current year is a profit of
RMB256,892,000 attributable to Risun China Gas. Revenue for the
current year includes RMB5,814,375,000 generated from Risun
China Gas.

Had the acquisition of Risun China Gas been completed on
January 1, 2023, revenue for the year of the Group would have
been RMB49,009,525,000, and the profit for the year would have
been RMB973,737,000. The pro forma information is for illustrative
purposes only and is not necessarily an indication of revenue and
results of operations of the Group that actually would have been
achieved had the acquisition been completed on January 1, 2023,
nor is it intended to be a projection of future results.

In determining the ‘pro-forma’ revenue and profit of the Group had
Risun China Gas been acquired at the beginning of the interim
period, the Directors calculated depreciation of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets and amortization of intangible
assets based on the recognized amounts of property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets at the date of
the acquisition.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS
Defined contribution retirement plans

Pursuant to the relevant labor rules and regulations in the PRC, the
PRC subsidiaries of the Group participate in defined contribution
retirement benefit schemes (the “Schemes”) organized by the PRC
municipal government authorities whereby the Group is required
to make contributions to the Schemes based on applicable rates.
The municipal government authorities are responsible for the entire
pension obligations payable to retired employees.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction
of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance and not previously
covered by the defined benefit retirement plan. The MPF scheme is
a defined contribution retirement plan administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant
income of HKD1,500. Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

2023 ANNUAL REPC
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e BEHERMEE)

For the year ended December 31, 2023 #ZE2023F12A31HILFE

39. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS 39. EERAREF (&)

(CONTINUED)
Defined contribution retirement plans (Continued)

During the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Group
had no forfeited contributions under those schemes which may be
used by the Group to reduce the existing level of contributions.
There were also no forfeited contributions available at December
31, 2023 and 2022 under the schemes which may be used by the
Group to reduce the contribution payable in future years.

Defined benefit plan

For the Group’s subsidiary operating in Hong Kong, pursuant to the
Employment Ordinance, Chapter 57, the Group has the obligation
to pay Long Service Payment (“LSP”) to qualifying employees in
Hong Kong under certain circumstances, subject to a minimum of 5
years employment period.

The Amendment Ordinance was gazetted on June 17, 2022, which
abolishes the use of the accrued benefits derived from employers’
mandatory MPF contributions to offset the LSP. The Abolition will
officially take effect on the Transition Date (i.e., May 1, 2025).
Separately, the Government of the HKSAR is also expected to
introduce a subsidy scheme to assist employers for a period of 25
years after the Transition Date on the LSP payable by employers up
to a certain amount per employee per year.

Under the Amendment Ordinance, the Group’s mandatory MPF
contributions, plus/minus any positive/negative returns, after
the Transition Date can continue to be applied to offset the pre-
Transition Date LSP obligation but are not eligible to offset the post-
Transition Date LSP obligation. Furthermore, the LSP obligation
before the Transition Date will be grandfathered and calculated
based on the Last monthly wages immediately preceding the
Transition Date and the years of service up to that date. The
Amendment Ordinance will have no material impact on the Group’s
LSP liability with respect to employees that participate in MPF
Scheme.

FUE R TR IRET 81 (&)

H ZE2023F K 2022F 12 A31B IEFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e BHERNEE)
For the year ended December 31, 2023 & ZE2023F12A831HIEFE

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 40. B S RXB K&k

BALANCES
During the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, transactions RE ZE2023F &x2022F 12 A31H ILF
with the following parties are considered to be related party & - A& IR 58 2B 22
transactions: 2 ¢
Name of related parties Relationship with the Group
BB S B8 izl R
Mr. Yang Xuegang Director and the Ultimate Controlling Shareholder
HEmMEE EERERIERERR
Beijing Risun Science and Technology Limited (Note a) Controlled by Mr. Yang Xuegang
(UERIBSRIRBRAR])
I RIBS R AR AR (Hita) F 1555 i o A 1
Beijing Xuyang Digital Technology Co., Ltd. (Note a) Controlled by Mr. Yang Xuegang
(UERBSEFRRBR D A])
I RBSE R B R AT (Hita) F 1555 e 5t A 1
Beijing Automec Technology Co., Ltd (Note a) Controlled by Mr. Yang Xuegang
(trREEERRERNERAA)
I RERERRERG BR AR (Hita) 15 E e A 1l
Beijing Zhengcheng Weiye Coking and Chemicals Co., Ltd. Controlled by Mr. Yang Xuegang
(Note a)
(IERERBERREECTIERAG)
b RIEREERECTER AR (M ita) 1555 i S A 2

Cangzhou Xuyang Smart Property Management Co., Ltd. (Note a) Controlled by Mr. Yang Xuegang
CRMIBS R EYMEERBRAR)

BMBSE 2 MEERER AR (M ita) MBS

Dingzhou Risun Technology Co, Ltd (Note a) Controlled by Mr. Yang Xuegang
(BMBESRIRBR DA

FEIMNBERHE AR AR (Hita) M5 S

Dingzhou Xubang New Material Technology Co., Ltd (Note a) Controlled by Mr. Yang Xuegang
(BMBHFH R BRAT)

SEMTBABIMEIRRER DR (feta) H 155 e S A1

Dingzhou Xuyang Business Hotel Co., Ltd (Note a) Controlled by Mr. Yang Xuegang
(BB RIS AR AR

EMNTERS ERSEE AR A B (Hita) MBS

Dingzhou Xucheng Property Management Co., Ltd. (Note a) Controlled by Mr. Yang Xuegang
(EMBHYEEEBRDA])

EMBHMEERBR AR (Hita) M5 S

Dingzhou Xuyang Property Service Co., Ltd (Note a) Controlled by Mr. Yang Xuegang
(EMIBESYZERBERLDR])

EMBIS Y% R B R A B (A ita) H 155 e S A 1l
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e B mAMNE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2023 #ZE2023F12A31HILFE

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND

BALANCES (CONTINUED)

40. BT R 5 R AERR ()

Name of related parties

RS B

Relationship with the Group
BEREENER

Datong Xinghua United Coal Preparation Co., Ltd (Note a)
(KRR HEERSEEEFR AR
RNEFEBREEEBRAT (Hita)

Hebei Shanghe Construction Engineering Co., Ltd (Note a)
Cidt EFBET AR AA])
b EREETRRBRAR(MiFa)

Risun Supply Chain Management Limited (Note a)
(JBFSHtESEER AR AR
JBIS Gt E R AR AR (M ita)

Xuyang Engineering Co., Ltd. (Note a)
(JERS TI2BRAF)
Bl TR BR AT (Hita)

Xingtai Xuyang Technology Co, Ltd. (Note a)
(MBETBERIRBRAF)
MEBERHEAR AR (Hita)

Xingtai Xuyang Property Co., Ltd. (Note a)
(&S MEBRAT)
e mEER AR (A ta)

Xingtai Tengxu Property Service Co., Ltd. (Note a)
(MBEREYERBARIA)
MaBBYmERSER AR (Aita)

Xingtai Xuren Hotel Service Co., Ltd (Note a)
(FERABEEREARAT])
TEBABEREER AR (Kita)

Yuncheng Xuyang Smart Property Co., Ltd (Note a)
(BB D ZMEBR DA
BB EEMERR AR (Hita)

Cabot Risun Chemicals (Note a)
(RERBR OB &) BR AR
REFERCIZ(RE)BRAR (Mita)

Jinniu Risun Chemicals (Note a)
Crdt &4 BB {E THRAR])
b &4 BR5 I THER AR (A ita)

KinXiang New Energy
(e 3R RRIBREERATR]) (Note b)
Ee S HeeREHEREE R R (A7itb)

Controlled by Mr. Yang Xuegang
SR b 2

Controlled by Mr. Yang Xuegang
M5 S5 fa S A1

Controlled by Mr. Yang Xuegang
M5 S ke 7t A1

Controlled by Mr. Yang Xuegang
SR b

Controlled by Mr. Yang Xuegang
M5 S5 fa S A=

Controlled by Mr. Yang Xuegang
M5 S ke 7t A1

Controlled by Mr. Yang Xuegang
SR b

Controlled by Mr. Yang Xuegang
M5 S fa ST A=

Controlled by Mr. Yang Xuegang
M5 S ke 7t A1

Associate of the Group

RE I N 7]

Associate of the Group
REEHE N T

Associate of the Group

A BB AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e BHERNEE)
For the year ended December 31, 2023 & ZE2023F12A831HIEFE

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (CONTINUED)

40. BT R 5 R AERR ()

Name of related parties

RS B

Relationship with the Group
BEAEENRBER

CNC Risun Energy (Note a)
CadtrE RS EER AR A E])
bR RERB R AR (Mita)

Risun Wei Shan
(NERSE ILraER(EDFE)BRRAF]) (Note b)
TBREE ILETe IR (ENfE) BIR AR (Afitb)

De Tian Coking
(BREL(ENBIRMAT) (Note b)
EREL(EE)RH DR (Hitb)

Xuyang Weishan Engineering (Hainan) Co., Ltd (Note a)
(fefEEILITRCEm)ERAR)
BEEILIRCERm)BRAR(Hita)

China Gas (Note a)
(MRS R RERER AR
IEAERS R MR ERBR AR (Hita)

Tianjin Baisen Energy Technology Co., Ltd (“Tianjin Baisen”)
(Note a)
(REBRERERBERDA])

Joint venture of the Group
REBENHEERE

Joint venture of the Group
REENSELE

Joint venture of the Group
FEENGERE

Joint venture of the Group
REBENHEERE
Non-controlling shareholder
FEFERR R

Non-controlling shareholder

KEBAREFRRFBARAR(REAR]) (HizFa) FEERRAR R

Notes: B

a. The English translation of the names is for reference only. The official a. ETEOEEEERSE - ZFHE
names of these entities are in Chinese. HIEREEARF -

b. The Chinese translation of the names is for reference only. The official b. ZBOP B EERSE c ZEHE
names of these entities are in English. HIEREBTHRIE -

c. As set out in note 38, Risun China Gas became the Group’s non- c. AP I8P EL - JBFE IR BE IR B

wholly owned subsidiary since May 31, 2023. The transactions
amounts as set out in note 40 represents transactions incurred during
the period from January to May 2023 when Risun China Gas was still
the Group’s joint venture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
ire MR HRR N (&)

For the year ended December 31, 2023 #ZE2023F 12 831HIEFE

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND  40. BBH X5 K& ()
BALANCES (CONTINUED)

The Group entered into the following material related party REBFISLTATERBE SRS -

transactions:

(a) Key management personnel remuneration (a) TEEIEAEFH
Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group, AEBEFEEEBEABNTMHN(E
including amounts paid to the Directors and the other highest EM 12BN EE R EM
paid employee as disclosed in note 12, is as follows: EEFEEMNIE)AT

Year ended December 31,

HBZE12A310LEE
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMFT ARETIT

Short-term employee benefits RHESEF 16,265 19,840
Retirement benefit scheme contribution iR {R1&FIt &Ik 313 335

16,578 20,175
Key management represents the Directors and other senior FTEETRABIEEERAEEA
management personnel of the Group. The remuneration of key HEHREREAE - TEETIEAS
management is determined with reference to the performance RFTEN IR IR AR SR B R B AR
of the Group and the individuals. RETE °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ire M mAMNE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2023 & ZE2023F12A831HIEFE

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 40. B SRR B R &R ()

BALANCES (CONTINUED)

(b) Transactions with related parties (b) HEEEFHRS

Year ended December 31,

BE12A31RILEE
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT
Purchases of goods from MATEAEESR
— related parties controlled by — B S ST AT I e R
Mr. Yang Xuegang 817,128 841,896
— CNC Risun Energy — R BR5EEIR 2,981,506 4,926,362
— Jinniu Risun Chemicals %tFJLK’ﬁﬂZI 5,891 15,799
— Risun China Gas —TBFZ A IREEIR 133,142 656,892
— Risun Wei Shan —JBFZE L 60,949 =
- De Tian Coking —EmRENL 4,615 -
Sales of goods to HEEmT
— related parties controlled by — 155 i S A PR I A R
Mr. Yang Xuegang 11,010 7,462
— CNC Risun Energy — R Br5EEIR 5,476 330,401
— Jinniu Risun Chemicals — 24 BEEET 186 1,912
— Cabot Risun Chemicals — R BSE T 788,508 990,014
— Risun China Gas — JBR5 R BRBETR 59,221 263,819
~ Risun Wei Shan —JBESE L 196,735 33,019
— KinXiang New Energy — B HEITRER 3,882 -
Construction service and AU TS ESERRSE R
other service from E At AR 75
— related parties controlled by — B15 S o S AR PR I ) R B
Mr. Yang Xuegang 704,868 261,705
Provision of service to FA T & 5 1R L AR 75
— Cabot Risun Chemicals —REEERET 852 813
Rental income from BUTEAESHESKIA
— related parties controlled by L e 2 = o)y
Mr. Yang Xuegang 2,897 1,606
— CNC Risun Energy — R EIBRSEEIR 962 2,544
— Cabot Risun Chemicals — RIS T 1,350 1,800
Interest income from B AT & A ESF S A
— related parties controlled by — 155 i S A PR I A R
Mr. Yang Xuegang - 15,034
— Risun China Gas —BFG A IREEIR 40,284 39,606
— Risun Wei Shan —JBFZE L 43,297 1,942
- KinXiang New Energy — SR 6,888 -
Interest expenses on lease liabilities HEBEMNEMX
— related parties controlled by — 15 E M I R T
Mr. Yang Xuegang 5,102 6,998
Expenses relating to leases THEEREER
— related parties controlled by — 15 [ S A 1 I A R
Mr. Yang Xuegang 42,453 47,054
The above related party transactions were conducted in L EAEE 5 22 5 TR IR AR B

accordance with terms of the relevant agreements.

2023 ANNUAL REPOF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continue

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND

BALANCES (CONTINUED)

(c) Balances with related parties

AN
N

)
B Hs R Y ot (A8

For the year ended December 31, 2023 #ZE2023F12A31HILFE

At the end of each reporting period, the Group had the

following balances with related parties:

40. BB R 5 R AEER ()

B[R T O AE R

iy

REHEHR - AR LREH
REERIT

As at December 31,

M12H831H
2023 2022
20235 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT
Amounts due from related parties PE Uk A B 5 TR IE
Dividend receivable MRS =
— CNC Risun Energy — R Bf5EEIR 20,453 91,198
Non-Trade nature EBHHEE
— related parties controlled by — M5 M AR R T
Mr. Yang Xuegang 134,367 115,513
~ Risun Wei Shan — TERS{E 1L 1,373,219 147,582
— De Tian Coking —BREL 286,790 117,740
- KinXiang New Energy —SFEFTEEIR 83,292 -
1,877,668 380,835
Impairment under ECL model TEHEEEEEXNRE (44,546) (6,294)
1,833,122 374,541
Trade nature 25 ML
Trade receivables 2 Z EWGIE
— related parties controlled by — 15 E M A R T
Mr. Yang Xuegang 15,546 14,011
— CNC Risun Energy — R BR5EEIR 24,059 3,413
— Cabot Risun Chemicals —RIERES(E T 33,435 64,340
- Risun China Gas — JBEZ R PREEIR - 393,384
— Risun Wei Shan — B 1L 399,959 35,000
— KinXiang New Energy —BFEFTREIR 4,115 -
477,114 510,148
Impairment under ECL model FEHEEEEEARE (1,029) (1,724)
476,085 508,424

2023 F 3k 221
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A SR (E)
For the year ended December 31, 2023 #(ZE2023F12A31HIFFE

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 40. B SRR B R &R ()

BALANCES (CONTINUED)
(c) Balances with related parties (Continued) (c) ERFAEE A MERR(E)
As at December 31,
M2A31H
2023 2022
2023 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FIT AREFT
Prepayment A IR
— related parties controlled by Mr. — MBS E L EEHIR T
Yang Xuegang 422,471 118,112
- Jinniu Risun Chemicals — 4B ET 14 1,708
- Risun China Gas — JBI5 AR REEIR - 1,230,169
— Risun Wei Shan — B E L 24,175 -
446,660 1,349,989
Analyzed for reporting purposes as: DITTE2MAR -
Non-current assets EnBEE 286,622 113,093
Current assets mENEE 2,489,698 2,211,059
Aging of amounts due from related parties-trade nature net of FEUL BAER 5 B 5 E E (kR
allowance for credit losses are as follows: ZEBEREERNT :
As at December 31,
M12A31H
2023 2022
20235 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTFT AE¥TFT
Within one month —EAR 360,366 493,719
1 to 3 months 12 3@ A 113,196 1,436
4 to 6 months 4Z61E A - 55
7 to 12 months 72121 A 2,523 13,214

476,085 508,424

2023 ANNUAL REPOR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e BEHERMEE)

For the year ended December 31, 2023 #ZE2023F12A31HILFE

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (CONTINUED)

40. BB R 5 R AEER ()

(c) Balances with related parties (Continued) (c) ERFAEE A MERR(E)

As at December 31, 2023, except for amount due from De
Tian Coking amounting to RMB286,790,000, Risun Wei Shan
of RMB1,373,219,000 and a related party controlled by Mr.
Yang Xuegang of RMB109,781,000 (2022: amount due from
De Tian Coking amounting to RMB117,740,000, Risun Wei
Shan of RMB123,587,000 and a related party controlled by
Mr. Yang Xuegang of RMB100,000,000) which are interest

MR2023F 12 A31H © B JE
WEXELLHREBARE
286,790,000 7T - J&E W B 5 (&
LAY FRIE A R #1,373,219,000
T UAERERBEEELEE
THHN BTN IEARE
109,781,000 7t ( 2022

bearing, all other amounts due from/to related parties are FUWEXELHREBEARE
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. 117,740,000, 7T + FEWE 52 1L
H) 78 A R #123,587,0007T ¢

AR e M8 F 5 55 e 5T A 12 6 O R
5 77 B9 I8 A R %5 100,000,000
TO)REHBFRIRZIN  FRAEHM
JEU, (< BR B 75 B0 IR S A IR
I B NARERERE

As at December 31,

M12A31H
2023 2022
20235 2022%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARKTFT ARETFT
Amounts due to related parties FEAS BAEE 5 TUE
Non-trade nature FEEHHEE
— Tianjin Baisen —KEBAHK 21,395 -
- China Gas — RIS, 104,916 -
126,311 -
Trade nature =]
Trade payable and advance from RENTEEZE SENKIEA
NMIBRFIE
— related parties controlled by — 155 [ 2 A1 5 A B
Mr. Yang Xuegang 70,465 32,286
— CNC Risun Energy — R ENBRSEEIR 562,307 43,527
— Cabot Risun Chemicals —RIERFBS T - 188
— Risun China Gas —JERZHIRBEIR - 17,646
— Risun Wei Shan —JBF5E 1L 1,600 -
- De Tian Coking —EXE 4,597 -
638,969 93,647
Payable to construction in progress HEETIRENTOE
— related parties controlled by — F5 5 [ A0 1) 1 R Bl
Mr. Yang Xuegang 84,447 90,542

2023 3
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A SR (E)
For the year ended December 31, 2023 #(ZE2023F12A31HIFFE

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (CONTINUED)

(c) Balances with related parties (Continued)

40. BB X5 R AneR ()

(c) EHAREEEHmASer(4E)
As at December 31,
M12A31H
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TFT ARETIT

Analyzed for reporting purposes as: AITES WAL -
Current liabilities mEaE
Non-current liabilities SERBAE

827,552 184,189
22,175 —

Aging of amounts due to related parties-trade nature are as

FERTBRRE 7 B 51 E SR BRER I

follows: N
As at December 31,
M12A31H
2023 2022
2023F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARBTT
Within one month 1EAMA 599,656 97,395
1 to 3 months 12318 A 25,337 9,867
3 to 6 months 3Z6MEAH 36,970 15,688
6 to 12 months 6212 A 29,787 39,261
1-2 years 1226 23,775 21,626
2-3 years 2FE3F 7,891 352
723,416 184,189

As at December 31, 2023, included in amount due to China
Gas was a shareholder’s loan amounted to RMB47 million
which was interest-free and repayable in instalments.
Except for this, all other amounts due to related parties were
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

2023 ANNUAL REPOF
China Risun Group Li

R2023%F12A318 @ st AJEN
FRERENFIBEAE—EARK47
BEETHREER  HA®EEH
R AT HBERE o Rtz AN - B
NEB TN E MBI AE
B B ERAREREE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e BEHERMEE)

For the year ended December 31, 2023 #ZE2023F12A31HILFE

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 40. B SRR B R &R ()

BALANCES (CONTINUED)

(d) At the end of each reporting period, the maximum liabilities (d) REREMK  RBETFEBTH
of the Group under guarantees issued to banks in respect of RITRMEMVITELOER - K
banking facilities granted to related parties were as follows: SENES8ENT

As at December 31,

M12831H

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TFT ARET T

0

Financial guarantees issued to joint

A& & EHE DT HER

ventures 1,270,904 3,259,770
Financial guarantees issued to an [ — KB N B8 S TER
associate 451,876 -

As at December 31, 2023, the amount of guaranteed facilities
utilized by joint ventures was RMB700,425,000 (December
31, 2022: RMB1,759,520,000).

As at December 31, 2023, the Group has provided financial
guarantees to the associate and one of the joint ventures
incorporated in Indonesia. These guarantees were extended
to facilitate the financing of their coking projects construction
based on investment agreements pursuant to which all
shareholders agreed to provide financial guarantees in
proportion to their shareholding. In the opinion of the
Directors, the fair values of the financial guarantee contracts
were insignificant at the date of issue of the financial
guarantee and no provision is necessary at the end of each
reporting period after taking into account the value of assets
held by the associate and the joint venture, as well as their
reliable future cashflows.

Financial guarantees as at December 31, 2022 were provided
to Risun China Gas which became the Group’s subsidiary
during the year ended December 31, 2023, as set out in
note 38. In the opinion of the Directors, the fair values of the
financial guarantee contracts of the Group were insignificant
at the date of issue of the financial guarantee and no provision
is necessary at the end of each reporting period taking into
account the solid credit rating and reliable cashflows of the
joint venture. Hence the Directors consider that a claim to be
made against the Group under any of these guarantees is
remote.

MR2023F 128310 &1
XFERAMNERBEAARY
700,425,0007T (20224 = AR#E
1,759,520,0007T) °

M2023%FE 128318 » NEEH
B 2w R H AR — A BB R
R EEERE T MBE
R BRERDELE  UER
B EHEAZSARNELE
HEsieds Bt 28K
A B R I IR B A5 R
R BERA  NIKEREH
B BIBERAHNARET
EA RBIRESEK BB
BRI RABCERBENEE
WEENASENRSRE  BE
FTIRAE -

N2022% 128318 » NEEE
JBIS R R EERIZ (T B AS JEAR o
AN RESSFREL - MBS R IREETR
KRB E2023F12A31BILFE
AT AEENHEBAR - £5
RAE - RUBERZEHAE K
SEUBERAONARBETE
K REREHPR  KEEEE
EEEMNERAFTHR LA ENIR
Sk BARRRE Bt
EERBAEEMTAAER it
EERMERE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MBHmRNE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2023 & ZE2023F12A831HIEFE

41.

42.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group’s primary objectives of managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, and to
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders,
by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder
returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings, and
makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions.

Based on recommendations of the board of directors, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through adjusting the amount
of dividends paid to shareholders, issuing of new shares, raising
new debt financing or selling assets to reduce debt. During the
reporting period, there were no changes in the objectives, policies
Or processes.

The Group monitors capital with reference to its debt position. The
Group’s strategy was to maintain the equity and debt in a balanced
position and ensure there was adequate working capital to service
its debt obligation.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Categories of financial instruments
The carrying amounts of each of the following categories of financial

assets and financial liabilities at the end of each reporting period
are set out as follows:

41.

42,

EXEHE

AEFEEEEARNTERNEMHERS
BICEORE)  WMEEEERIRE
ERADGRE  BE/KRRREHDE
RABEMFERMAE -

EN ) S R
1 - VR R HOKT g A
BREEHRRE TG - WRATANE
BARR B E AR B -

REEESEE A EEREBRAEN
BRI SEHE  BHITHR  B%
HEBREKLEEEARDER - #
IAFETH B E RS - RIEHA -
WHEBRER - BURER

AEEBRB2EHBBARERER -
AEE R REE RS R IB R —
EFERALE - WHERES BN EE
BREEHER -

TWMTH

TRIESER

UTEERIEREELSRAENER
SHRWEEESRSIWT

As at December 31,

M12A831H
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FIT AR¥TFr
Financial assets TREE
Financial assets at FVTPL BAAEFABENEREE 589,047 1,736,740
Trade and bills receivables measured at BAREFAEMEEKEE
FVTOCI HE 5 NI R ERER 976,187 861,432
Financial assets at amortized cost RHEKATENESRERE 7,665,060 5,254,400
Financial liabilities THAE
Financial liabilities at FVTPL BAAEFABENESREE 3,838 201
Financial liabilities at amortized cost RHEK AT ENSRARE 34,613,987 28,685,953

2023 ANNUAL REPC
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Contin
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For the year ended December 31, 2023 #ZE2023F12A31HILFE

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include other long-term
receivables, financial assets at FVTPL, restricted bank balances,
bank deposits, amounts due from related parties, other receivables,
trade and bills receivables measured at FVTOCI, cash and cash
equivalents, financial liabilities at FVTPL, trade and other payables,
bank and other loans and amounts due to related parties. Details of
these financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The
risks associated with these financial instruments include market risk
(interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out
below. The management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

Market risk
Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from interest-bearing
financial instruments. These financial instruments issued at variable
rates and at fixed rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate
risk and fair value interest rate risk respectively. The Group does not
have any specific interest rate policy except that the Group would
regularly review the market interest rates to capture the potential
opportunities to reduce the cost of borrowings. Accordingly, the
Group will enter into interest rate swap arrangement to mitigate the
interest rate risks if appropriate.

(i) Fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s fair value interest rate risk relates primarily to
fixed-rate bank and other loans (see note 33 for details).

42,

ERMIAGE)
T REREIE B AR MR

AEENFZSRITARSHMREE
WHRIE - A REFABENERE
F*xﬁE%UﬁEﬂ BER  IRITER - B
BAEE TSR - EAREAGRIR - RARE
SEAREEWREFT ERNE SRR

MEWERE  BReLREEHEY  EA
REFABSENEREE HHRHEM

JERTERIE ~ dR1T R LA BB K P AT B B
FE - ZE R T AMFFIEN A R
EAEE - BzSemn T EAENRER
BiEmsERE(FIXERE - BEER R
E’rﬁﬂ wRk) - EERRRRSHES
B o /Wtﬁwt—rﬂ SRR T
X ERETENMERBERR - #R
&E%Eﬁiﬁxﬁitﬁmﬁi HERHE °

R
FE bz

AEEWMERBEIEREFEEHT

c WF BN R EEENEREHNTE
TASISAEEHEERSREN XA
B R DT EN R ER o AR E T
FEMERBER - EARESTESRET™
35 ) R AAE IR A 18 SRR A Y 7
g o Fitt - AEBESRNEE R IR LA
g B2 B AR R K [\

()  AREFFREE
AEBNRAAENEER T2

REBRITREMER(FHEHE
2/HI5E33) ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MBHmRNE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2023 & ZE2023F12A831HIEFE

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 42,

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Interest rate risk (Continued)
(ii) Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk relates primarily to
bank deposits and bank and other loans at floating interest
rates. To manage and mitigate the interest rate exposure, the
Group regularly review the market interest rates to capture
the potential opportunities to reduce the cost of borrowings.
The management will continue to consider hedging significant
interest rate risk should the need arise.

The impact on the Group’s profit after taxation (and retained
profits) was based on the exposure to interest rate for the
floating-rate bank deposits and bank and other loans,
assuming that these financial assets and liabilities outstanding
at the end of the reporting period was outstanding for
the whole relevant period. If a 25 basis point increase or
decrease in variable-rate bank deposits and a 100 basis point
increase or decrease in variable-rate borrowing are used,
and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s profit
after taxation would decrease/increase by approximately
RMB51,379,000 for the year ended December 31, 2023 (2022:
RMB34,427,000).

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through bank
balances and bank and other loans that are denominated in
foreign currency, i.e. currency other than the functional currency
of the operations to which they relate. The currencies giving rise
to this risk are primarily USD and HKD. To minimise this risk, the
Group enters into various forward contracts with certain financial
institutions to manage the Group’s exposure in relation to the partial
USD loans.

2023 ANNUAL REPC
China Risun Group:

EMIAE
TR EIE AR R (E)
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Fi bz ()
(i)  HEEREFFEER
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RAREEFHE) - BRTEERR
BRI EER - NEEEE REN
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HAEBEKRI SR (R B
) RSB T E R F BIRITIE K
AR ARTT R E A B 3 ) E &
B RERIREHRREENZ
LB ERBBTEEERER
T EEE - WFBRITER
B RGN R o5 EE R - K&
V7 B E TR EY FE IS hn gkl 4100
EE2 - BB EMEHRET
% BIE ZE2023F12A31H 1
FEAREENRTEREFE S B
w1 AR #51,379,000
JL (20224 « AR¥34,427,000
JT) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e BEHERMEE)

For the year ended December 31, 2023 #ZE2023F12A31HILFE

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 42. €RMTA(E)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Currency risk (Continued)

The following table indicates the instantaneous change in the

TR EIE AR R (E)

™5 EkE (%)
Eimps(E)

TRINIAEEHBRTR G (R RE

HF) B A EERN R BARFEEA
B EMETE £ 3% B LSRR BT
PO S B (B AR EBTE) -

Group’s profit after taxation (and retained profits) that would arise if
foreign exchange rates to which the Group has significant exposure
at the end of the reporting period had changed at that date,
assuming all other risk variables remained constant.

Year ended December 31,
BZ12A31HILFEE

2023 2022
2023 20224

(Decrease)/ (Decrease)/

increase increase

Increase/ in profit Increase/ in profit

(decrease) after tax (decrease) after tax

in foreign and in foreign and

exchange retained exchange retained

rates profits rates profits

MREBLR SRR BRELIRR T K

SN = R EBEF SN REE N

#/i,082)  GED) 8 & Chd) Gl 1m

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFIT AEETFT
uUsDh ETT 5% (1,265) 5% (80,785)
Others E A 5% 710 5% 326

Results of the analysis as presented in the above table represent
an aggregation of the instantaneous effects on each of the Group
entities’ profit after tax in the respective functional currencies,
translated into RMB at the exchange rate ruling at the end of each
reporting period for presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in foreign
exchange rates had been applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk at the end of the reporting period. The analysis is
performed on the same basis during the reporting period.

ERFPINDITER  RREAREEE
ERNRTREFN AR E (R
HEBWIREERTE  YASREH
ROEREXBRESARBIEZI 2
FR)FTS M ARER o

BUREDITRRINEE RN ESH T AR
BT EAREMBALNREHRE
AEEmERINERRN SR TA - D17
RS BRIz R — E AT o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ire M mAMNE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2023 #Z2023F 12 A31H ILF/E

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Currency risk (Continued)
Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its investments
in listed equity securities. The Directors do not implement specific
measurements to mitigate the price risk. If the market price of the
listed equity securities increased or decreased by 5%, the Group
would recognize additional gains or losses of RMB6,086,000 for the
year ended December 31, 2023 (2022: RMB5,912,000).

The Group’s commodity price risk is mainly concentrated on
fluctuations in the prevailing market price of coke, coal, and refined
chemical products which are the major commodities purchased,
produced and sold by the Group. To minimize this risk, the Group
enters into future contracts to manage the Group’s exposure in
relation to forecasted sales of products, forecasted purchase of
raw materials and inventories. The impact of price change of future
contracts is insignificant as there have been no material outstanding
future contracts at the end of each reporting periods.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group’s counterparties default
on their contractual obligations resulting in financial losses to the
Group. The Group’s credit risk exposures are primarily attributable
to other long-term receivables, other receivables, trade and bills
receivables, amounts due from related parties, restricted bank
balances, bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents. The
Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements
to cover its credit risks associated with its financial assets and
financial guarantee contracts.

At the end of each reporting period, other than financial assets
whose carrying amounts best represent the maximum credit risk,
the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk arising from the
amount of contingent liabilities in relation to financial guarantees
provided by the Group to the related parties is disclosed in note
40(d).

2023 ANNUAL REP!
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 42, TETE(E)
Financial risk management objectives and policies CRERRER B EREE(E)

(Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The Group mainly conducted transactions with customers with good
quality and long-term relationship, when accepting new customers,
the Group requests advanced payment before the goods delivered.
In order to minimize the credit risk, the management of the Group
has delegated a team responsible for determination of credit limits,
credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.

To manage risk arising from bank balances and bills receivables,
the Group mainly transacts with state-owned or reputable financial
institutions in PRC and reputable international financial institutions
outside of PRC. There has been no recent history of default in
relation to these financial institutions.

To manage risk arising from trade receivable balances, the
Group has policies in place to ensure that credit terms are
made to counterparties with an appropriate credit history and
the management performs ongoing credit evaluations of its
counterparties. The credit period granted to the customers and
the credit quality of these customers is assessed, which takes into
account their financial position, past experience and other factors.

The Group does not have any significant concentration of credit
risk, with exposure spread over a large number of counterparties
and customers.

The Group reassesses lifetime ECL for trade receivables and
amounts due from related parties arising from contracts with
customers without significant financing component to ensure that
adequate impairment loss are made for significant increase in the
likelihood or risk of a default occurring.

FERBMRER G ()

AEETRREEGACEIRAAIER
BENEPENTRS EERINEPE -
$El@¥iﬁf%§ﬁm%mﬁﬁ°
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2&.%%;#&@fﬁ% EEEL
NEADEIEIE R - ARERIRERBETTH)
Y Bla B
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

For trade receivables and amounts due from related parties of trade
nature, the Group has applied the simplified approach in IFRS 9 to
measure the loss allowance at lifetime ECL. The ECL on these assets
are assessed individually for debtors with significant balances
or collectively using a provision matrix appropriate groupings.
As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the Group use
debtors’ aging to assess the impairment for its customers because
its customers consists of a large number of customers which
share common risk characteristics that are representative of the
customers’ abilities to pay all amounts due in accordance with
the contractual terms. The estimated loss rates are estimated
on historical observed default rates over the expected life of the
debtors and are adjusted using forward-looking information that
is available without undue cost or effort. The grouping is regularly
reviewed by management to ensure relevant information about

specific debtors is updated.

For all other instruments including bills receivable, other receivables,
other long-term receivables and amounts due from related parties
of non-trade nature, the Group measures the loss allowance equal
to 12-month ECL, unless when there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition, the Group recognizes lifetime
ECL. The Group has assessed and concluded that the risk of
default rate for these instruments are steady based on the Group’s

assessment of the financial health of the counterparties.
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the Group’s

trade and other receivables, other long-term receivables and
amounts due from related parties, which are subject to ECL

42. €T E(ME)
TRIRBREEBIERBR(E)

FERRBMRER G (&)

Ti’%ﬁiﬁ%ﬁlwﬁlﬁ%&ﬁ\mﬁﬂﬁm
I8 - ELA R HRREUGRIR K M U B 5 5K
ANEERR(AETRREREER

assessment: ) :
Internal
credit 2023 2022
Notes  rating 12-month or lifetime ECL Gross carrying amount Gross carrying amount
M7 AREETR  12ERS2HREEERE 00FARAR 20225 A

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000
ARBFL  ARETT  ARETT  ARETT

Financial assets at amortised cost

RESRATENEREE
Other recg'vab\es 27 Note 12month ECL 753,868 547,687
HthElsE it 12EAREEER
Lifetime ECL (not credit- 109,091
%%%ﬁ*gﬁh
ERfE)
Cred\t |mpa|red (individually) 26,555 889,514 948 548,635
EERE(ER)
Amounts due from related parties* 40 Note 12-month ECL‘ i 1,898,121 472,033
FEN R 7 R it 12EAREEEER
Ln‘enme EQL govmon matr\x) 477,114 2,375,235 510,148 982,181
FHESEEEE(RERE)
Other long-term receivables 23 Note 12month ECL 916,270 241,867
EHRBRYRE iz 10EARBEEEA
Lifetime ECL - 916,270 109,091 350,958
(not cred\t impaired)
iiﬁfﬁi,ﬁﬁi
(B8 ﬂ@)
Financial assets at FVTOCI
BARESAHEZERENSREE
Trade receivables 27 Lifetime ECL (provision matrix) 531,779 311,454
BHRYEE cHBREEEE(REDR)
Credit- |mE>a|red (individually) 27,548 559,327 23,564 335,018
EEREER)
Bills receivable 271 Note 12month ECL 472,205 472,205 558,776 558,776
ElRE 3 12EARSEEEE
* The gross carrying amounts disclosed above include both trade : LB RREE GRS IEH

nature receivables and non-trade nature receivables. All trade nature
receivables are applying lifetime ECL.

Note: For the purposes of internal credit risk management, the Group uses
past due information or other relevant information available without
undue cost or effort to assess whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition.

FE IR T 3E 3 AR - P
A H S E KR — B R 2
SRR -

Krat - EARMEERBERT S - AKBER
REHRHE MR BRIEE TV ER AR
A BIA RS A M A NG
f;ﬁﬂ =B RER R D KR

D o
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 42, TETE(E)
Financial risk management objectives and policies CRERRER B EREE(E)
(Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) FERBRARET ()
2023 20234
Not past due/
No fixed
Past due repayment terms Total
bk 3k
Bl YEETERDR @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARETFT ANB¥FT
Bills receivable e - 472,205 472,205
Amounts due from related parties & U BEHE 77 708 - 1,898,121 1,898,121
Other receivables Hip U FIE 26,555 862,959 889,514
Other long-term receivables Hip REEMN A - 916,270 916,270
2022 20224
Not past due/
No fixed
Past due  repayment terms Total
W,/
BE WEETERER et
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFIT AREFT AREFT
Bills receivable EWEZE - 558,776 558,776
Amounts due from related parties & Ut BEESE 77 208 - 982,181 982,181
Other receivables H A fEU IR 948 547,687 548,635
Other long-term receivables H = B R U IR 109,091 241,867 350,958

2023 ANNUAL REPOF
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 42,

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL that has

been recognized for trade receivables and amounts due from
related parties of trade nature under the simplified approach:

SHMIAGE)

TR EIE AR R (E)

FERBMRER G ()

TRIVREREBBETDEE 5 UK
BN R R T B S I EIERER N 2

HESEESREY -

Lifetime ECL

(not credit- Lifetime ECL
impaired) (credit-impaired) Total

2HEREERE 2HEDGESE
(Y EEERE) (FERE) #at
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AREFT AREFT
As at January 1, 2022 20221 H1H 34,036 27,477 61,513
~ Transfer to credit-impaired —BREEEERE (333) 333 -
— Impairment losses recognized — — ERERAREEE 6,171 - 6,171
— Impairment losses reversed —BEERHERE (29,352) (4,246) (33,598)
As at December 31, 2022 202212 A31H 10,522 23,564 34,086
— Transfer to credit-impaired —ERZEERE (4,044) 4,044 -
— Impairment losses recognized ~ — ERERRREEE 24,389 - 24,389
— Impairment losses reversed — BRI ERE (2,041) (60) (2,101)
As at December 31, 2023 M2023F12A31H 28,826 27,548 56,374
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The following table details the risk profile of trade receivables and
amounts due from related parties of trade nature based on the
Group’s provision matrix.

Gross carrying amount of trade receivables and amounts due
from related parties of trade nature

42, TETE(E)

TR EIE AR R (E)

FERBMRER G ()

IRAASER A EEBHREMENE
SRR N UL R 77 B B IEE IR
HREERARST o

ESERSEREREH T ES HEH
TR AR EfE

As at December 31,2023  As at December 31, 2022

72023512H31H

MR2022%12A31H

Gross Gross

Average carrying Average carrying

loss rate amounts loss rate amounts

FHBEER HWEREE THEEX HAREE

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT AT T

Within 1 month 1MEAR 0.03% 842,131 0.09% 738,320
1 to 3 months 12 31E A 0.73% 123,658 3.19% 45,724
4 to 6 months 4Z6{EH 19.84% 4,542 16.91% 6,794
7 to 12 months 7Z212{8 A 26.39% 3,896 16.25% 21,852
1to 2 years 1E24F 75.24% 34,666 41.73% 8,912
1,008,893 821,602

As at December 31, 2023, the Group provided RMB28,826,000
(2022: RMB10,522,000) impairment allowance for trade receivables
and amounts due from related parties of trade nature based on the
provision matrix. In addition, as at December 31, 2023, debtors
with balances from trade receivables amounting to RMB27,548,000
(2022: RMB23,564,000) were assessed individually and impairment
allowance of RMB27,548,000 (2022: RMB23,564,000) were made.

2023 ANNUAL REPC
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Gross carrying amount of trade receivables and amounts due
from related parties of trade nature (Continued)

The following table shows reconciliation of loss allowances that
have been recognized for bills receivables, other receivables, other
long-term receivables and amounts due from related parties of non-
trade nature:

42, TETE(E)

TR EIE AR R (E)

FERBMRER G ()

ESERSEREREH T E S EEH
TR AR ET1E ()

TRIVREREWRIE - H &Y
18 - i REIEYGRIA N R UL R 7T 3F
B 5B FIRMERNE R R E Ik

Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
12-month (not credit- (credit-
ECL impaired) impaired) Total
2 HTEH 2 HTEHE
1218 A& FEBE EEBE
FEFR (YREERE) (EEHE) e
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT  AREFTT AREFT AREFT
As at January 1, 2022 2022%F1A1H 24,996 49,199 41,031 115,226
— Impairment losses — B ERNREEE
recognized 12,815 - - 12,815
— Impairment losses reversed ~ — B BRI EEIE (24,000) (9,060) (40,083) (73,143)
As at December 31, 2022 12022123318 13,811 40,139 948 54,898
— Impairment losses —BERORESE
recognized 82,260 27,724 25,607 135,591
— Impairment losses reversed ~ —E&OR)REEE (6,495) (40,139) - (46,634)
As at December 31, 2023 72023%12H31H 89,576 27,724 26,555 143,855

As at December 31, 2023, dividend receivable from CNC Risun
Energy of non-trade nature amounting to RMB20,453,000 (2022:
RMB91,198,000) were assessed individually and no impairment
allowance were made on these debtors.

R2023F 12 A31H » KEEREW
PEBEERIFESHEEREAR
# 20,453,000 7T ( 2022 FF : A R ¥&
91,198,0007T ) #E 7T AIFFAE + YW ARFE
FEWRIERHR R B
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For the year ended December 31, 2023 & ZE2023F12A831HIEFE

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 42. ST A (HE)
Financial risk management objectives and policies CRERRER B EREE(E)
(Continued)
Liquidity risk REESREE
The Directors are responsible for the Group’s cash management, EFRRARENRSER AR
including the short-term investment of cash surpluses and the ﬁﬁﬁmﬂ%ﬁ&ﬁ&ﬁ%g?ﬂxﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands. The Group’s BEeHmFK - AEERHBER ﬁigﬂ%ﬁ%‘\/m
policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements and its BE S HE KRBT HRR - ARERE
compliance with lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains HRRAHREHERREEREMME
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of funding MR AEREASEE - NEMEREH
from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in HREBEERK
the short and longer term.
The following tables show the remaining contractual maturities at TEIARERBEHREHBERLM
the end of the reporting period of the Group’s financial liabilities and ERERENHBRE OHREL DT
lease liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted cash BB IZAOREIESRE(E
flows (including interest payments computed using contractual REMAG MR ENFIBMAR &5
rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the end of the FE - ARREBARERNFETE)
reporting period) and the earliest date the Group can be required to l;é&$$ SE AN R RT B B
pay: =
As at December 31, 2023
1#2023F128318
Contractual undiscounted cash outflows
ANRERRERY
More than ~ More than
Weighted Within 1 1 year 2 years
average  yearoron but less butless  More than Carrying
interest rate demand than2years than5 years 5 years Total amount
il 3 15/ SME SH2E
RR=LES BEEX  EORE EORSE EQACES @t kAR

% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
% AREFT ARETT ARETT  AREFT ARETT  ARETR

Trade and other payables LS REMENTE N/ATER 7,953,903 60,000 56,081 - 8,069,984 8,058,617
Bank and other loans ROREMER 540 17,637,720 6,697,086 1,448,702 558,277 26,341,785 25,705,643
Amounts due to related FEfTFRE 7 3UR

parties N/ATER 827,987 12,500 11,868 - 852,355 849,727
Lease liabilities HEaRE 5.68 97,002 82,298 144,856 657,027 981,183 599,895
Financial guarantee contracts BB ERAHD NATER 1,722,780 - - - 1,722,780 -

28,239,392 6,851,884 1,661,507  1,215304 37,968,087 35,213,882
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 42, TETE(E)
Financial risk management objectives and policies CRERRER B EREE(E)
(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) REESER (&)

As at December 31, 2022

120225128318
Contractual undiscounted cash outflows
AORERR R

More than More than

Weighted Within 1 1 year 2 years
average  yearoron but less but less More than Carrying
interest rate demand than?2years thanb years 5 years Total amount

il 1ER SRE GG
TR RRER  EIRE [EIRSE SR5E at KEE

% RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
% ANEETT ARETT ARETT AEETT ARETT ARETT

Trade and other payables &5 R HtENFUR NA 8,273,091 - - - 8273091 8273091
Bank and other loans FITREMER 576 13556541 5622180 3,263,394 - 22442115 20,208,673
Amounts due to related JERERN 3R

parties N/A 184,189 - - - 184,189 184,189
Lease liabilities HERE 5.69 77,047 82,653 134,100 461,239 755,039 473,234
Financial guarantee contracts BHHERAHD NA 3,259,770 - - - 3259770 -

26,350,638 5,704,833 3,397,494 461,239 34914204 29,159,187

The amounts included above for financial guarantee contracts FiBERENSBAREERES
are the maximum amounts the Group could be required to settle BIERSBLIERERNE T FHRRZ
under the arrangement for the full guaranteed amount if that CRBEA TR EENNRR SR -
amount is claimed by the counterparty to the guarantee. Based ENESHEHRNTEL - AEBRAR
on the expectations at the end of each reporting period, the B REBEZLHBEEASTNERS
Group considers that it is more likely than not that no amount will B o A - ZE AT RAYF HIRE
be payable under the arrangement. However, these estimates ERIBELRRATREMAE - MiZh
are subject to change depending on the probability of the FRRA 0] BEVE RIBURR 8 F 5 PR i i
counterparties claiming under the guarantee which is a function of REB IS EW FUE L IR E B A BRI 6L
the likelihood that the financial receivables held by the counterparty 14 o

which are guaranteed suffer credit losses.
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Fair values

(i) Financial instruments carried at fair value

The Group measures its following financial instruments at fair
value at the end of each reporting period on a recurring basis:

42, TETE(E)

T REREE

B MR (E)

() HEAAEIRHZHTE

Fair value
AffE
As at December 31, Significant
MM2A318 Fair value  Valuation technique and unobservable
2023 2022  hierarchy  key input input(s)
2023% 020%F  AAEEHR HEFERIZBAZE EXFTBRGARE
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBFT ANEEFT
Financial assets
SREE
Listed equity securities 121,718 118,246 Level 1 Fair values are calculated based ~ N/A
on the quoted prices
in an active market
EmRAES E DAENENERTSLNBRE  TER
Unlisted equity investment 111,670 114,182 Level 3 Fair values are estimated based  Liquidity discount rate
on the comparable listed
company's P/B ratio and a
liquidity discount
I ETRARE =8 AREDERTL EMARMME RBERRE
ERREITRE G
Private equity investment 224,457 1,320,580  Level 3 Fair values are estimated based ~ Net assets value
funds on the net asset value of of underlying
underlying investments or net investments
asset value of unit share
RERAREES E ARENERABRENEEFE RRRENEETE
S EMREE EFAER
Wealth management product 119,621 117,912 Level 2 Fair values are determined with N/A
reference to the quoted prices
provided by financial institutions
B ER =1 AAEDESZoRKERRNR  NER
BEE
Futures contracts 833 1,062 Level 1 Fair values are derived from N/A
quoted bid prices in an active
market
HEa1 F—& MRABEDREERTSNEARE TER
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 42, ERITE(ME)
Financial risk management objectives and policies CRERRER B EREE(E)
(Continued)
Fair values (Continued) DAEGR
(i) Financial instruments carried at fair value (Continued) () BAAEIRYEMTAE)
Fair value
DR
As at December 31, Significant
M2A318 Fair value  Valuation technique and unobservable
2023 2022  hierarchy  key input input(s)
20235F 20226 DAEER MAEFIRIERARE BEXTIRRGAYE

RMB000  RMB000
ARBFR ARETT

Held-for-trading non-derivative 9,416 23,938  Level 1 Fair values are derived from N/A
financial assets quoted bid prices in an active
market
FEEEFTHESRERE - AREDREERTHNEARE TER
Derivative financial 1,332 40,820 Level 2 Fair values are determined with N/A
instruments reference to the quoted prices
provided by financial institutions
THE®RMTA E8 DAEELEZSRKERENR TER
BT
Trade receivables 503,982 302,656 Level 2 Fair values are estimated based ~ N/A

on the present value of the
contracted cash inflow at the
discount rate that reflects the
market credit risk

BHEKFIE - AREDERENRERARRYE TER
MiEEERBOMEETENA
fEfbat

Bills receivables 472,205 558,776  Level 2 Fair values are estimated based ~ N/A
on the present value of the
contracted cash inflow at the
discount rate that reflects the
market credit risk

EWER F-H AREDERGHRSRAZRE TER
MHEERRNOMRETERR
1Bl

Financial liabilities

cRaE

Futures contracts 3,838 201 Level 1 Fair values are derived from N/A
quoted bid prices in
an active market

HEAN £ ARENREERTHOEARE TER

2023 3
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Fair values (Continued)
(i) Financial instruments carried at fair value (Continued)

The Group’s investments in unlisted equity investment which
were classified as financial assets at FVTPL under level 3
hierarchy amounted to RMB111,670,000 as at December 31,
2023 (2022: RMB114,182,000). The significant unobservable
input is the liquidity discount rate. The higher liquidity discount
rate, the lower fair value of the financial assets at FVTPL will
be. A 5% increase/decrease in the liquidity discount rate,
holding all other variables constant, the carrying amounts of
the investments would decrease/increase by RMB6,926,000
(2022: RMB7,216,000) as at December 31, 2023.

The Group’s investments in private equity investment funds
which were classified as financial assets at FVTPL under
level 3 hierarchy amounted to RMB224,457,000 (2022:
RMB1,320,580,000) as at December 31, 2023. The significant
unobservable input is the net assets value of underlying
investments. The higher net assets value of underlying
investments, the higher fair value of the financial assets at
FVTPL will be. A 5% increase/decrease in the net assets value
of underlying investments, holding all other variables constant,
the carrying amounts of the investments would increase/
decrease by RMB11,223,000 (2022: RMB66,029,000) as at
December 31, 2023.

There were no transfers between level 1 and level 2 during
the reporting period.

2023 ANNUAL REPC
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 42. ST A (HE)
Financial risk management objectives and policies CRERRER B EREE(E)
(Continued)
Fair values (Continued) A RE ()
(i)  Reconciliation of level 3 measurements (i) FE=ARBRIEK
The following table represents the reconciliation of level 3 TERBRREEREHE =M
measurements throughout the reporting period. B o
Private Unlisted equity
equity fund securities Total
RERETES FLTREAERS FCH
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AEEFT AREFT AREFT
As at January 1, 2022 R2022F1H1H 206,992 38,182 245174
Purchase BE 1,100,030 40,000 1,140,030
Redemption il (7,160) (2,160) (9,320)
Fair value change in KEEANEE
current year 20,718 38,160 58,878
As at December 31, 2022 R2022F 128311 1,320,580 114,182 1,434,762
Purchase BE 25,000 - 25,000
Redemption L) (1,050,030) (2,000) (1,052,030)
Fair value change in REEREZE)
current year (71,093) (512) (71,605)
As at December 31, 2023 K2023F12H31H 224,457 111,670 336,127

(iii)  Fair values of financial instruments carried at other than

fair value

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortized cost in
the consolidated financial statements approximate their fair

values.

(iii) LHERAALEIRYEHT AL

AAE

EERR mAVBmETIRE
HRALENEREERSRE
BEHRREERFEEAERE
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BI/BE S B AR AR

243



244

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ire M mAMNE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2023 & ZE2023F12A831HIEFE

43. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 43.

FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for
which cash flows were or future cash flows will be, classified in the
Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from
financing activities.

BEEFHELNREYR

TRV AKEEREEBHELNEE
23 BRREIFERSED - BER
HELNBREDEERSARERRIR
ERENAEEGARSRERTOE
RABERBRERENAE -

Amounts

Interest- due to
bearing related
bank and parties
other loans non-trade

SEATR  ENEEL
HtER  FEZRE
RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT  ARETIL

Dividend

Lease payable
liabilities (Note b) Total

EARE
HEAE (Hiztb) @t
RMB000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT  ARETT  ARETZT

At January 1, 2022 R2022F12A31H 13,586,680 - 214,008 3 13,800,691
Net financing cash flows BERLREFE 5,338,115 - (135,823) (823,459) 4,378,833
Bill receivables discounted  BRREWERE (fi7a)

(Note a) 108,407 - - - 108,407
Deposits used for repayment EE LM EFFTAEZS

of other loans (43,225) - - - (43,225)
Dividend payable ERRE - - - 823,459 823,459
New leases entered HEHE - - 407,333 - 407,333
Derecognition of lease RIERREEERE

liabilities - - (27,560) - (27,560)
Rent payables idppiika - - 1,997 - 1,997
Finance costs HERAE 983,975 - 13,279 - 997,254
Interest accrual - capitalized [T #|8— &4t 142,036 - - - 142,036
Exchange difference X ER 112,685 - - - 112,685
At December 31, 2022 ®2022%12A31H 20,228,673 - 473,234 3 20,701,910
Net financing cash flows RERSREFE (559,040) (78,000) (69,325) (304,599) (1,010,964)
Bill receivables discounted B3R BN EE (fiza)

(Note a) 1,340,070 - - - 1,340,070
Deposits used for repayment EEEMEFFTRE S

of other loans (240,464) - - - (240,464)
Dividend payable RS - - - 337,699 337,699
New leases entered ¥AIHE - - 178,760 - 178,760
Acquisition of a subsidiary ~ YE—FEHEBAR 3,537,314 204,311 - - 3,741,625
Rent payables lidppiika - - (17,079) - (17,079)
Finance costs RERAK 1,315,440 - 34,305 - 1,349,745
Interest accrual - capitalized FEHF| 8 — &AL 88,609 - - - 88,609
Exchange difference EHER (4,959) - - - (4,959)
At December 31, 2023 R2023%F12A31H 25,705,643 126,311 599,895 33,103 26,464,952

2023 ANNUAL REPC
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IRe SRR (&)

For the year ended December 31, 2023 #ZE2023F 12 831HIEFE

43. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 43. REEBHEENEBEHRE)
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (CONTINUED)

Notes: Biat -

a. During each reporting period, the Group has discounted bills a. REREHE  AEEDEEKE=
receivable from third parties to banks for short-term financing. The FHEWEBLIE TIRT  ETEHR
relevant cash flows of these borrowings are presented as operating B REZEFNEBRSRENGS
cash flows in the consolidated statement of cash flows as the REREREVARERESRE
Directors consider the cash flows are in substance, the receipts from EERARSAEEEE ABYE SR
trade customers. PUERFRIE o

b. Dividend payable is included in trade and other payables as set out in b. AR ST AN EME S RE
note 31. ftb FEAFRIE o

44. COMMITMENTS 44. EIE

Capital commitments outstanding at the end of each reporting RERERI ARG P IERERF1E

period not provided for in the consolidated financial statements HEBENRBITEAEENT ¢

were as follows:

As at December 31,

M12831H
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT AR¥TT

Capital expenditure in respect of UTEENERRA
— property, plant and equipment —Z - BB R 1,271,592 1,363,397
— investments in joint ventures (Note) —REEDENIRE (H5T) - 73,952
Note: According to the investment agreements, other than investments in BizE : BB E S - B EXiRE D
joint ventures set out above, the Group may also provide shareholder’s PR PIAN - (MEZA B DEREES
loans to joint ventures amounting to RMB249,266,000 (2022: EEBHNIRE  AEBENAAESD
RMB412,704,000) and RMB3,083,175,000 (2022: RMB4,415,141,000) B2 4 58 A A R 18 249,266,000 70
respectively, if they are not able to obtain external financing. (20224 : AR#412,704,0007T) &

AR #3,083,175,0007T (20224 : A
R#4.415,141,00070) IR R E 7K ©

2023 F 3k 245
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A SR (E)
For the year ended December 31, 2023 #(ZE2023F12A31HIFFE

45. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 45. EEHER

REMEHR - BHE27 M REER
AEBRTEFEMNBEREIN - K
SEETEECERRR T AEERTT
BE(EYESR - MEREENT ¢

At the end of each reporting period, in addition to the discounted
bills securing the Group’s bank loans as disclosed in note 27,
certain Group’s assets were pledged to secure banking facilities
granted to the Group and their carrying amounts are as follows:

As at December 31,

M12831H
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT ARKTIT

Property, plant and equipment W - BB KREE 9,008,897 8,002,057
Right-of-use assets FREEE 969,371 719,221
Investment properties LB 65,071 =
Inventories T8 300,020 348,757
Trade receivables B Z MR 226,089 54,063
Restricted bank deposits ZRFIRITER 2,247,243 1,263,073

12,816,691 10,387,171

2023 ANNUAL REPOF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
ire MR HRR N (&)

For the year ended December 31, 2023 #ZE2023F12A31HILFE

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

OF THE COMPANY

Details of the principal subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by
the Company at the end of the reporting period are set out below:

46. XATEEMB LT ZFHE

ARBRRERRERMEAEFAEZE
EMEARFBEHIINT

Place of Shareholding/equity
incorporation/ interest attributable
registration/ Paid up issued/ to the Company
Name of subsidiaries operations registered capital as of December 31,  Principal activities
AR ERES BHERT RATELRE
ME AR BB S AR LHEZ12A318  TEEE
2023 2022
2023%F 20224

Golden Sino Enterprises BVI Ordinary share USD1 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited (“Golden Sino”)

(Note (iii)

EREEERARTER] HEREAHE L5 REER
(Fizt (i)

China Risun Group (Hong Hong Kong Ordinary share HKD1 100% 100%  Investment holding and
Kong) Limited (“Hong Kong trading of coke, coking
Risun™) chemicals and refined

chemicals
hEIEG S E(FE)BERAR B LEARET REFBAREESER &
([&#18E]) frERKERETER

Risun Global Limited (“Risun Hong Kong Ordinary share 100% 100%  Trading of coke, coking
Global”) HKD3,000,000 chemicals and refined

chemicals

TESEFARAR([BSEER]) &% L3/ /1%3,000,000/ 7T BEER - SEm A

CITER

Risun Group Limited The PRC Paid-in capital 100% 100% Investment holding
(BSEEBRAF) RMB5,000,000,000
(Notes (i) and (iv))

JEGEEAR AR e BEHBRAARE REER
(Hia0) & (iv)) 5,000,000,0007T

Hebei Risun Energy The PRC Paid-in capital 92.61% 92.61%  Production of coke and
CaitnksReRERAH) RMB1,079,826,575 coking chemicals
(Notes (i) and (iv))

LIRS 8RB IR AR H BEHBRAARE HEERREER
(Hia0) & (iv)) 1,079,826,5757T

Shandong Hongda The PRC Paid in capital 100% 100%  Production of coke and
(WEEE (L TERDE]) RMB420,000,000 coking chemicals
(Note (iv))

WRECTERLDE H BEHBRAARE HEERREER
(Hizt(iv) 420,000,0007T

2023 3
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MBHmRNE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2023 & ZE2023F12A831HIEFE

46. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

46. XABETEMBATZHE

OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED) (#&)
Place of Shareholding/equity
incorporation/ interest attributable
registration/ Paid up issued/ to the Company
Name of subsidiaries operations registered capital as of December 31,  Principal activities
MR BRS BEERT FATIEMERE R
MR AR AE e AR tflEZ12A318  EEB#K
2023 2022
2023%F  2022%F
Risun China Gas The PRC Paid in capital 67% 55%  Production of coke and
(MR R B RS R R AE TR B TR RMB1,336,000,000 coking chemicals
A7) (Note (iv))
FRYERRGTREERBR AT FE EHRAARE EEEREECER
(Hizt(iv) 1,336,000,0007T
Xingtai Risun Coal Chemicals ~ The PRC Paid-in capital 100% 100%  Production of refined
Limited (“Xingtai Risun Coal RMB776,000,000 chemicals
Chemicals”)(JIF & 1B /L T
BRR2 7)) (Notes (i) and (iv))
MBaEEEETARAR HE] ERRARARE HERBBCIED
(Hia(i) B (iv) 776,000,000
Cangzhou Risun The PRC Paid-in capital 100% 100%  Production of refined
CRMB L IERAR) RMB3,583,943,360 chemicals
(Notes (ii) and (iv))
BINBE L TERAR R EHRAARE FERMCIED
(Hia(i) B (iv) 3,583,943,3607T
Dingzhou Tianlu The PRC Paid-in capital 65.1% 100%  Production of refined
(BMREFERARAF) RMB500,000,000 chemicals
(Note (iv))
EMREREERGRAA] i EHRAARE FERMCIERD
(Hizt(iv) 500,000,0007T
Dongming Risun Chemical Co., The PRC Paid-in capital 100% 100%  Production of refined
Ltd. (REBIEB{E AR AR RMB2,231,810,000 chemicals
(Note (iv))
RS IERAF R ERRARARE HERBBCIER
(Hizt(iv) 2,231,810,0007T
Xingtai Risun Chemicals The PRC Paid-in capital 100% 100%  Production of refined
Limited (i MBS AR L RMB218,520,000 chemicals
al) (Notes (i) and (iv))
MEEEEITERAR R ERRARARE HERBBCIER
(Hia6) & (iv)) 218,520,000

2023 ANNUAL REPO
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
ire MR HRR N (&)

46. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

For the year ended December 31, 2023 #ZE2023F12A31HILFE

46. XATEEMB AR ZFHTE

OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED) (&)
Place of Shareholding/equity
incorporation/ interest attributable
registration/ Paid up issued/ to the Company
Name of subsidiaries operations registered capital as of December 31,  Principal activities
MR BRS BEERT FATIEERE R
i PNEE=g e AR tflEZ12A318  EBEK
2023 2022
2023%F  2022%F

Tangshan Risun Chemicals The PRC Paid-in capital 100% 100%  Production of refined
Limited (B LLMBISE THER A RMB645,000,000 chemicals
a])(Notes (i) and (iv))

E LBt THERAR i EHBRAARE HERBBCIER
(Hizt0) % (iv)) 645,000,000

Tangshan Risun Aromatics The PRC Paid-in capital 100% 100%  Production of refined
Hydrocarbon Limited (L8 RMB400,000,000 chemicals
BREERBRAR)

(Notes (iv) and (iii)

LRSS RERERAR e EHRAARE FERBCIED
(Ha(iv) (i) 400,000,0007T

Risun Marketing Limited The PRC Paid-in capital 100% 100%  Trading of coke, coking
(JBFSEHARATR]) RMB1,200,000,000 chemicals and refined
(Notes (ii) and (iv)) chemicals

JEGEHAR AR e EHRAARE BEER  BlERRER
(Hia(i) B (iv) 1,200,000,0007T EIER

Xingtai Risun Trading Limited ~ The PRC Paid-in capital 100% 100%  Trading of coke, coking
(“Xingtai Risun Trading”) RMB94,750,000 chemicals and refined
(MaEmESHERAR) chemicals
(Notes (i) and (iv))

MBEIEHESERAA el EHBRAARE BEER - BlER ISR
([FEE1EmE S ]) 94,750,0007C EIES
(Haz() % (iv)

Risun Materials Co., Ltd Japan Paid-in capital 100% 100%  Trading of coke, coking
(JBFSYERA ) JPY155,000,000 chemicals refined and
(Notes (iii) and (iv)) chemicals

TBFSMEMRA 24t B E#1/% 155,000,000 BERER  SLERNREA
(Wi R (iv) ] {tIER

Tangshan Risun Materials The PRC Paid-in capital 100% 100%  Trading of coke and coking
Limited (BB WEBR R RMB500,000,000 chemicals
1) (Notes (i) and (iv))

ELREYERRAR Bl ERBRARARE BEEEREEER
(Hia0) & (iv)) 500,000,0007T

2023 3
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MBHmRNE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2023 & ZE2023F12A831HIEFE

46. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 46.
OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

ARRAFTEMBLRRZFHE
(%)

Place of Shareholding/equity
incorporation/ interest attributable
registration/ Paid up issued/ to the Company
Name of subsidiaries operations registered capital as of December 31,  Principal activities
AR BRES BEHERTS EATIEMGRE
MEARAE B ERTEN thflEZ12A318 EEBEK
2023 2022
2023F 20224
Dingzhou Zhongxu The PRC Paid-in capital 100% 100%  Real estate development
Industrial Limited RMB50,000,000
(EMHBEEERLA)
(Notes (i) and (iv))
EMHREERRAR HE ERRARARE bR
(Hz2 i) % (iv)) 50,000,0007C
Shunri Xinze The PRC Paid in capital 100% 100%  Investment holding
(RRIEREEREREER RMB4,200,000,000
TE(BRAER))(Note (iv)
SHIRREEREREGREE F ERRARARE REER
(BR&E%)(H7t(iv) 4,200,000,0007T
Notes: Kt -
(i) These entities are wholly foreign owned enterprises established in the () ;ng ERRPEROINEEA R
PRC. *e
(ii) These entities are sino-foreign owned entities established in the PRC. (ii) zgg ERNREMINFINEGER
(=
(i)~ No audited statutory financial statements have been prepared for (iif) gﬁ?ﬁ%&%ﬁ#%@ﬂﬁ%iii%%iﬁ

these subsidiaries.

(iv)  The English translation of the names is for reference only. The official

names of these companies are in Chinese.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors of the Company, principally affected the
results or assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the directors of the Company, result in
particulars of excessive length.

All of the subsidiaries, except for Golden Sino, are indirectly held by
the Company.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end
of the year.

All companies now comprising the Group have adopted December
31, as their financial year end.

2023 ANNUAL REPC
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For the year ended December 31, 2023 #ZE2023F12A31HILFE

46. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

The table below shows details of non-wholly-owned subsidiaries of
the Group that have material non-controlling interests:

46. X AT ETEMB AT ZHE
(48)

TR AEERE A BN
HSHIEREME A BN

Proportion of ownership

interests and voting Profit allocated
rights held by non- to non-controlling Accumulated non-
Place of incorporation and controlling interests interests controlling interests
Name of subsidiaries principal place of business as of December 31, as of December 31, as of December 31,
FERESRBNERE
SR ERE BERREELA AREFERERWER EHE A
HEAREH EXmE HZ12A31A HZ12A31R HZ12A31A
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
2023%F 20206 20235 20204 20235 2022F
RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB’000  RMB000
AREFRL ARETT ARMTR ARETT AREFT ARETT
Hebei Risun Energy Production of coke and coking 7.39% 7.39% 13,700 (2,180) 444,681 475,605
chemicals
1B IR EEERRENER
Dingzhou Tianlu Production of refined 34.90% - 17,443 - 393,025 -
chemicals
EMKE EERMMCIER
Risun China Gas Production of coke and coking  33.00% - 79,142 - 709,255 -
chemicals
TR IR IR HEERREER

2023 3
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MBHmRNE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2023 & ZE2023F12A831HIEFE

47. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company

was as follows:

47.

RRTHBEER

BRAARRPHEMRKOERAT

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARKTFT AEETT

Non-current assets FREBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—RHEBRRNE 2,597,144 2,597,144
Amounts due from subsidiaries (Note) FEURH B A BIFIE (ML) 240,365 537,774
Financial assets at FVTPL WA EFABENEMERE 49,187 6,087
2,886,696 3,141,005

Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries (Note) FEURH B A RIFIE (ML) 279,870 766,149
Trade and other receivables B 5 NE AU EE 4,045 427
Cash and cash equivalent BekReZEEY 189,583 1,458
473,498 768,034
Current liabilities REEE

Bank loans IRITER - 486,707
Amounts due to subsidiaries (Note) FETBT B A R B (K 7E) 9,246 9,246
Trade and other payables B 5 MEMFERFRIA 347 96
9,593 496,049
Net current assets REBEEFE 463,905 271,985
Net assets BEFE 3,350,601 3,412,990

Capital and reserves EARR#E
Share capital AR A 382,246 382,246
Reserves B 2,968,355 3,030,744
Total equity RS 3,350,601 3,412,990

Note: As at December 31, 2023, the amounts due from/to subsidiaries
disclosed in the Company’s statement of financial position are
of non-trade nature, unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand. As at December 31, 2022, amount due from a subsidiary
of RMB486,707,000 was secured, interest bearing and repayable in

instalment before November 30, 2023.

2023 ANNUAL REPO
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
ire MR HRR N (&)

For the year ended December 31, 2023 #ZE2023F 12 831HIEFE

47. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY  47. & RBEEE (&)
(CONTINUED)

Movements in the Company’s reserves RARFEEES
Treasury Share Retained
stocks premium profit Total
MR R E AP E REEF #at

RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AR¥EFTT ARETT ARETT

At January 1, 2022 2022912 831H - 3,053,700 36,033 3,089,733
Repurchase of ordinary shares R [@l & 3@A% (47/:£36)

(note 36) - (46,544) - (46,544)
Profit for the year F A - - 811,014 811,014
Dividends appropriation IR BDIR(HTFE14)

(note 14) - - (823,459) (823,459)
At December 31, 2022 72022912 H31H - 3,007,156 23,588 3,030,744
Profit for the year F R - - 231,383 231,383
Repurchase of shares and EAEIDSE SRS R g

pending for cancellation (B15£36)

(note 36) (37,173) - - (37,173)
Dividends appropriation AR B IR (AT aE14)

(note 14) - ~ (256,599)  (256,599)
At December 31, 2023 #R2023F12831H (37,173) 3,007,156 (1,628) 2,968,355
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A SR (E)
For the year ended December 31, 2023 #(ZE2023F12A31HIFFE

48. EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING
PERIOD

a. Subsequent to the reporting period, the Group entered into
a financial guarantee contract with a commercial bank on
January 8, 2024, pursuant to which the Group agreed to
provide financial guarantee to Risun Wei Shan with maximum
liabilities amounting to RMB698 million.

b. Subsequent to the reporting period, the Group repurchased
3,485,000 ordinary shares with aggregate consideration of
HK$10,578,000, equivalent to RMB9,616,000. As at the report
date, the entire ordinary shares repurchased were pending
for cancellation.

2023 ANNUAL REPOF
China Risun Group Li

48. HEMRER

RSB - NEER 202451
AsRm— R ERITEIL—1E
WIEEREL - BEZAH - &
EEREAMBEE LREESE
BEARBEO8H BITHTEIER -

REmEHE  NEBENBRE
10,578,000/ 7T (HHE R AR
9,616,000 7T ) i [21 3,485,000 %
TER - - NARESHE - FTBLK
e LB -



“Articles” or “Articles of Association”
[4HAI) skl AHAE=F2Am A

“associate(s)”

[BHZA

“Audit Committee”
[EZEEg]

“Board” or “Board of Directors”
[Exg]
“business day”

[&%H]

“Cabot Risun Chemicals”

[RIEE ST

“Cangzhou Production Base”

DRMAEERRER |

“CCIA”
[FhEIREITRIHE |

“China” or “PRC”

[

“CNC Risun Energy”

[ R NBESRETR |

Definitions

the articles of association of the Company, as amended from time to time
RA B E IR AR (S RBFHEET)

has the meaning ascribed thereto under the Listing Rules
B R B T 2R S

the audit committee of the Board

EFEMERZBY

our board of Directors

e

a day on which banks in Hong Kong are generally open for normal banking
business to the public and which is not a Saturday, Sunday or public holiday in
Hong Kong

EERT—RELZFAFARBELEBRITEBHEME F (2R - EBMEREELR
BREARIN)

Cabot Risun Chemical (Xingtai) Co., Ltd. (R1E /BB T (&) AR A A), a
limited liability company established in the PRC on June 23, 2011 and owned as
to 60.0% by Cabot (China) Limited (<1&4F (R E)IEEFRAR]), an independent
third party, and 40.0% by our subsidiary, Risun Group. It is an associate of the
Company

RIEFEBEIFE)ERAR - R2011F6 A23B AP EKIHBRART - WHF
R (FEDIREBRAB(AELE=7) LBPHE R BB % E 5 5% 5 60.0%
40.0% + BARREINEE QA

our production base in Cangzhou, where the refined chemicals production facilities
directly owned by our subsidiary, Cangzhou Risun Chemicals, are located
BMERMOEERR - REMOMERRRMNEBSt TEZEEGNBAL TAER
BEEVPTTEHD

the China Coking Industry Association (FFBIfRFEF T ), an association composed
of representatives from the PRC coking industry

FRIREITEHE - AP BERETRAKARNHE

the People’s Republic of China, but for the purpose of this annual report and for
geographical reference only and except where the context requires, references to
“China” and the “PRC” do not include Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan
PEARKEME  ERAFREIEMWELZEMS - RXESEREIN - HIHE IR
MITBIEES - BFRAE

Hebei CNC Risun Energy Limited (8] it (& B 5 8RB R 2 &), a limited liability
company incorporated in the PRC on November 21, 2003 and a joint venture
company of the Company

AL EERSBERAR AR - —FK2003F 11 A21 BEHBEMAKZHBR AR L
RERRRNAERE

2023 3
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Definitions (Continued)

“Companies Ordinance”
IPNSILESHTN

“Company”

[ARRA]]

“connected person(s)”

[EEAL]

“Consolidated Financial Statements”

[#R B R TS

“Controlling Shareholder(s)”
[ R ER |

“Deed of Non-competition”

[THFRE]

“Dingzhou Production Base”

[EMEEERR |

“Director(s)”

(%]

“Dongming Production Base”

[RALEERE

“EBITDA”"
[EBITDA]

“Executive Director(s)

[ITEE]

2023 ANNUAL REP
China Risun Group:

the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as amended
or supplemented from time to time
EEEDIE622F N AHEDI (R ARHERT SR 7T )

China Risun Group Limited (41 ElfBF5 5 % R 2 7)), a company incorporated in
the Cayman Islands with limited liability on November 8, 2007
FEMBSEEBRAR - —KN2007F 11 ASHERE RS MK ERAF]

has the meaning ascribed thereto in the Listing Rules
B R B T2 AR S

the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2023
prepared by the directors of the Company and audited by Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu, set out on pages 104 to 254 of this annual report
RERFE10AZB4EFFHAA RN A ESRULHBH HER T G MTERNEE
2023 12 A31 8 I FERERE B 5 3RaER

has the meaning ascribed thereto in the Listing Rules and, unless the context
otherwise requires, means each of Texson and Mr. Yang Xuegang
B AR R TR MRIEXESEME  GRIERRRNESEEE

a deed of non-competition entered into by each of our Controlling Shareholders
containing the undertakings as described in the paragraph headed “Relationship
with our Controlling Shareholders — Deed of Non-Competition” of the Prospectus,
in favor of the Company and our subsidiaries dated February 20, 2019
BEERIREE BB A2019F2 A20A K T R 2% - EhEARRER R
[RERHIBER — TR F IR | —BRATAAR R B R B M8 B AR A e AR #GE

our production base in Dingzhou, where the coking, refined chemicals and
hydrogen production facilities owned by our subsidiaries are located
HPEEMOEERRE - REFIME D REGORE - BAE TR SR ERMER
PRAED

the director(s) of the Company

AAREE

our production base in Dongming, where the refined chemicals facilities owned by
our subsidiaries are located

BPERPNEERR - BEMOMEB QRIS OB TR AL

earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortization

REME TR - I8 R A1 25

executive Director(s)

WiITES



“FVTPL”
MZ A ER AR ]

“Global Offering”

K‘Groupu‘ “we” or “us”

[AR&mE I3kl A ]

“HBCCIA”

DA ST |
“HK$” or “Hong Kong dollars” or
“cents”

[7&7T 1=kl

“Hong Kong” or “HK”
[&%]

“Huhhot Production Base”

[ RS R A A [

“IFRS”
[ BPR R H5 RS 22 A |
“Independent Non-executive

Director(s)” or “INED(s)”
[ B IFITEE

Definitions (Continued)

Bx(E)

fair value through profit or loss
BARERABR

the offer of 60,000,000 Shares initially offered by the Company for subscription by
the public in Hong Kong at, the offer and sale of the 540,000,000 Shares by the
Company to professional, institutional and other investors and an over-allotment
of 90,000,000 Shares as described in the section headed “Structure of the Global
Offering” in the Prospectus

HBREE 2IREERRE | — ST AR B9 12 2 3 560,000,000 I& 17 LA
NRNLREE - ARRIAESE - B R HAIRE & 3 E K355 540,000,0008 8% {9 K
A FE AL #£90,000,000 8 A% 15

the Company and its subsidiaries or, where the context otherwise requires, in
respect of the period prior to the Company becoming the holding company of its
present subsidiaries, the present subsidiaries of the Company, some or any of
them and the businesses carried on by such subsidiaries or (as the case may be)
their predecessors

ARG REMBAT - MXESEE  HRARRKRHER A NE QA ZERAE]
AIEEREM S - AHEARRIIREMB AR - BT EMZEHE AR RAMNZEE
AR RIERTE) HA & QB ERER

Hebei Coking and Chemical Industry Association (7] it & £ £ 17 % # € ), an
association composed of representatives from the coking and coal chemical
industries

LA EITERS - AR MEC TITERREAXO B E
Hong Kong dollars and cents respectively, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
BEBEEEE BT B

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
HEEBRRITTHE

our production base in Huhhot, where the coking, refined chemicals and hydrogen
production facilities owned by our subsidiaries are located
BPETFERNEERR - ARMANOMBATESNRE  BAL I REREER
MERIPTAEHD

International Financial Reporting Standards, amendments and interpretations
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
REtEREeRMN BRI BREER - BT R2E

independent non-executive Director(s)

BUFRITES

2023 3
WJBSEEBRAF
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Definitions (Continued)

“independent third party(ies)”

»

“Jinniu Risun Chemicals

(&4 8T

"Latest Practicable Date"

[ SR ERATTE ]

“Listing”
=

“Listing Rules”
[ EmRAl]

“Main Board”

E2y

“NDRC”
[BIRENE ]

“Nomination Committee”

==

“NPC”
[ZBAK]

“Prospectus”

[HERERE]
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person(s) or company(ies) and their respective ultimate beneficial owner(s), who/
which, to the best of our Directors’ knowledge, information and belief, having made
all reasonable enquiries, is/are not connected with the Company or our connected
persons as defined under the Listing Rules

BRMESNMEL —EEERNEMRLN {ELEE - BB - HABEARRSNEK
PEEA TV EREENALTRARAEESEHEEREEGA

Hebei Jinniu Risun Chemicals Limited (8] it & 24 B 5k T & R 2 Al), a limited
liability company established in the PRC on March 28, 2008 and owned as to
50.0% by our subsidiary, Xingtai Risun Trading and 50.0% by Hebei Jinniu
Chemical Industry Co., Ltd. (it & 4L TN BBRAF]), a company established
in the PRC, whose shares are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code:
600722), and an independent third party. Jinniu Risun Chemicals is an associate
of our Company

b @B TAR AT - —RMR20084F3 A28 BIEFBIK L HIBRAF] - BFAM
KRB AGIMEESE S Tt L IIRNMER AR (—REFTEK I AT H
B EBEHFR S ETRMASR - 600722) - BB E=7)9 BI#HEE50.0% K
50.0% ° 4Bkt TAA R RIEHE QA

April 18, 2024, being the latest practicable date prior to the printing of this annual
report for the purpose of ascertaining certain information contained in this annual
report

20244180 - BIARERNENFIRETE R AEE TER 2 R BRAITTHHA

listing of the Shares on the Stock Exchange
BN TA B R P £ T

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time)
(BEAMERXHERARZEF EMREDENRHER] » #Fst AR M7 = E)

the stock market (excluding the option market) operated by the Stock Exchange
which is independent from and operated in parallel with the GEM of the Stock
Exchange

GRPTEENRET S (T EEHETS) - BB A PTGEMIL B E G 1758

]

National Development and Reform Commission of the PRC
hEARANMBEBRRERNMNEEZES

the nomination committee of the Board

EFENREZEE

National People’s Congress of the PRC
FEAREKMEZBEARKERE

the prospectus of the Company dated February 28, 2019 in relation to the initial
public offering and the listing of our Shares on the Stock Exchange
ANNRIEER201952 H28 B B B R AREE R MBI I 2 A EH eV iRk E
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“Remuneration Committee”

EES -

“Reporting Period”
EEyill

“RMB” or “Renminbi”
[ARE]

“SFQO” or “Securities and Futures

Ordinance”
[ 5 KAE )]

“Shares”
[ A& ]

“Shareholder(s)”
e

“Stock Exchange”
[ B 32 7 |

“subsidiary” or “subsidiaries”
Ryl

“substantial shareholder”
[EFEMRE

“Sulawesi Production Base”

[EFRAE PO A E R R

“Tangshan Production Base”

[ELAEERRE]
“Texson”
ExEA
“UsbD”

v

Definitions (Continued)

Bx(E)

the remuneration committee of the Board

EFEnFHEEE

January 1, 2023 to December 31, 2023
202341 818%2023F12831H

the lawful currency of the PRC

HEIAEEN

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as
amended or supplemented from time to time
(EBEDIBS BB S LB ERID (K RERT S T)

ordinary shares with a nominal value of HK$0.10 each in the share capital of our
Company
RABIPRAFR FAREE0. 108 LAY L AR

holder(s) of our Shares
IGESEEPN

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BEMERXHMBERAT

has the meaning ascribed thereto under the Companies Ordinance
NI e 0P

has the meaning ascribed thereto in the Listing Rules
B R A TR R RS

our production base in Sulawesi, where the coking and refined chemicals
production facilities owned by our joint ventures and associate are located
BMEFNEANEERR - ARMANEEREEAAHEENRERBA L THER
MEEIPTAEHD

our production base in Tangshan, where the refined chemicals production facilities
owned by our subsidiaries are located

BAEFELNEERR - BEMNMEB R RHES B TEERENMED

Texson Limited (2= 52 % A BR 2 &), a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands on February 19, 2004 and wholly-owned by Mr. Yang Xuegang. It is one of
our Controlling Shareholders

BRHABRAAF - —KNP2004F2A19RERBRLHESFMKZANAR - ABSEME
FHERERER - EARMMNERERZ —

the lawful currency of the United States of America
ENREREREEEE

2023 3
BB R E G R AR
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Definitions (Continued)

Bx(E)

“Xingtai Production Base”

[MatEERE]

“Xuyang Holding Group”
[ BFG 2R S

“Xuyang Holding”
[ TEES 2R ]

“Yuncheng Production Base”
[Em At ERR |

sop”
[%]

2023 ANNUAL REPO
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our production base in Xingtai, where the coking, refined chemicals and hydrogen
production facilities owned by our subsidiaries and associates are located
BPERENEERR - RRMNMER A REESARTEENRE - BALIRER
HERME T

Xuyang Holding and its subsidiaries
TBRG 12 R% K EL B B 2 7]

Xuyang Holding Limited (JEFZ1ZER& B PR A &]), a limited liability company established
in the PRC on August 4, 2004 and owned as to 99.0% by Mr. Yang Xuegang and
1.0% by Ms. Lu Xiaomi, the wife of Mr. Yang Xuegang

TEFGIZERBIRAT - —KMN20045F8 A48 EFEKIHARATR - BHHSMEER
SR Z ER/IMEL LA RIHER99.0%/1.0%

our production base in Yuncheng, where the coking and refined chemicals
facilities owned by our subsidiaries are located

BAESRNEERR - AEFIME D RES N RE MG TREHAEL

per cent
Bkt



SR BLENBERIE T QA
— Bl 7 5l &' R R

B RISUN

China Risun Group Limited
Hh 1) il B 4 P A BR 2 )

MIX
Pa

per from responsible sources
FSC REAEFHRMERGER
wwwfsc.org FSC™ C157924
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